FORM 2A

LISTING STATEMENT

GREENWAY GREENHOUSE CANNABIS CORPORATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 1. Table of Concordance
- 2. Schedule A Final Prospectus dated September 3, 2021
- 3. Schedule B Listing Statement Disclosure Additional Information regarding Item 14 of Form 2A
- 4. Schedule C Certificate of the Company, Certificate of the Promoters

TABLE OF CONCORDANCE

Information Required by Form 2A Listing Statement	Corresponding Item(s) in the Prospectus	Prospectus Page #
Corporate Structure	Corporate Structure	14
General Development of the Business	Description of the Business	15
Narrative Description of the Business	Description of the Business	15
Selected Consolidated Financial Information	Selected Financial Information	33 and Schedule "A" and "B"
Management's Discussion and Analysis	Management's Discussion and Analysis	33 and Schedule "A" and "B"
Market for Securities	Plan of Distribution	N/A
Consolidated Capitalization	Prior Sales	36
Options to Purchase Securities	Options to Purchase Common Shares	35
Description of the Securities	Description of Share Capital	34
Escrowed Securities	Escrowed Securities	36
Principal Shareholders	Principal Shareholders	37
Directors and Officers	Management	37
Capitalization	Consolidated Capitalization	35
Executive Compensation	Executive Compensation	42
Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers	Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers	53
Risk Factors	Risk Factors	53
Promotors	Promotors	77
Legal Proceedings	Legal Proceedings and Regulatory Actions	78
Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions	Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions	79
Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars	Auditors, Transfer Agent and Registrars	79
Material Contracts	Material Contracts	79
Interest of Experts	Experts	80
Other Material Facts	Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions	79
Financial Statements	Financial Statements	Schedule "A" and "B"

SCHEDULE A

GREENWAY GREENHOUSE CANNABIS CORPORATION

Final Prospectus

See attached.

No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise. This prospectus does not constitute a public offering of securities.

PROSPECTUS

Non-Offering Prospectus September 3, 2021



GREENWAY GREENHOUSE CANNABIS CORPORATION

No securities are being offered pursuant to this Prospectus.

This non-offering prospectus (this "Prospectus") of Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation (the "Corporation") is being filed with the Ontario Securities Commission for the purposes of becoming a reporting issuer pursuant to applicable securities legislation in the Province of Ontario. Upon the final receipt for this Prospectus being issued by the Ontario Securities Commission, the Corporation will become a reporting issuer in Ontario.

Since no securities are being offered pursuant to this Prospectus, no proceeds will be raised, and all expenses incurred in connection with the preparation and filing of this Prospectus will be paid by the Corporation from its general corporate funds.

There is no market through which the securities of the Corporation may be sold.

The Canadian Securities Exchange (the "CSE") has conditionally approved the listing of the Common Shares subject to the Corporation's fulfilling all of the requirements of the CSE on or before February 18, 2022, including the distribution of the Common Shares to a minimum number of public securityholders.

An investment in the securities of the Corporation is subject to a number of risks. Investors should carefully consider the risk factors described under "Risk Factors" before purchasing any securities of the Corporation.

No underwriters or selling agents have been involved in the preparation of this Prospectus or performed any review or independent due diligence of its contents.

No person has been authorized to provide any information or to make any representation not contained in this Prospectus and, if provided or made, such information or representation should not be relied upon. The information contained in this Prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this Prospectus.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation does not have any of its securities listed or quoted, has not applied to list or quote any of its securities, and does not intend to apply to list or quote any of its securities, on the Toronto Stock Exchange, Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., a U.S. marketplace, or a marketplace outside Canada and the United States of America.

Unless otherwise noted all currency amounts in this Prospectus are stated in Canadian dollars.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
GLOSSARY	3
GENERAL MATTERS	7
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	7
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS	11
PROSPECTUS SUMMARY	11
CORPORATE STRUCTURE	14
DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS	15
REGULATORY FRAMEWORK	22
USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS	30
DIVIDEND POLICY	33
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION	33
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	33
DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL	34
CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION	35
OPTIONS TO PURCHASE COMMON SHARES	35
PRIOR SALES	36
ESCROWED SECURITIES	36
PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS	37
MANAGEMENT	37
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	42
AUDIT COMMITTEE	48
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	50
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS	53
RISK FACTORS	53
PROMOTERS	77
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS MATTERS	78
INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS	79
AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR	79
MATERIAL CONTRACTS	79
FYPERTS	80

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)

Page	
A-1	SCHEDULE A ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & MD&A
	SCHEDULE B INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & MD&A
C-1	SCHEDULE C AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
CP-1	CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATION
CP-2	CERTIFICATE OF THE PROMOTERS

GLOSSARY

- "ACMPR" means the former Access to Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulations (Canada) issued pursuant to the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act (Canada).
- "Acquired Property" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business History";
- "AGCO" means the Alcohol and Gaming Commission of Ontario.
- "Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan" means the 10% rolling stock option plan of the Corporation as more particularly described under "Executive Compensation Elements of Compensation Stock Option Plan."
- "Annual Financial Statements" has the meaning set out under "Financial Statement Presentation In This Prospectus".
- "Audit Committee" means the Audit Committee of the Corporation in accordance with National Instrument 52-110 Audit Committees.
- "Authorized Distributor" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Prospectus Summary Description of the Business".
- "Authorized Retailer" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Prospectus Summary Description of the Business".
- "Bank Credit Facility" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business History".
- "Bank Credit Facility Agreement" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business History".
- "Board of Directors" or "Board" means the board of directors of the Corporation.
- "Cannabis Act" means the Cannabis Act (Canada) and the regulations promulgated thereunder.
- "Cannabis Regulations" means the Cannabis Regulations promulgated under the Cannabis Act.
- "CBD" means cannabidiol, a non-euphoric chemical compound found in cannabis.
- "CDSA" means the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act (Canada).
- "CEO" means chief executive officer.
- "CFO" means chief financial officer.

- "Common Shares" means the common shares in the capital of the Corporation.
- "Corporation" or "Greenway" means Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation, a corporation incorporated on July 9, 2018 under the OBCA, and refers to the Corporation both prior to and after giving effect to the Listing Date on the CSE.
- "CSE" means the Canadian Securities Exchange.
- "Cultivation Licence" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Prospectus Summary Description of the Business".
- "Del Fresco Group" includes the following companies: Sunrite., Via Verde, and Del Fresco Produce.
- "Del Fresco Produce" means Del Fresco Produce Ltd., a corporation incorporated on October 3, 2006 under the OBCA, and refers to this entity both prior to and after giving effect to the Listing Date on the CSE.
- "Escrow Agent" means TSX Trust Company.
- "Escrow Agreement" means an escrow agreement entered into among certain securityholders of the Corporation and TSX Trust Company, as escrow agent, dated September 3, 2021.
- "Financial Statements" has the meaning set out under "Financial Statement Presentation In This Prospectus".
- "g" means a gram.
- "IFRS" means International Financial Reporting Standards.
- "Interim Financial Statements" has the meaning set out under "Financial Statement Presentation In This Prospectus".
- "kg" means a kilogram.
- "Kingsville Facility" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Prospectus Summary Description of the Business".
- "Leamington Facility" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Prospectus Summary Description of the Business".
- "Leamington Facility Lease" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business History".
- "Licences" means the Nursery Licence and the Cultivation Licence together.

- "Licensed Producer" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of Business General".
- "Listing Date" means the date that the Common Shares are posted and listed for trading on the CSE.
- "Management" means the management of the Corporation.
- "MD&A" means Management's Discussion and Analysis included in this Prospectus.
- "Minister" means the Federal Minister of Health (Canada).
- "Named Executive Officers" or "NEOs" means the Corporation's CEO and CFO and the next most highly compensated executive officer of the Corporation whose total compensation is more than \$150,000.
- "NI 52-110" has the meaning set out under the heading "Corporate Governance Board of Directors".
- "NI 58-101" means National Instrument 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices.
- "NLC" means the Newfoundland and Labrador Liquor Corp.
- "NP 46-201" means National Policy 46-201 Escrow for Initial Public Offerings.
- "NP 58-201" means National Policy 58-201 Corporate Governance Guidelines.
- "Nursery Licence" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Prospectus Summary Description of the Business".
- "OBCA" means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).
- "OCRC" means the Ontario Cannabis Retail Corporation.
- "OCS" means the Ontario Cannabis Store.
- "Options" means options to purchase Common Shares.
- "Original Option Plan" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of Share Capital Options".
- "Principal" means:
 - a) a person or company who acted as a promoter of the Corporation within two years before the prospectus;
 - b) a director or senior officer of the Corporation or any of its material operating subsidiaries at the time of the prospectus;

- c) a 20% holder a person or company that holds securities carrying more than 20% of the voting rights attached to the Corporation's outstanding securities immediately before and immediately after the Corporation's listing on the CSE;
- d) a 10% holder a person or company that
 - a. holds securities carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to the Corporation's outstanding securities immediately before and immediately after the listing on the CSE; and
 - b. has elected or appointed, or has the right to elect or appoint, one or more directors or senior officers of the issuer or any of its material operating subsidiaries.

"SQDC" means the Société Québécoise du cannabis.

"Sunrite" means Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., a corporation incorporated on December 23, 1998 under the OBCA, and refers to this entity both prior to and after giving effect to the Listing Date on the CSE.

"Sunrite Lease" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business – History".

"Sunrite Loan Agreement" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business – History".

"Sunrite Promissory Note" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business – History".

"Sunrite Property Acquisition Agreement" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business – History".

"Temporary Employee Supply Agreements" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business – Employees".

"THC" means Delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol, an intoxicating chemical compound in cannabis.

"U.S." means the United States of America.

"Via Verde" means Via Verde Hydroponics Inc., a corporation incorporated on December 18, 2006 under the OBCA, and refers to this entity both prior to and after giving effect to the Listing Date on the CSE.

"Via Verde Cash Advance" has the meaning ascribed thereto under the heading "Description of the Business – History".

[&]quot;sq/ft" means square feet.

GENERAL MATTERS

Unless otherwise noted or the context indicates otherwise, "we", "us", "our", the "Corporation", or "Greenway" refer to Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation.

Prospective purchasers should rely only on the information contained in this Prospectus. We have not authorized any other person to provide prospective purchasers with additional or different information. If anyone provides prospective purchasers with additional or different or inconsistent information, including information or statements in media articles about the Corporation, prospective purchasers should not rely on it. The Corporation is not making an offer to sell or seeking offers to buy shares or other securities of the Corporation. Prospective purchasers should assume that the information appearing in this Prospectus is accurate only as at its date, regardless of its time of delivery. Greenway's business, financial conditions, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date.

The Corporation presents its financial statements in Canadian dollars. Amounts in this Prospectus are stated in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains certain statements which may constitute "forward-looking information" and "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Canadian securities law requirements (collectively, "forward-looking statements"). The forward-looking statements are contained principally in the sections entitled "Prospectus Summary", "Our Business", "Management's Discussion and Analysis" and "Risk Factors". These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Prospectus and the Corporation does not intend, and does not assume any obligation, to update these forward-looking statements, except as required under applicable securities law. Forwardlooking statements relate to future events or future performance and reflect management's expectations or beliefs regarding future events. In certain cases, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as "plans", "expects" or "does not expect", "is expected", "projects", "proposes", "potential" "budget", "scheduled", "estimates", "forecasts", "intends", "anticipates" or "does not anticipate", or "believes", or variations of such words and phrases or statements that certain actions, events or results "may", "could", "should", "would", "might" or "will be taken", "occur" or "be achieved" or the negative of these terms or comparable terminology. By their very nature forwardlooking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Corporation to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. The Corporation provides no assurance that forward-looking statements will prove to be accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Certain forwardlooking statements in this Prospectus include, but are not limited to, statements regarding:

- successfully executing its plans and intentions, including with respect to the operation of the Corporation's cultivation and processing facilities and generation of revenues and sales of its cannabis products;
- anticipated cash needs and additional financing, including the ability to obtain additional funds through the sale of equity or debt commitments or the factoring of receivables or otherwise:

- future revenue, expenses and operations;
- production and expansion plans at our facilities and the capacity thereof;
- the Corporation's expected business objectives for the next twelve months;
- the outcome of research and development on cannabis;
- expectations regarding production capacity, costs and yields;
- treatment under government regulatory and taxation regimes;
- the Corporation's continued ability to participate in the adult-use market in Canada;
- the effect of government regulations (or changes thereto) with respect to the restrictions
 on production, sale (including the roll-out of authorized retailers in provinces such as
 Ontario and recent amendments to the regulation of distribution of cannabis in Ontario),
 consumption, export controls, income taxes, expropriation of property, repatriation of
 profits, environmental legislation, land use, water use and receipt of necessary permits;
- the medical benefits, safety, efficacy, dosing and social acceptance of cannabis;
- future product offerings;
- the Corporation's ability to attract and retain skilled staff;
- the Corporation's investments in community relations, cannabis health and safety and educational programming in the locations where the Corporation operates and the further development of its social responsibility programs;
- the Corporation's competitive position and the regulatory environment in which the Corporation operates; and
- the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Corporation's business, operations, capital resources and/or financial results.

Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by the Corporation in light of the experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments and other factors it believes are appropriate and are subject to risks and uncertainties. In making the forward-looking statements included in this Prospectus, the Corporation has made various material assumptions, including but not limited to assumptions related to: (i) the availability of financing at all or on reasonable terms; (ii) the Corporation's ability to successfully execute its plans and intentions, including with respect to construction and operation of the Corporation's cultivation facilities; (iii) general business and economic conditions, particularly in the Canadian medicinal and adult-use cannabis markets; (iv) regulation of the markets in which we operate; (v) the Corporation's ability to attract and retain skilled staff; (vi) market competition, including the products and technology offered by the Corporation's competitors; and (vii) maintenance of our current positive relationships with our suppliers, service providers and other third parties. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying these statements are reasonable, they may prove to be incorrect, and we cannot assure that actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking statements. Whether actual results, performance or achievements will conform to the Corporation's expectations and predictions is subject to a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors, including those listed under "Risk Factors", which include:

- the ongoing impact of COVID-19;
- the Corporation's ability to raise required additional capital through the sale of equity or debt instruments or the factoring of receivables or otherwise;
- the Corporation has a limited operating history;
- the Corporation may be unable to achieve revenue growth and development;

- there are factors which may prevent the Corporation from the realization of growth targets;
- the Corporation's actual financial position and results of operations may differ materially from the expectations of the Corporation's management;
- the Corporation may incur significant ongoing costs and obligations related to its investment in infrastructure, growth, research and development, regulatory compliance and operations;
- there is no assurance that the Corporation will turn a profit or generate immediate revenues;
- the adult-use cannabis market in Canada is a relatively new industry;
- the adult-use cannabis market in Canada may experience supply and demand fluctuations that could result in revenue and price decreases;
- the size of the Corporation's target market is difficult to quantify, and investors will be reliant on their own estimates on the accuracy of market data;
- the Corporation is subject to changes in laws, regulations and guidelines which could adversely affect the Corporation's future business, financial condition and results of operations;
- the Corporation's business is dependent on key supply chains which could be adversely
 disrupted by a number of factors including, among others, major health issues or
 pandemics;
- the Corporation is reliant on a single facility and adverse changes or developments affecting such facility could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business;
- the Corporation is reliant on regulatory approvals and cultivation licences for its ability
 to grow, process, package, store and sell cannabis and other products derived therefrom,
 and these regulatory approvals are subject to ongoing compliance requirements, reporting
 obligations and fixed terms requiring renewal;
- any failure on the Corporation's part to comply with applicable regulations could prevent
 it from being able to carry on its business and there may be additional costs associated
 with any such failure;
- under Canadian regulations, a Licensed Producer of cannabis is restricted regarding the type and form of marketing it can undertake which could materially impact sales performance;
- the Corporation's industry is experiencing rapid growth and consolidation that may cause the Corporation to lose key relationships and intensify competition;
- the Corporation may be unsuccessful in competing in the overall legal adult-use cannabis market in Canada and any other countries it intends to operate in;
- the Corporation, or the cannabis industry more generally, may receive unfavorable publicity or become subject to negative consumer or investor perception;
- the Corporation's products may not have, or may not be perceived to have, the effects intended by the end user;
- the Corporation may not be able to develop its products, which could prevent it from ever becoming profitable;
- if the Corporation is unable to develop and market new products it may not be able to keep pace with market developments;
- there has been limited study on the health effects of cannabis products and future clinical research studies may lead to conclusions that dispute or conflict with the Corporation's

- understanding and belief regarding the medical benefits, viability, safety, efficacy, dosing and social acceptance of such products;
- consumer preferences may change and the Corporation may be unsuccessful in retaining customer;
- trade of cannabis for non-medicinal purposes within Canada may be restricted by the Canadian Free Trade Agreement;
- the Corporation is required to comply concurrently with federal or provincial, and local laws in each jurisdiction where it operates or to which it exports its products;
- if the Corporation is unable to attract and retain key personnel, it may not be able to compete effectively in the cannabis market;
- the Corporation has entered into and in the future may seek to enter into strategic alliances including contractual relationships, joint ventures, selective acquisitions, licensing arrangements or other relationships, or expand the scope of currently existing relationships, with third parties that the Corporation believes will have a beneficial impact, and there are risks that such strategic alliances or expansions of the Corporation's currently existing relationships may not enhance its business in the desired manner;
- the Corporation may not be able to successfully identify and execute future acquisitions or dispositions or successfully manage the impacts of such transactions on its operations; the cultivation of cannabis includes risks inherent in an agricultural business including the risk of crop loss, sudden changes in environmental conditions, equipment failure, product recalls and others;
- the Corporation is reliant on key inputs, such as water and utilities, and any interruption of these services could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's finances and operation results. The Corporation is also dependent on access to skilled labour, equipment and parts;
- the Corporation is vulnerable to rising energy costs;
- the Corporation's quality control systems may not operate effectively;
- the Corporation's cannabis products may be subject to recalls for a variety of reasons, which could require it to expend significant management and capital resources;
- the Corporation faces an inherent risk of exposure to product liability;
- the Corporation's operations are subject to safety, health and environmental laws and regulations applicable to its operations and industry in the various jurisdictions in which it operates, and it may be held liable for any breaches of those laws and regulations;
- the Corporation could be liable for fraudulent or illegal activity by its employees, contractors and consultants resulting in significant financial losses or claims against the Corporation;
- the Corporation may become subject to litigation in the ordinary course of business;
- the Corporation will be reliant on information technology systems and may be subject to damaging cyber-attacks;
- the Corporation may be exposed to liability or the threat of liability in relation to the use of customer information and other personal and confidential information;
- the Corporation may be subject to risks related to the protection and enforcement of its intellectual property rights, or intellectual property it licenses from others, and may become subject to allegations that it or its licensors are in violation of intellectual property rights of third parties;
- the Corporation may be subject to breaches of security at its facilities;

- the Corporation may incur additional indebtedness;
- management may not be able to successfully implement adequate internal controls over financial reporting;
- if the Corporation has a material weakness in its internal controls over financial reporting, investors could lose confidence in the reliability of the Corporation's financial statements, which could result in a decrease in the value of its securities;
- the Corporation has negative operating cash flow;
- the Corporation may be subject to credit risk;
- tax and accounting requirements may change in ways that are unforeseen to the Corporation and it may face difficulty or be unable to implement or comply with any such changes;
- the Corporation may not be able to renew or secure adequate insurance to protect its assets, operations and employees;
- the price of the Common Shares in public markets may experience significant fluctuations;
- if securities or industry analysts do not continue to publish research, or publish inaccurate or unfavourable research, about the Corporation's business, the Common Share price and trading volume could decline;
- the Corporation continues to sell shares for cash to fund operations, expansion, and mergers and acquisitions that will dilute the current shareholders;
- it is not anticipated that any dividends will be paid to holders of Common Shares for the foreseeable future; and
- the Corporation is subject to ongoing reporting requirements under applicable securities laws and exchange policies.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS

This Prospectus contains selected financial information of the Corporation that is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the audited financial statements of the Corporation for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2021 (the "Annual Financial Statements") and the unaudited condensed interim financial statements of the Corporation for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and the notes thereto (the "Interim Financial Statements" and, together with the Annual Financial Statements, the "Financial Statements"), and the Corporation's management discussion and analysis for the corresponding periods (the "MD&A"). All of the financial information presented is prepared in accordance with IFRS. The Annual Financial Statements and MD&A are attached as Schedule "A" hereto and the Interim Financial Statements and MD&A are attached as Schedule "B" hereto.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the principal features of this Prospectus and should be read together with the more detailed information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this Prospectus. Certain capitalized terms and phrases used in this Prospectus are defined in the "Glossary".

Description of Business

The Corporation was incorporated under the *Business Corporations Act* (Ontario) as "2644639 Ontario Inc." on July 9, 2018. The Corporation filed articles of amendment to change its name to "Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation" on August 1, 2018 and filed articles of amendment on September 2, 2021 to remove private company restrictions on transfer. The Corporation's registered office and head office is located at 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario N9Y 2M2. See "*Corporate Structure*".

The Corporation focuses on cultivating and propagating high-quality, high-yield, low-cost greenhouse cultivated clones and dried flower cannabis. It is a licensed producer under the Cannabis Act ("Licensed Producer") which holds a standard cultivation licence ("Cultivation Licence") and nursery licence ("Nursery Licence", and, collectively with the Cultivation Licence, the "Licences") that allow it to produce dried and fresh cannabis, cannabis plants and seeds by cultivating, propagating and harvesting cannabis. The Nursery Licence and Cultivation Licence were issued by Health Canada on July 24, 2020 and February 5, 2021, respectively. The Licences are valid for a period of three years from the date of issuance. The Corporation anticipates that Health Canada will renew the Licences at the end of their respective terms; however, the Corporation cannot provide assurances that the Licences will be renewed or renewed on the same terms and conditions. See "Risk Factors".

On August 15, 2020, the Corporation completed the retrofit construction of an over 57,250 sq/ft greenhouse and processing facility located at 1102 Mersea Road 5, Leamington, Ontario, N8H 3V6 (the "Leamington Facility") in order to cultivate and harvest dried flower cannabis for wholesale. It also has a 10,000 square foot state-of-the-art nursery located at 1478 Seacliff Drive, in Kingsville, Ontario (the "Kingsville Facility"), construction of which was completed on January 31, 2020. The Corporation will sell the clones propagated at the Kingsville Facility and the dried flower cultivated and processed at the Leamington Facility within Canada to provincially authorized retailers (each, an "Authorized Retailer"), distributors (each, an "Authorized Distributor") and federally licensed entities (each, a "Licensee") in accordance with the Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations. See "Description of the Business - Overview".

Employees, Directors and Officers

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation engages approximately 10 employees. See "Employees". The directors and officers of the Corporation include the following individuals:

Jamie D'Alimonte – Director, Chief Executive Officer and Co-Chair of the Board

Carl Mastronardi – Director, President and Co-Chair of the Board

Darren Peddle - Chief Financial Officer, Vice-President Finance, and Secretary-Treasurer

Martin Komsa – Director

Dennis Staudt – Director

Andrew Brown – Corporate Secretary

For more information on the Corporation's directors and executive officers see "Directors and Executive Officers."

Financial Information

The following selected financial information has been derived from and is qualified in its entirety by the Annual Financial Statements and MD&A included in Schedule "A" to this Prospectus and the Interim Financial Statements and MD&A included in Schedule "B" to this Prospectus. The following should be read in conjunction with such financial statements and the related notes thereto. The Financial Statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The following sets out selected summary financial information of the Corporation for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 and for the three month period ended June 30, 2021:

	Three month period ended June 30, 2021 (unaudited) \$	Year ended March 31, 2021 (audited) \$	Year ended March 31, 2020 (audited) \$
Revenue	-	-	-
Total Expenses (Operating and	130,310	1,232,155	2,180,873
Other)			
Net income (loss)	130,310	(1,232,155)	(2,180,873)
Current assets	5,312,073	4,423,131	1,731,985
Total assets	29,280,038	25,110,324	17,607,726
Current liabilities	1,320,298	1,554,512	948,492
Total liabilities	17,636,298	14,846,565	8,738,053
Shareholders' equity (deficiency)	11,643,740	10,263,759	8,869,673

Use of Available Funds

This is a non-offering Prospectus. The Corporation is not raising any funds in conjunction with this Prospectus and, accordingly, there are no proceeds to be raised by the Corporation pursuant to this Prospectus.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation has approximately \$4,200,000 in working capital and a cash balance of approximately \$2,000,000 and intends to allocate the foregoing funds for the next twelve months as follows; however, it reserves discretion to allocate to other strategic, operational or other demands as and when they arise. The following chart does not account for any potential revenue from sales of product during the next twelve months and covers overhead and capital expenditures that are required to be made by the Corporation.

Use of Available Funds ⁽¹⁾	Amount
Costs related to public listing	\$200,000
Enterprise resource planning ("ERP") software system	\$150,000
General and administrative costs	
Wages, salaries and Director fees	\$300,000
Office and general expenses	\$100,000
• Professional fees	\$50,000
• Insurance	\$50,000
Repairs and maintenance	\$50,000
Marketing	\$50,000
Legal and accounting fees	\$200,000
Bank Debt Service Payments	\$900,000
Intercompany Debt Service Payments	\$400,000
Rent Revenue and Expense, Net	\$300,000
Total Use of Funds	\$2,850,000
Unallocated working capital ⁽²⁾	\$1,350,000
Total:	\$4,200,000

Notes:

- (1) Additional variable operational expenses will be funded through revenue from sales of products. The variable operational expenses consist of costs associated with growing and processing cannabis for sale, including costs such as direct labour, supplies, utilities, lab analysis fees and shipping. The variable costs are calculated and incorporated in the per gram sale price of the Corporation's products.
- (2) The cash portion of the unallocated working balance has been held in short-term, investment grade, interest-bearing securities, in government securities or in bank accounts at the discretion of management.

See "Use of Available Funds."

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Name, Address and Incorporation

The Corporation was incorporated under the *Business Corporations Act* (Ontario) as "2644639 Ontario Inc." on July 9, 2018. On August 1, 2018, the Corporation amended its articles to change its name to "Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation". On September 2, 2021, the Corporation filed articles of amendment to remove private company restrictions on share transfers.

The Corporation's registered office and head office is located at 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario N9Y 2M2.

Intercorporate Relationship

The Corporation does not have any subsidiaries.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Overview

Greenway, since incorporation, has been involved in the cultivation and propagation of high-quality, high-yield, low-cost greenhouse cultivated dried cannabis and fresh clones. The Corporation is a Licensed Producer and was issued its Nursery Licence and Cultivation Licence on July 24, 2020 and February 5, 2021, respectively. The Licences allow the Corporation to produce dried and fresh cannabis, cannabis plants and seeds by cultivating, propagating and harvesting cannabis at its Leamington Facility (see "*Prospectus Summary – Description of the Business*") and to cultivate and propagate clones for wholesale at its Kingsville Facility to sell such cannabis products within Canada to provincially Authorized Retailers, Authorized Distributors and Licensees in accordance with the Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations.

Both Licences are valid for a period of three years from the date of issuance. The Corporation anticipates that Health Canada will renew the Licences at the end of their respective terms; however, the Corporation cannot provide assurances that the Licences will be renewed or renewed on the same terms and conditions. See "*Risk Factors*".

The primary source of revenue for the Corporation in the near future will result from selling bulk packaged dry bud cannabis. The Corporation is currently producing fresh clones for its own supply for the Leamington Facility. In the future, the Corporation may choose to sell clones as noted above, but Greenway expects that revenue from the sale of clones will likely be insignificant as compared to revenue derived from the sale of bulk packaged dried cannabis. As of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, there is no revenue from dry bud cannabis or clones. The first batches of dry bud cannabis were approximately 50% through their production cycles at such time. As of the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation has begun grading, packaging and sending out dry bud cannabis for irradiation. The Corporation has also been in discussion with customers regarding sales.

The Corporation has contracted with Craft Depot Inc. to undertake the advancement of the Corporation's potential customer base and commercialization of the dry bud cannabis product. To date, the Corporation, along with Craft Depot Inc., have developed relationships with approximately 10 potential customers to maximize the revenue per gram and gross profit margin. The Corporation is operating under a wholesale business-to-business model and, therefore, does not require any further regulatory approvals before the Corporation can generate revenue. The remaining steps to reach commercialization include grading, packaging and irradiation of the dry bud cannabis product. The Corporation does not anticipate any further material costs to complete these last steps towards commercialization of its product.

In the past three fiscal years, the only source of revenue has been rental income from the Acquired Property, and reserves for potential additional production capacity. Rental income will be an insignificant source of revenue in the future. At present, the Corporation does not anticipate engaging in any business activities outside of Canada.

The Corporation uses approximately 4% of the Leamington facility for product development of new cannabis strains, retrieved from their significant seed bank. The foot print for product development varies by season and the judgment of Management. Research and development of new strains and growing practices is completed in-house drawing on the significant knowledge of the Corporation's founders.

History

On July 9, 2018, the Company was incorporated as 2644639 Ontario Inc. and one (1) share was issued to Sunrite for \$1 in proceeds. The Corporation was subsequently renamed to Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation by articles of amendment filed on August 1, 2018.

On August 9, 2018, the Corporation completed a private placement financing with Sunrite of 5,000,000 Common Shares at \$0.05 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$250,000.

On August 30, 2018, the Corporation entered into an agreement of purchase and sale with Sunrite providing for the acquisition from Sunrite of the greenhouse facility located at 620 Essex County Road 37, Leamington, Ontario, NOP 2P0 (the "Acquired Property") for an aggregate purchase price (the "Purchase Price") of \$8,175,000 (the "Sunrite Property Acquisition Agreement"). The Purchase Price was satisfied through: a) the payment of \$250,000 cash, b) the issuance of a demand non-interest bearing promissory note in the principal amount of \$175,000 from the Corporation to Sunrite (the "Sunrite Promissory Note"), and c) the balance of \$7,750,000 through the issuance of 155,000,000 Common Shares at a deemed issuance price of \$0.05 per share.

On September 27, 2018, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 2,000,000 Common Shares at \$0.25 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$500,000.

On October 25, 2018, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 1,922,500 Common Shares at \$0.50 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$961,250.

On May 1, 2019, the Corporation entered into a lease agreement with Sunrite with respect to the Acquired Property whereby Sunrite, as tenant, agrees to pay Greenway \$20,833.33 per month for use of the Acquired Property (the "**Sunrite Lease**"). The Sunrite Lease was extended to April 30, 2021 and further extended to April 30, 2022.

Also on May 1, 2019, the Corporation entered into a lease agreement with Via Verde with respect to the Leamington Facility whereby the Corporation, as tenant, agreed to pay Via Verde \$20,833.33 per month for the premises for term of twenty (20) years (the "Leamington Facility Lease").

On May 15, 2019, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 542,972 Common Shares at \$0.75 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$407,229.

On June 12, 2019, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 1,079,250 Common Shares at \$0.75 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$809,437.50.

On August 2, 2019, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 362,670 Common Shares at \$0.75 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$272,002.50.

On September 1, 2019, the Learnington Facility Lease was amended to provide for a cash advance from Via Verde to the Corporation in the principal amount of \$3,900,000 to be applied toward lease-hold improvements to the premises, with such advance to accrue interest at a rate of 5.5% monthly and to be repaid as to interest only until the date that the Cultivation Licence was received and thereafter to be repaid in blended payments of interest and principal amortized over a period of 10 years (the "Via Verde Cash Advance").

On December 18, 2019, the Corporation entered into a credit agreement with, *inter alia*, a Schedule 1 Canadian chartered bank providing for credit facilities to the Corporation (the "Bank Credit Facility") in an amount not to exceed \$6,100,000, which may be adjusted from time to time and which is subject to the Corporation's right to upsize the facility up to an aggregate maximum of \$20,000,000 upon the terms and conditions of the agreement (the "Bank Credit Facility Agreement"). There is currently no debt that is "non-contingently" available from the Bank Credit Facility. The Bank Credit Facility is fully drawn at \$6,100,000 (before exercising the accordion feature). The additional debt under the Bank Credit Facility is only available for capital expenditures provided certain trailing EBITDA covenant ratios are met. Management of the Corporation does not expect to utilize this facility in the next 12 months.

On February 12, 2020, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 1,208,046 Common Shares at \$0.50 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$604,023.

On November 20, 2020, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 478,000 Common Shares at \$0.50 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$239,000.

On July 24, 2020 the Corporation received its Nursery Licence.

On February 5, 2021 the Corporation received its Cultivation Licence.

On March 31, 2021, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 4,072,960 Common Shares at \$0.50 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$2,036,480.

On March 31, 2021, the Corporation entered into a subordinated term loan agreement with Sunrite whereby Sunrite provided a loan in the principal amount of \$4,900,000 to the Corporation (the "Sunrite Loan"), with such loan bearing interest at a rate of 5.5% per annum, paid quarterly, with principal payments to begin in April 2022 and to be amortized over ten years (the "Sunrite Loan Agreement"). Proceeds from the Sunrite Loan were used to pay the outstanding balance of the Via Verde Cash Advance in full and to pay the outstanding amount of the Sunrite Promissory Note in full. The Sunrite Loan is secured against the assets of the Corporation pursuant to a general security agreement dated March 31, 2021.

The terms of the Bank Credit Facility were amended on March 31, 2021 to add the general security agreement in favour of Sunrite under the Sunrite Loan Agreement as a permitted lien and to confirm that obligations owed by the Corporation to Sunrite pursuant to the Sunrite Loan Agreement would be subordinated and postponed to the obligations of the Corporation under the Bank Credit Facility.

On May 1, 2021, the Corporation entered into a lease agreement with Sunrite with respect to the Kingsville Facility (the "Kingsville Facility Lease"). The term of the Kingsville Facility Lease is from May 1, 2021 to April 30, 2039. The monthly cash fee payable in rent is \$25,000, inclusive of utilities, insurance and property taxes.

On May 5, 2021, the Corporation completed a private placement financing of 2,463,417 Common Shares at \$0.50 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of \$1,231,708.50.

On May 13, 2021, Sunrite surrendered 52,507,547 shares to the Company which were subsequently cancelled.

The Production Facilities

In the fall of 2019, the Corporation commenced the retrofit construction of its 57,250 sq/ft Leamington Facility, which is intended to serve as the Corporation's primary cultivation facility for growing and cultivating cannabis for its dried flower wholesale operations. The retrofit construction was completed in August 2020. The Corporation expended approximately \$10,600,000 on the retrofit construction, the greenhouse, warehouse and production equipment. When fully operational, the Leamington Facility will provide the Corporation with approximately 40,310 sq/ft of cultivation and production space, 15,000 sq/ft of high-tech processing space, 1,440 sq/ft devoted to research and development, and 500 sq/ft of office space. At the time of this Prospectus, the Leamington Facility is completely constructed and operational.

The Corporation is also fully operational at its 10,000 square foot Kingsville Facility, which is home to its advanced nursery of clones for sale to Licensed Producers and as a supply source for the dried cannabis operations to be conducted at the Leamington Facility. The Kingsville Facility, built in 2018, was previously used as an indoor, container style farm for microgreens and lettuce. The Kingsville Facility underwent a retrofit in order to align the facility with the Corporation's operations, including increasing security features. Approximately \$2,500,000 was expended by Sunrite on the Kingsville Facility in 2018 and, as of May 2021, the Corporation pays rent to operate out of the Kingsville Facility. The Kingsville Facility is expected to provide the Corporation with approximately 10,000 sq/ft of cultivation and production space.

The Corporation has the capacity and know-how to produce approximately 1,500 kilograms of premium dry bud cannabis each crop cycle, and expects to complete five crop cycles per fiscal year. The cloning and vegetative states of the crop cycle will take place in the nursery at the Kingsville Facility for 4-5 weeks. Once the plants are transferred to the greenhouse at the Leamington Facility they will enter flowering and be harvested after 9-10 weeks. The first crop was fully harvested in May of 2021. Notwithstanding the expertise of the founders and agricultural experts at the Corporation, the Corporation's harvest remains subject to the risks inherent in the agricultural business, including the risk of crop failure presented by weather, insects, fire, plant diseases and similar agricultural risks, which can reduce the crop output. See "Risk Factors".

Leased Facilities and Corporation's Properties

Below is a summary of the properties owned and operated by the Corporation, as well as a summary of the lessee and lessor relationships that the Corporation currently has:

Lessor	Lessee	Address	Owned by Corporation	Term	Additional Information
Corporation	Sunrite	620 Essex Rd, Wheatley, ON	Yes	May 1, 2021 – April, 30 2022	This is the Acquired Property. The Corporation leases 100% of the 10-acre property to Sunrite for produce production.
Via Verde	Corporation	1102 Mersea Rd 5, Leamington, ON	No	May 1, 2019 – April 30, 2039	This is the Leamington Facility. The Corporation leases 4% of the Leamington Facility for cultivation and processing of dry bud cannabis, while the remainder is operated by Via Verde for produce production. The Corporation has the right to expand its footprint at the same rental rates, or purchase the Leamington
					Facility outright.
Sunrite	Corporation	1478 Seacliff Dr, Kingsville, ON	No	May 1, 2021 – April 30, 2039	This is the Kingsville Facility. The Corporation leases 100% of the Kingsville Facility for the propagation of cannabis clones and vegetative plants, as well as storage of mother plants and seed banks.

Products

Under the Cannabis Act, a federal licensee, if authorized by its licence, may sell the following cannabis products: dried and fresh cannabis, cannabis oils, cannabis plants and seeds, cannabis extracts, cannabis edibles and topicals.

The Corporation has not and does not intend to engage in any U.S. marijuana-related activities as defined in Canadian Securities Administrators Staff Notice 51-352 (Revised) dated February 8, 2018 as part of its current stock exchange listing on the CSE.

The Corporation currently carries over 200 strains of cannabis within its genetics portfolio. The Corporation is able to acquire or develop additional genetics to this profile based on market demands. The Corporation is in the process of developing more tailored genetics for the greenhouse space and for production processes.

Dried Cannabis

The Corporation is currently licensed to grow and sell dried cannabis. The Corporation sells dried cannabis products domestically in Canada. Products will sell in bulk packaging to any other Licensee, whether it be for medical or recreational purposes. The Corporation intends to sell some internally developed strains, such as Sun County Kush and Lemon Pound Cake.

The Corporation is a wholesaler and its customers may choose to repackage the Corporation's cannabis under their own brands and strain-names, therefore the Corporation expends minimal working capital on brand/strain promotion and announcement.

Production

The Corporation uses its nursery at the Kingsville Facility to store and maintain mother plants, seed genetics, clones and vegetative plants. The crop cycle begins with taking clippings off of mother plants, planting and growing them up to two weeks to produce finished clones. Afterwards, the clones are planted in larger growing mediums and grown up to an additional three weeks to become finished vegetated plants. The vegetated plants are transferred to the Leamington Facility and prepared to enter the flowering stage. The duration of flowering is expected to be approximately nine weeks. The entire licensed greenhouse area at the Leamington Facility is used for flowering. After harvest, the cannabis material is transferred to the attached processing warehouse to be hang dried, hand bucked, machine trimmed, cured and bulk packaged.

Intellectual Property

The Corporation's intellectual property consists largely of brands as well as cannabis genetics, trade secrets and know-how. The Corporation protects its brands through trademark registration and maintains strict confidentiality and other protective measures in respect of its other intellectual property.

The Corporation submitted an application for a trademark for the use of "Sun County" for all cannabis products. The application was submitted to the Canadian Intellectual Property Office under application number 2098291 and is dated as of April 8, 2021. The majority of the Corporation's intellectual property consists of know-how from decades of mass-scale, hydroponic cultivation via the majority shareholders.

Competitive Conditions

The market for cannabis in Canada is tightly controlled by and subject to strict regulation, including pursuant to the Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations. The Corporation continues to face competition from both the illicit market as well as other companies, some of which can be expected to have longer operating histories and more financial resources and manufacturing and marketing experience than the Corporation. Increased competition by larger and better financed competitors could materially and adversely affect the Corporation's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

As of the date of this Prospectus, Health Canada has granted cultivation, processing or cannabis sales licences to a total of 677 licence holders. The Corporation holds two of those licences, being the

Cultivation Licence and Nursery Licence. More information on the current list of licence holders can be found on Health Canada's website (https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/drugs-medication/cannabis/industry-licensees-applicants/licensed-cultivators-processors-sellers.html).

The Corporation believes that it will face competition from the following sources:

(i) Licensed Producers

As of the date of this Prospectus, Health Canada has granted cultivation, processing or sales licences to a total of 677 licence holders, with many more in the application phase. The Corporation believes it will face competition from other Licensed Producers and that the supply of cannabis potentially exceeds the demand for cannabis. The price of cannabis and cannabis products may also continue to drop. The Corporation believes that it can reduce the impact of competition by focusing on producing premium clones and premium quality dried flower with a high THC content at a lower price point than its competitors. Additionally, the Corporation believes that the stringent application and compliance requirements that must be met under the Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations to become a Licensed Producer may prove too onerous or expensive for some of those unlicensed applicants and is, in the Corporation's view a barrier to entry into the industry.

(ii) Cannabis Retailers

The Cannabis Act authorizes the provinces and territories to oversee the distribution of cannabis. Various provinces have distribution models which include exclusive distribution through provincially-owned retail stores or a mixed distribution model which will allow for regulated privately-owned retail stores to operate alongside provincially owned retail stores. The Corporation believes that retail competition will be from existing licence holders and new market participants. Currently the Corporation does not have retail operations.

(iii) Homegrown Cannabis Producers

The Cannabis Act allows for adults to legally grow up to four cannabis plants for personal use. The Corporation believes that competition from homegrown cannabis will be minimal and that it will not have a significant impact on market demand for premium cannabis flower.

(iv) The Illicit or "Grey" Cannabis Market

There is an illicit or "Grey" cannabis market, and its size and significance can only be speculated. The grey market of cultivators are not Licensees and operate illegally outside the confines of regulatory requirements. As a result, cultivators in the grey market are able to use pesticides on their crops. This provides a competitive advantage to these cultivators. However, the government is recently taking increasing efforts to raid and shutdown such cultivation facilities.

See "Risk Factors" for further details.

Specialized Skill and Knowledge

The Corporation is managed and majority owned by the same owners of the Del Fresco Group of companies, which includes: Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd., and Del Fresco Produce Ltd. The Del Fresco Group has successfully been in business for decades in the aggressively competitive hydroponic produce sector. The owners have a great deal of knowledge to draw on as well as a pool of human resources in the Del Fresco Group that are skilled in cultivation. The Del Fresco Group has a positive reputation for high quality product, risk mitigation expertise and cultivation innovation. These specialized skills and knowledge give the Corporation a competitive advantage to produce high quality cannabis products at a competitive cost.

Employees

As of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, the Corporation had nine active employees.

In addition, the Corporation contracts out general labour and administrative services from companies in the Del Fresco Group. All general labour for production is contracted from related parties (Sunrite and/or Via Verde) at a flat rate for time utilized. Administrative support in the form of marketing and accounting services are contracted on a cost basis from Del Fresco Produce Ltd. for time utilized. These arrangements are set out in temporary employee supply agreements between the Corporation and each of the relevant members of the Del Fresco Group (the "Temporary Employee Supply Agreements"). The above-noted employee count is exclusive of the contracted employees per these agreements.

Social or Environmental Policies

To date, the Corporation has not implemented social or environmental policies. However, the Corporation is aware it may need to adopt additional social, environmental and human rights policies in the future.

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

Summary of the Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations

On April 13, 2017, the Government of Canada released Bill C-45, An Act respecting cannabis and to amend the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act, the Criminal Code and other Acts, which proposed the enactment of the Cannabis Act (Canada) to regulate the production, distribution and sale of cannabis for unqualified adult use. The Cannabis Act came into force on October 17, 2018.

On July 11, 2018, the Federal Government published regulations in the Canada Gazette, Part II, to support the coming into force of the Cannabis Act, including the Cannabis Regulations, the new Industrial Hemp Regulations ("IHR"), along with proposed amendments to the *Narcotic Control Regulations* and certain regulations under the *Food and Drugs Act* (Canada). The Cannabis Regulations, among other things, set out regulations relating to the following matters: (1) licences, permits and authorizations; (2) security clearances and physical security measures; (3) good production practices; (4) cannabis products; (5) packaging and labelling; (6) cannabis for medical purposes; (7) drugs containing cannabis; (8) combination products and devices; (9) importation and exportation for

medical or scientific purposes; (10) document retention; (11) reporting and disclosure, and (12) access to cannabis for medical purposes.

Adult-Use Cannabis

The Corporation participates in the Canadian adult-use recreational market for cannabis. The Cannabis Act provides a licensing and permitting scheme for the cultivation, processing, importation, exportation, testing, packaging, labelling, sending, delivery, transportation, sale, possession and disposal of cannabis for adult recreational use, implemented by the Cannabis Regulations. The Cannabis Act and the Cannabis Regulations maintain a separate regime for access to cannabis for medical purposes.

Below are additional highlights of the Cannabis Act:

- Places restrictions on the amounts of cannabis that individuals can possess and distribute, and on public consumption and use, and prohibits the sale of cannabis unless authorized by the Cannabis Act.
- Permits individuals who are 18 years of age or older to cultivate, propagate, and harvest up to
 and including four cannabis plants in their dwelling-house, propagated from a seed or plant
 material authorized by the Cannabis Act.
- Restricts (but does not strictly prohibit) the promotion and display of cannabis, cannabis
 accessories and services related to cannabinoids to consumers, including restrictions on
 branding and a prohibition on false or misleading promotion and on sponsorships.
- Permits the informational promotion of cannabis by entities licensed to produce, sell or distribute cannabis in specified circumstances to individuals 18 years and older.
- Introduces packaging and labelling requirements for cannabis and cannabis accessories, and prohibits the sale of cannabis or cannabis accessories that could be appealing to young persons.
- Provides the designated minister with the power to recall any cannabis or class of cannabis on reasonable grounds that such a recall is necessary to protect public health or public safety.
- Establishes a national cannabis tracking system to monitor the movement of cannabis from where it is grown, to where it is processed, to where it is sold.
- Provides powers to inspectors for the purpose of administering and enforcing the Cannabis Act and a system for administrative monetary penalties.

Cannabis for Medical Purposes

As of October 17, 2018, the Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations replaced the Access to Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulation ("ACMPR") as the governing regulations in respect of the production, sale and distribution of medical cannabis and related oil extracts. Further, as the Cannabis Act is now in force, cannabis is regulated under the Cannabis Act rather than the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act ("CDSA").

Part 14 of the Cannabis Regulations sets out the regime for medical cannabis following legalization, which is substantively the same as the ACMPR with adjustments to create consistency with rules for non-medical use, improve patient access, and reduce the risk of abuse within the medical access system. Patients who have the authorization of their healthcare provider continue to have access to cannabis, either purchased directly from a federally licensed entity authorized to sell for medical purposes, or by registering to produce a limited amount of cannabis for their own medical purposes, or designating someone to produce cannabis for them.

Licences, Permits and Authorizations

The Cannabis Regulations establish the following classes of licences:

- licence for cultivation;
- licence for processing;
- licence for analytical testing;
- licence for sales for medical purposes;
- licence for research; and
- a cannabis drug licence.

The Cannabis Regulations also create subclasses for cultivation licences (standard cultivation, microcultivation and nursery) and processing licences (standard processing and micro-processing). Different licences and each sub-class therein, carry differing rules and requirements that are intended to be proportional to the public health and safety risks posed by each licence category and each subclass. Licences that were issued under the ACMPR are deemed to be licences issued under the Cannabis Act. Licences issued under the Cannabis Act have associated expiry dates and are subject to renewal requirements.

Security Clearances

Certain individuals associated with cannabis licensees, including individuals occupying "key positions", directors, officers, individuals who exercise, or are in a position to exercise, direct control over the corporation licensee, and other individuals identified by the Minister of Health (the "Minister"), must hold a valid security clearance issued by the Minister. Under the Cannabis Regulations, the Minister may refuse to grant security clearances to individuals with associations to organized crime or with past convictions for, or an association with, drug trafficking, corruption or violent offences. This was largely the approach in place under the ACMPR and other related regulations governing the licensed production of cannabis for medical purposes. Individuals who have histories of nonviolent, lower-risk criminal activity (for example, simple possession of cannabis, or small-scale cultivation of cannabis plants) are not precluded from participating in the legal cannabis industry, however, grant of security clearance to such individuals is at the discretion of the Minister and such applications are reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

Security clearances issued under the ACMPR are considered to be security clearances for the purposes of the Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations.

Cannabis Tracking System

Under the Cannabis Act, the Minister is authorized to establish and maintain a national cannabis tracking system. The cannabis tracking system (together with the licensing portal, collectively known as the "Cannabis Tracking and Licensing System") was established by ministerial order, and came into effect on October 17, 2018. The purpose of this system is to track cannabis throughout the supply chain, to help prevent cannabis from being diverted to an illicit market or activity and to help prevent illicit cannabis from being a source of supply of cannabis in the legal market. Pursuant to the Cannabis Tracking and Licensing System, a holder of a federal licence for cultivation, a licence for processing or a licence for sale for medical purposes that authorizes the possession of cannabis must report monthly to the Minister with specific information about their authorized activities with cannabis (e.g. cannabis inventory quantities), in the form and manner specified by the Minister. The ministerial order also provides for monthly reporting by provincial bodies and provincially authorized private retailers of certain information in the form and manner specified by the Minister.

A new ministerial order regarding the Cannabis Tracking and Licensing System was published in the Canada Gazette, Part II, on June 26, 2019 and in force on October 17, 2019 in order to address the unique public health and public safety risks associated with the three new classes of cannabis, being edible cannabis, cannabis extracts and cannabis topicals (collectively, the "New Classes of Cannabis") authorized by the Regulations Amending the Cannabis Regulations (New Classes of Cannabis) (the "Amending Regulations") on October 17, 2019.

The purpose of this system is to enable the submission of licence applications, amendments and renewals through an online portal and track the flow of cannabis throughout the supply chain as a means of preventing the illegal inversion and diversion of cannabis into and out of the regulated system. Under the Cannabis Tracking and Licensing System, a holder of a licence for cultivation, licence for processing, or a licence for sale for medical purposes is required to submit monthly reports to Health Canada.

Cannabis Products

The Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations set out the requirements for cannabis products that are permitted for sale at the retail level, including the limit on THC content, permitted ingredients, limit on pest control product residues, as well as microbial and chemical contaminants.

Prior to the passage of the Amending Regulations, the Cannabis Act only permitted the sale of dried cannabis, cannabis oil, fresh cannabis, cannabis plants and cannabis plant seeds. The Amending Regulations permit the production and sale of the New Classes of Cannabis. As is the case for dried or fresh cannabis and cannabis oil, a processing licence is required in order to produce edible cannabis, cannabis extracts and cannabis topicals, and to package and label these types of cannabis products for sale to consumers. Holders of processing licences issued prior to October 17, 2019 were required to amend their processing licence before they could begin manufacturing products belonging to New Classes of Cannabis. The Cannabis Regulations require the filing of a notice with Health Canada at least 60 days before releasing a new product to the market. As a result, December 16, 2019 was the earliest date that products in the New Classes of Cannabis could be made available for sale.

In addition, if a holder of a processing licence chooses to process edible cannabis and food products on the same site, then the production, packaging, labelling, and storage of cannabis and the production, packaging, and labelling of food products will need to be conducted in separate buildings. All cannabis production is required to occur in a separate building from any food production.

Packaging and Labeling

The Cannabis Regulations set out strict requirements pertaining to the packaging and labelling of cannabis products. These requirements are intended to promote informed consumer choice and safe consumption and allow for the safe handling and transportation of cannabis, while also reducing the appeal of cannabis to youth.

The Cannabis Regulations require all cannabis products to be packaged in a manner that is tamperproof and child-resistant. Strict limits are also imposed on the use of logos, colours, graphics, and other special characteristics of packaging. For example, all-over package coverings must be clear, and the interior surface and exterior surface of any container in which a cannabis product is packaged must be one uniform colour. Cannabis package labels must include specific information, such as (i) product source information, including brand name, the class of cannabis, lot number, storage conditions, expiry date and the name, phone number and email of the licensed processor or cultivator, (ii) mandatory warnings, including rotating health warning messages on Health Canada's list of standard health warnings; (iii) a keep out of reach of children warning and the Health Canada standardized cannabis symbol; and (iv) information specifying THC and CBD content.

A cannabis product's brand name may only be displayed once on the principal display panel or, if there are separate principal display panels for English and French, only once on each principal display panel. It can be in any font style and any size, so long as it is equal to or smaller than the health warning message. The font must not be in metallic or fluorescent colour. In addition to the brand name, only one other brand element can be displayed. Such brand element must meet the same requirements noted above as the brand name, and if an image, it must be in a size equal to or smaller than the surface area of the standardized cannabis symbol.

Promotion

The Cannabis Act and Cannabis Regulations outline several prohibitions regarding the promotion of cannabis products. Subject to a few exceptions, all promotions of cannabis products are prohibited unless authorized by the Cannabis Act. The restriction on promotion includes promoting cannabis or a cannabis accessory, or any service related to cannabis, including: (i) by communicating information about price or distribution, (ii) by doing so in a manner in that there are reasonable grounds to believe could be appealing to young persons, (iii) by means of a testimonial or endorsement, or (iv) by evoking positive or negative emotions about a way of life such as one that includes glamour, recreation, excitement, vitality, or risk.

The Cannabis Act sets out certain limited exceptions to the general prohibition. These include: (i) promotion of price and availability is permitted at point of sale, (ii) informational or brand preference promotion distributed in accordance with the Cannabis Act, (iii) promotions to other licence holders, and (iv) by inclusion of brand elements on certain things permitted by the Cannabis Act.

While the above restrictions also apply to the New Classes of Cannabis, the Amending Regulations also prohibit certain representations and associations on products, their packages and labels and associated promotional activity, including: certain flavours in cannabis extracts (e.g. confectionary, dessert, soft drink, and energy drink); health or cosmetic benefits unless registered as a health product; energy value and nutrient content representations that go beyond those permitted in the list of ingredients and in the cannabis-specific nutrition facts table; statements reasonably likely to create the impression the edible cannabis or accessory is intended to meet particular dietary requirements; and promotion that could reasonably associate the cannabis, the cannabis accessory or the service related to cannabis with an alcoholic beverage, a tobacco product or a vaping product.

Import/Export Permits for Medical or Scientific Purposes

Part 10 of the Cannabis Regulations sets out the process by which a federally licensed entity may apply for an import or export permit for medical or scientific purposes, as set out in the Cannabis Regulations. Import and export permits will not be issued in respect of cannabis for adult recreational use. A permit must be obtained for each shipment of cannabis. An application for an import or export permit must contain specific information including the name and address of the holder, licence number and specifics of the particular shipment including intended use of the cannabis and specific shipment details. The Cannabis Regulations contain reporting requirements in respect of the import / export of cannabis in reliance on a permit issued under the Cannabis Regulations.

Provincial and Territorial Regulatory Framework for Retail of Recreational Cannabis

While the Cannabis Act provides for regulation of the commercial production of cannabis and related matters by the federal government, each province and territory of Canada may adopt its own laws governing the distribution, retail sale and consumption of cannabis and cannabis accessory products within the province or territory, permitting for example, provincial and territorial governments to set lower possession limit for individuals and higher age requirements. Currently each of the Canadian provincial and territorial jurisdictions has established a minimum age of 19, except for Québec and Alberta, where the minimum age is 21 and 18, respectively.

Each province and territory is responsible for regulating a retail distribution system for adult-use cannabis in their respective jurisdiction. All Canadian provinces and territories have implemented regulatory regimes for the distribution and retail sale of cannabis for recreational purposes within those jurisdictions, and retail models vary between jurisdictions. Provincial/territorial bodies act as intermediaries between entities licensed federally under the Cannabis Act and consumers, such bodies acting in some jurisdictions as exclusive cannabis wholesalers and distributors, and in some instances such bodies acting as exclusive retailers.

Some municipal and regional governments may also choose to impose additional requirements and regulations on the retail sale of recreational cannabis. In some provinces, municipal by-laws may restrict the number of recreational cannabis retail outlets that are permitted in a certain geographical area, or restrict the geographical locations wherein such retail outlets may be opened.

There is no assurance the Corporation will be able to efficiently navigate applicable regulatory frameworks and distribution models or conduct its intended business thereunder. See: "Risk Factors".

Ontario: Pursuant to the *Cannabis Control Act, 2017* (Ontario), the distribution and retail sale of recreational cannabis is managed through the Ontario Cannabis Retail Corporation ("OCRC"), under the oversight of the Alcohol and Gaming Commission of Ontario (the "AGCO"). Recreational cannabis has been sold on-line through the OCRC operated OCS platform as of October 17, 2018.

On October 17, 2018, the *Cannabis Licence Act*, 2018 (Ontario) became law and other legislation, including the *Cannabis Control Act*, 2017, the *Ontario Cannabis Retail Corporation Act*, 2017 and the *Liquor Control Act* were amended to create a private retail framework for the sale of recreational cannabis in Ontario. As of April 1, 2019, recreational cannabis has been available for sale by private retailers that operate brick-and-mortar stores licensed by the AGCO.

The recreational cannabis retail regulatory regime in Ontario has the following requirements and features:

- Private retailers are required to obtain both a retail operator licence and a retail store
 authorization. Retail store authorizations are only to be issued to persons holding a retail
 operator licence. Separate retail store authorizations are to be required for each cannabis retail
 store, but a licensed retail operator may hold more than one retail store authorization and
 operate multiple stores. Private retailers may sell cannabis in person, or online, with in-store
 pick up and/or home delivery, where available.
- The AGCO is the government entity responsible for issuing retail store authorizations for privately run recreational cannabis stores. Until December 13, 2019, a temporary cap of 25 retail store authorizations was imposed while cannabis supply stabilizes. On July 3, 2019, the Government of Ontario announced its plans for a second allocation of 50 additional cannabis retail store authorizations. The AGCO held a lottery draw for the allocation of 42 retail store authorizations. A separate process governed the allocation of eight retail store authorizations for those who wish to operate a store on a First Nations reserve. On March 2, 2020, the restrictions on the total number of store authorizations permitted in Ontario, and their regional distribution, was revoked. The AGCO has begun accepting applications for retail store authorizations from all interested applicants. There are currently 450 stores in Ontario.
- Retail store operators are only permitted to purchase cannabis from the OCRC, which may set a minimum price for cannabis or classes of cannabis.
- Every authorized cannabis retail store in Ontario must have a licensed retail manager. Anyone
 who supervises employees, oversees cannabis sales, manages compliance or has signing
 authority to purchase cannabis, enters into contracts or hires employees is required to have a
 cannabis retail manager licence.
- Federally licensed producers (and their affiliates) are limited to operating one retail cannabis store in the province, which must be located at the site listed on such producer's federal licence. A broad definition of affiliate is included in the Cannabis Regulations. An affiliate relationship exists if a corporation beneficially owns or controls voting shares, or securities that may be converted to voting shares, constituting more than 25% of voting rights. If a person, or group acting together, holds 50% voting control for the election of directors or market share of the corporation, they are considered affiliates. Additionally, an affiliate relationship may be established through involvement in a trust, partnership or joint venture, among others. The definition of affiliate may have the effect of restricting the ability of

federally licensed producers from effectively entering into the consumer retail market in Ontario.

- Federally licensed producers are prohibited from providing any material inducement to cannabis retailers for the purpose of increasing the sale of a particular type of cannabis.
- Municipalities and reserve band councils were permitted to opt out of the retail cannabis
 market by resolution. Municipalities had until January 22, 2019 to pass such by-laws, and
 several municipalities have formally opted-out of the retail market. Municipalities that opted
 out can later lift the prohibition on retail cannabis stores by subsequent resolution, which
 cannot be reversed at a later date.
- Municipalities may not pass bylaws providing for a further system of licensing over the retail sale of cannabis.

Manitoba: The Government of Manitoba has implemented a "hybrid model" for cannabis distribution, whereby supply is secured and tracked by the Manitoba Liquor and Lotteries Corp.; however, licensed private retail stores are also permitted to sell recreational cannabis.

Alberta: The Government of Alberta has implemented a cannabis framework providing for the purchase of cannabis products from private retailers that receive their products from a government-regulated distributor, the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission, similar to the distribution system currently in place for alcohol in the province. Only licensed retail outlets are permitted to sell cannabis with online sales run by the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission.

New Brunswick: All recreational cannabis is managed and sold through a network of tightly-controlled, stand-alone Cannabis NB stores managed by the Cannabis Management Corporation, a subsidiary of New Brunswick Liquor Corporation (the "**NBLC**") and is available for sale online through the Cannabis NB platform. The NBLC also controls the distribution and wholesale of cannabis in the province. The New Brunswick government had issued a request for proposals ("**RFP**") relating to privatization of the Cannabis NB operations. New Brunswick has discontinued the RFP process in late March 2021. Cannabis NB remains the only legal retailer of recreational cannabis in the province of New Brunswick.

Québec: All recreational cannabis is managed and sold through outlets of the Société québécoise du cannabis, a subsidiary of the Société des alcools du Québec, and its online site.

Newfoundland and Labrador: Recreational cannabis is sold through licensed private retail stores, with the crown-owned liquor corporation, the Newfoundland and Labrador Liquor Corp. (the "**NLC**"), issuing private retailer licences and overseeing the distribution to private sellers who may sell to consumers. The NLC also controls the possession, sale and delivery of cannabis, and sets prices. NLC is also the online retailer, although licences may later be issued to private interests.

Yukon: Yukon had initially limited the distribution and sale of recreational cannabis to government outlets and government-run online stores, but has since opened up its retail market to permit licensed private retailers in the territory. Cannabis retail licences are issued by the Cannabis Licensing Board. Authorized retailers must purchase cannabis from the Yukon Liquor Corporation, acting as the wholesaler and distributor in the territory.

Northwest Territories: The Northwest Territories Liquor Commission controls the importation and distribution of cannabis, whether through retail outlets or by mail order service run by the commission. Communities in the Northwest Territories are able to hold a plebiscite to prohibit cannabis, similar to the options currently available to restrict alcohol.

British Columbia: Recreational cannabis is sold through both public and licensed privately operated stores, with the provincial Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch handling wholesale distribution.

Saskatchewan: The Government of Saskatchewan implemented a framework in which both wholesale and retail recreational cannabis are conducted by the private sector and regulated by the Saskatchewan Liquor and Gaming Authority ("SLGA"). A number of retail permits have been issued to private stores. SLGA is currently accepting applications for retail permits, wholesale cannabis permits and federally licensed producer registrations. Permitted wholesalers can sell to permitted retailers and other permitted wholesalers but not to the general public. Wholesale operations must be physically located within Saskatchewan and product can only be sold and distributed within Saskatchewan. Further, only federally licensed producers registered with SLGA will be allowed to sell into the Saskatchewan market.

Nova Scotia: The Nova Scotia Liquor Corporation ("**NSLC**") is responsible for the regulation of cannabis in the province, and recreational cannabis is only sold publicly through government-operated storefronts and online sales. There is no private licensing of retail. The NSLC also controls the distribution and wholesale of cannabis in the province.

Prince Edward Island: Similar to Nova Scotia, Prince Edward Island requires cannabis to be sold publicly, through government stores and online, overseen by the Prince Edward Island Cannabis Management Corporation, who is also responsible for the distribution and wholesale of cannabis in the province. There is no private retail licensing in the province.

Nunavut: Nunavut allows for the sale of cannabis through both public and private retail and online. In Nunavut, a person can submit an application with the Nunavut Liquor and Cannabis Commission for a licence to operate a cannabis store, remote sales store, or cannabis lounge.

USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS

Available Funds and Principal Purposes

This is a non-offering Prospectus. The Corporation is not raising any funds in conjunction with this Prospectus and, accordingly, there are no proceeds to be raised by the Corporation pursuant to this Prospectus.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation has approximately \$4,200,000 in working capital and a cash balance of approximately \$2,000,000 and intends to allocate the foregoing funds for the next twelve months set below, however, it reserves discretion to allocate to other strategic, operational or other demands as and when they arise. The following table does not account for any potential revenue from sales of product during the next twelve months and includes fixed expenses including overhead and capital expenditures that are required to be made by the Corporation.

Use of Available Funds ⁽¹⁾	Amount
Costs related to public listing	\$200,000
Enterprise resource planning ("ERP") software system	\$150,000
General and administrative costs	
Wages, salaries and Director fees	\$300,000
Office and general expenses	\$100,000
• Professional fees	\$50,000
• Insurance	\$50,000
Repairs and maintenance	\$50,000
Marketing	\$50,000
Legal and accounting fees	\$200,000
Bank Debt Service Payments	\$900,000
Intercompany Debt Service Payments	\$400,000
Rent Revenue and Expense, Net	\$300,000
Total Use of Funds	\$2,850,000
Unallocated working capital ⁽²⁾	\$1,350,000
Total:	\$4,200,000

Notes:

(1) Additional variable operational expenses will be funded through revenue from sales of products. The variable operational expenses consist of costs associated with growing and processing cannabis for sale, including costs such as direct labour, supplies, utilities, lab analysis fees and shipping. The variable costs are calculated and incorporated in the per gram sale price of the Corporation's products.

(2) The cash portion of the unallocated working balance has been held in short-term, investment grade, interest-bearing securities, in government securities or in bank accounts at the discretion of management.

The Corporation anticipates an increase in spending in fiscal 2022 over previous years due to: a) increased professional fees related to being a public company, b) the commencement of rental fees to be paid on the Kingsville Facility and Leamington Facility, and c) a change in the repayment of debt obligations pursuant to the terms of the Bank Credit Facility from repayment of interest only in previous years to the repayment of principal and interest beginning in July 2021. It is anticipated that the available funds will be sufficient to achieve the Corporation's objectives and fixed overhead and capital expenditures over the next twelve months.

The Corporation has negative cash flow from operating activities and has historically incurred net losses. Although the Corporation anticipates it will have positive cash flow from operating activities in future periods, the Corporation cannot guarantee it will have cash flow positive status from operating activities in future periods. To the extent that the Corporation has negative operating cash flows in future periods, it may need to deploy a portion of its existing working capital to fund such negative cash flows. The Corporation will be required to raise additional funds through the issuance of additional equity securities, through loan financing, or other means, such as through partnerships with other companies and research and development reimbursements. There is no assurance that additional capital or other types of financing will be available if needed or that these financings will be on terms at least as favourable to the Corporation as those previously obtained. See "Risk Factors".

Business Objectives and Milestones

As of the date hereof, the Corporation anticipates the following milestones and business objectives, related approximate cost and the estimated time period in which each milestone is expected to occur.

The following are "forward-looking statements" and as such, there is no guarantee that such milestones will be achieved on the timelines indicated or at all. Forward-looking statements are based on management's current expectations and are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. See "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Information" and "Risk Factors".

Estimated

				Estimated	
				Remaining	Anticipated or Confirmed
Objective	Milestone	Status	Spend to Date	Spend	Quarter of Completion(1)
Implement new ERP system	Sign quote with deposit	Complete	\$20,000	\$ -	Q2 2021
·	Install hardware, train employees, full implementation	In Progress	\$ 30,000	\$ 150,000	Q3 2021
Sale and shipment of all product from first crop harvest	Execute first sales of cannabis	In Progress	N/A	N/A	Q3 2021
1	Ship last batch from the first crop	Not Started	N/A	N/A	Q3 2021
Harvest 4,800 kg of saleable dried cannabi	Harvest 2 nd Crop	In Progress	N/A	N/A	Q3 2021
sareaste arrea camast	Harvest 3 rd Crop	Not Started	N/A	N/A	Q4 2021
Select new genetic strains resulting from product development that consistently produces terpenes of 2%+, THC of 22%+	Ship 10 new strains to third party lab for analysis	In Progress	N/A	N/A	Q4 2021

Objective	Milestone	Status	Spend to Date	Estimated Remaining Spend	Anticipated or Confirmed Quarter of Completion ⁽¹⁾
and desired physical/scent appeal					
	Execute sales with a minimum of 6 customers for 250kg each	In Progress	N/A	N/A	Q3 2022

Note:

(1) All quarters are based on a calendar year-end, not the Corporation's fiscal year-end.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have not declared dividends on any of our shares in the past and we do not intend to pay any in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on the financial condition, business environment, operating results, capital requirements, any contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends and any other factors that the Board of Directors deems relevant.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following selected financial information has been derived from and is qualified in its entirety by the Annual Financial Statements and MD&A included in Schedule "A" to this Prospectus and the Interim Financial Statements and MD&A included in Schedule "B" to this Prospectus. The following should be read in conjunction with such financial statements and the related notes thereto. The Financial Statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The following sets out selected summary financial information of the Corporation for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 and for the three month period ended June 30, 2021:

	Three month period ended June 30, 2021 (unaudited) \$	Year ended March 31, 2021 (audited) \$	Year ended March 31, 2020 (audited) \$
Revenue	-	-	-
Total Expenses (Operating and	130,310	1,232,155	2,180,873
Other)			
Net income (loss)	130,310	(1,232,155)	(2,180,873)
Current assets	5,312,073	4,423,131	1,731,985
Total assets	29,280,038	25,110,324	17,607,726

	Three month period ended June 30, 2021 (unaudited)	Year ended March 31, 2021 (audited)	Year ended March 31, 2020 (audited)
Current liabilities	1,320,298	1,554,512	948,492
Total liabilities	17,636,298	14,846,565	8,738,053
Shareholders' equity (deficiency)	11,643,740	10,263,759	8,869,673

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Corporation's MD&A for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 is included in Schedule "A" to this Prospectus. The Corporation's MD&A for the three months ended June 30, 2021 is included in Schedule "B" to this Prospectus.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Common Shares

The authorized capital of the Corporation consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares. As of the date of this Prospectus, there are 121,632,019 Common Shares issued and outstanding. Holders of Common Shares are entitled to vote at meetings of shareholders, to receive any dividends declared by the Corporation, and to receive the remaining property of the Corporation upon dissolution. See also "Description of the Business—History".

Warrants

As of the date of this Prospectus, there are no warrants of the Corporation issued and outstanding.

Options

The Corporation adopted a stock option plan effective August 17, 2018 (the "Original Option Plan"). The Board approved the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan on June 8, 2021, which shall be put to the shareholders for approval at the next meeting of shareholders. See "Options to Purchase Common Shares" and "Executive Compensation – Elements of Compensation Program – Stock Option Plan." As of the date of this Prospectus, an aggregate of 10,133,000 stock options are outstanding, with each such option being exercisable for one Common Share at exercise prices ranging from \$0.25 to \$0.50 per share and with all such Options expiring on the date that is the third anniversary of the listing of the Corporation's Common Shares on the CSE. All stock options issued pursuant to the Original Plan will be continued on substantially the same terms under the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan. The Corporation has three legacy option grants under the Original Option Plan (the "Legacy Option Grants") that will be exercisable beyond one year following termination of employment, which does not comply with the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan. The Legacy Option Grants are exercisable until the date that is three years from the date of listing of the Corporation's Common Shares on the CSE. The Legacy Option Grants represent an aggregate total of

350,000 stock options, representing 3.39% of all stock options currently issued and outstanding. See "Executive Compensation – Elements of Compensation Program – Stock Option Plan."

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth the share capital of the Corporation as at the dates shown below. The table should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by the Interim Financial Statements.

Description	Authorized Capital	Outstanding as at March 31, 2021	Outstanding as at June 30, 2021	Outstanding as at the date of this Prospectus
Common Shares	Unlimited	171,681,566	121,632,019	121,632,019
Warrants	Unlimited	nil	nil	nil
Stock Options	Up to 10% of the outstanding Common Shares	10,154,440	10,333,000	10,333,000

OPTIONS TO PURCHASE COMMON SHARES

Incentive Stock Options

The Board of Directors has adopted the Stock Option Plan under which options may be granted to the Corporation's directors, officers, employees and consultants. See "Executive Compensation – Elements of Compensation Program – Stock Option Plan."

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation issued options pursuant to the Stock Option Plan as detailed in the following table (the "**Options**").

Optionees	Number of Individuals in Group	Number of Common Shares reserved under Option	Average exercise Price per Common Share	Expiration of Options
All current and past executive officers who are not also directors	-	-	-	-
All current and past directors	5	4,500,000	\$0.33	Third anniversary of public listing of Common Shares
All employees who are not also directors	9	3,690,000	\$0.36	Third anniversary of public listing of Common Shares

or executive officers All consultants	9	2,143,000	\$0.38	Third anniversary
who are not also directors or executive officers	·	2,4 22,4 14	****	of public listing of Common Shares
TOTAL	23	10,333,000	\$0.35	

PRIOR SALES

The following table summarizes details of the Common Shares issued by the Corporation during the 12-month period prior to the date of this Prospectus.

Date Of Issuance	Description of Transaction	Price per Security	Number of Securities
May 5, 2021	Common Shares	\$0.50	2,458,000
March 31, 2021	Common Shares	\$0.50	4,078,385
November 20, 2020	Common Shares	\$0.50	487,750

ESCROWED SECURITIES

Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, certain of the securities of the Corporation are subject to escrow as shown in the following table:

Class	Number of Securities Held in Escrow ⁽¹⁾	Percentage of Class
Common Shares	101,565,167	83.5%

Note:

(1) These Common Shares are held under the Escrow Agreement in accordance with NP 46-201 with the Escrow Agent.

NP 46-201 provides that all shares of an issuer owned or controlled by its Principals will be escrowed at the time of the issuer's initial public offering. At the time of its initial public offering, an issuer will be classified for the purposes of escrow as either an "exempt issuer", an "established issuer" or an "emerging issuer" as those terms are defined in NP 46-201. As the Corporation anticipates that its Common Shares will be listed on the CSE, it will be classified as an "emerging issuer". As an emerging issuer, the Escrow Agreement reflects the following automatic timed releases of the securities deposited in escrow with the Escrow Agent:

Date of Automatic Timed Release	Number of Escrowed Securities Released
On the Listing Date	1/10 of the escrowed securities
6 months from the Listing Date	1/6 of the remaining escrowed securities
12 months from the Listing Date	1/5 of the remaining escrowed securities
18 months from the Listing Date	1/4 of the remaining escrowed securities
24 months from the Listing Date	1/3 of the remaining escrowed securities
30 months from the Listing Date	1/2 of the remaining escrowed securities

Assuming there are no changes to the escrowed securities initially deposited and no additional escrowed securities are deposited, automatic timed release escrow applicable to the Corporation will result in a 10% release on the Listing Date, with the remaining escrowed securities being released in 15% tranches every six months thereafter.

The automatic timed release provisions under NP 46-201 pertaining to "established issuers" provide that 25% of each Principal's and shareholder's escrowed securities are released on the Listing Date, with an additional 25% being released in equal tranches at six month intervals over eighteen months. If, within eighteen months of the Listing Date, the Corporation meets the "established issuer" criteria as set out in NP 46-201, the escrowed securities will be eligible for accelerated release available for established issuers. In such a scenario, that number of escrowed securities that would have been eligible for release from escrow if the Corporation had been an "established issuer" on the Listing Date will be immediately released from escrow. The remaining escrowed securities would be released in accordance with the timed release provisions for established issuers, with all escrowed securities being released eighteen months from the Listing Date.

In addition to the above-noted securities deposited in escrow pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, a shareholder of the Corporation has deposited 3,000,000 Common Shares in escrow pursuant to a private escrow arrangement representing 2.47% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares with such Common Shares to be released as to 2,000,000 Common Shares on the first anniversary of the Corporation's listing on the CSE, and 1,000,000 on the second anniversary of the Corporation's listing on the CSE.

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of the date of this Prospectus, to the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Corporation, no person beneficially owns or exercises control or direction over Common Shares carrying more than 10% of the votes attached to Common Shares, except for the following:

		N C.C.	Percentage of
Name	Type of Ownership	Number of Common Shares Owned	Outstanding Shares ⁽¹⁾
Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. ⁽²⁾	Beneficial and of record	100,000,000	82.22%

Notes:

- (1) Calculated on a non-diluted basis.
- Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. is wholly-owned by Jamie D'Alimonte, who is Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Greenway, as to 50% and Carl Mastronardi, who is President and a Director of Greenway, as to 50%.

MANAGEMENT

The following table sets out, for each of our directors and executive officers, the person's name, age, province or state and country of residence, position with us, principal occupation and, if a director, the date on which the person became a director. Our directors are expected to hold office until our next annual general meeting of shareholders. Our directors are elected annually and, unless re-elected, retire from office at the end of the next annual general meeting of shareholders. As a group, the directors and

executive officers beneficially own, or control or direct, directly or indirectly, a total of 101,565,167 Common Shares, representing 83.5% of the Common Shares outstanding.

Directors and Executive Officers

Name and Province or State and Country of Residence	Age	Position with the Corporation	Director Since	Principal Occupation	Number of Securities Beneficially Owned Directly or Indirectly
Jamie D'Alimonte Leamington, Ontario, Canada	47	Chief Executive Officer and Director ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾⁽⁴⁾	2018	Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and Chief Executive Officer of the Del Fresco Group	50,000,000(8)
Carl Mastronardi Leamington, Ontario, Canada	62	President and Director ⁽¹⁾⁽⁶⁾	2018	President of the Corporation and President of the Del Fresco Group	50,000,000 ⁽⁸⁾
Darren Peddle Kingsville, Ontario, Canada	36	Chief Financial Officer and Director	2018	Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation and Chief Financial Officer of the Del Fresco Group	1,500,000
Martin Komsa Lasalle, Ontario, Canada	66	Director ⁽²⁾⁽⁵⁾⁽⁷⁾	2020	Retired executive in the financial services sector	65,167
Dennis Staudt Kingsville, Ontario, Canada	67	Director ⁽³⁾⁽⁴⁾⁽⁶⁾	2021	Vice President, Staudt Farms Limited	
Andrew Brown Vancouver, BC, Canada	36	Corporate Secretary	N/A	President of Lions Corporate Secretarial Services Limited	Nil.

Notes:

- (1) Co-chairman of the board.
- (2) Member of the Audit Committee.
- (3) Chair of Audit Committee.
- (4) Member of the Governance and Nomination Committee.
- (5) Chair of the Governance and Nomination Committee.
- (6) Member of the Executive Compensation Committee.
- (7) Chair of the Executive Compensation Committee.
- (8) Mr. D'Alimonte and Mr. Mastronardi control Sunrite as to 50% each and Sunrite is the registered owner of 100,000,000 Common Shares.

Biographies

The following are brief profiles of our executive officers and directors, including a description of each individual's principal occupation within the past five years.

Jamie D'Alimonte (47), Chief Executive Officer and Director (Co-chairman of the Board)

Mr. D'Alimonte has over 30 years of experience in agriculture, including managing multiple successful companies simultaneously. He is the Chief Executive Officer of the companies forming the Del Fresco Group, Head Grower of both Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. and Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd., and has helped grow small family businesses into industry leaders. Mr. D'Alimonte brings years of experience and skill in large scale greenhouse grown produce to Greenway.

Carl Mastronardi (62), President and Director (Co-chairman of the Board)

Mr. Mastronardi is a co-founder of Greenway, and has over 35 years of experience in the agricultural sector. He is also President of the companies forming the Del Fresco Group where he has been pivotal in the success of over 4 million sq/ft of greenhouse facilities.

Darren Peddle (36), Chief Financial Officer and Director

Mr. Peddle has almost a decade of high level financial and accounting experience, and has been a CPA since 2016. Throughout his career, Mr. Peddle has served in various financial positions within the agricultural sector and is now applying his expertise to the cannabis greenhouse sector. He has helped guide Greenway through the process of becoming a licensed cannabis nursery and licensed cannabis cultivator. He has experience with notable accounting firms, including KMPG LLP and HMID LLP. Mr. Peddle has a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Windsor and is a Chartered Professional Accountant.

Martin Komsa (66), Director

Mr. Komsa spent 41 years in the financial services and industrial sector. He began his career as a supervisor and rose to the position of President/CEO where he was instrumental in leading Windsor Family Credit Union (WFC) to become a financial services innovator with over \$5 billion in managed assets. He gained valuable experience in the area of Human Resource Management when he worked in the steel industry in charge of management & manpower training, succession planning & leadership development. Mr Komsa's vision within the financial service sector allowed WFCU to become a leader in customer service, human resource management and corporate governance. He has served on many boards and committees within the philanthropic, educational, health and public sectors where his leadership skills allowed him to be appointed to various Chair and Vice Chair positions, including the University of Windsor, Chamber of Commerce, Economic Development Commission and Credit Union Managers Association. Mr. Komsa has received numerous national and international awards recognizing his leadership and community involvement. He holds an Honours Degree in Business Administration from Windsor University, and an Honorary Doctor of Laws Degree from the University of Windsor.

Dennis Staudt (67), Director

Mr. Staudt has over 40 years experience providing business advice to a number of private companies in Southwestern Ontario, primarily in the manufacturing and greenhouse sectors. Mr. Staudt spent the majority of his career with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"), including 22 years as a partner in the Audit and Assurance Group. Following his retirement from PwC, Mr. Staudt served on the Board of Directors of Aphria Inc. (TSX: APH) from July 2014 to September 2018. He currently sits on the Board of Directors of HAVN Life Sciences Inc. (CSE: HAVN) (FSE: 5NP), a biotechnology company and is Vice President of Staudt Farms Limited, a family owned farming operation. Mr. Staudt is a Chartered Professional Accountant (CPA, CA)(Ontario) and a Certified Public Accountant (CPA, Illinois).

Andrew Brown (36), Corporate Secretary

Mr. Brown is President of Lions Corporate Secretarial Services Limited, a full-service corporate secretarial group that provides corporate secretarial and corporate governance services for public companies. Mr. Brown has over 10 years of experience working in the public markets and has served as Corporate Secretary for multiple publicly traded companies (TSX Venture Exchange and CSE-listed). Mr. Brown has completed his CSC and is fluent in Portuguese.

Corporate Cease Trade Orders

None of our directors or executive officers has, within the 10 years prior to the date of this Prospectus, been a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company (including us) that, while such person was acting in that capacity (or after such person ceased to act in that capacity but resulting from an event that occurred while that person was acting in such capacity) was the subject of a cease trade order, an order similar to a cease trade order, or an order that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation, in each case for a period of more than 30 consecutive days.

Corporate Bankruptcies

None of our directors, executive officers or shareholders holding a sufficient number of securities to affect materially the control of the Corporation, has, within the 10 years prior to the date of this Prospectus, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or comprise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets, been a director or executive officer of any company, that, while that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or comprise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets.

Penalties or Sanctions

No director or executive officer or shareholder holding sufficient securities of the Corporation to affect materially the control of the Corporation has:

- been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation
 or by a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a
 securities regulatory authority; or
- been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision.

Conflicts of Interest

Each of Jamie D'Alimonte (Chief Executive Officer and a Director), Carl Mastronardi (President and a Director), and Darren Peddle (Chief Financial Officer and a Director), hold the same titles with respect to each of the other companies forming the Del Fresco Group. The Del Fresco Group and the Corporation share premises for their respective operations and have a number of agreements in place to govern their relationship including the following:

- 1. The Sunrite Lease;
- 2. The Leamington Facility Lease;
- 3. The Kingsville Facility Lease;
- 4. The Sunrite Loan Agreement; and
- 5. The Temporary Employee Supply Agreements.

(See "Description of the Business – History", and "Description of the Business -Employees"). Consequently, there are potential inherent conflicts of interest in the aforementioned directors and officers acting as directors and officers of the Corporation. Although the officers and directors are engaged in other business activities, the Corporation anticipates they will devote a significant amount of time to the affairs of the Corporation.

The Corporation's officers and directors are now and may in the future become shareholders, officers or directors of other companies, which may be formed for the purpose of engaging in business activities similar to the Corporation's. Accordingly, additional direct conflicts of interest may arise in the future with respect to such individuals acting on behalf of us or other entities. Moreover, additional conflicts of interest may arise with respect to opportunities which come to the attention of such individuals in the performance of their duties or otherwise. Currently, the Corporation does not have a right of first refusal pertaining to opportunities that come to their attention and may relate to our business operations.

The Corporation's officers and directors are, so long as they are our officers or directors, subject to the restriction that all opportunities contemplated by our plan of operation which come to their attention, either in the performance of their duties or in any other manner, will be considered opportunities of, and be made available to the Corporation and the companies that they are affiliated with on an equal basis. A breach of this requirement will be a breach of the fiduciary duties of the officer or director. If the Corporation or the companies with which the officers and directors are affiliated both desire to take

advantage of an opportunity, then said officers and directors would abstain from negotiating and voting upon the opportunity. However, all directors may still individually take advantage of opportunities if the Corporation should decline to do so. Except as set forth above, the Corporation has not adopted any other conflict of interest policy with respect to such transactions.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Introduction

The following discussion describes the significant elements of our executive compensation program, with particular emphasis on the process for determining compensation payable to the Corporation's CEO and CFO and the Corporation's next most highly-compensated executive officer whose total compensation was more than \$150,000 (collectively, the "Named Executive Officers" or "NEOs"). The NEO's of the Corporation are Jamie D'Alimonte (Chief Executive Officer), and Darren Peddle (Chief Financial Officer).

Overview

Our Board of Directors makes decisions regarding all forms of compensation, including salaries, bonuses and equity incentive compensation for our CEO, CFO and other executive officers, as well as approves corporate goals and objectives relevant to their compensation.

Compensation Objectives

Our compensation practices are designed to retain, motivate and reward our executive officers for their performance and contribution to our long-term success. The Corporation seeks to compensate executive officers by combining short-term and long-term cash and equity incentives. It also seeks to reward the achievement of corporate and individual performance objectives and to align executive officers' incentives with the Corporation's performance. The Corporation seeks to tie individual goals to the area of the senior executive officer's primary responsibility. These goals may include the achievement of specific financial or business development goals. Corporate performance goals are based on our financial performance during the applicable financial year.

In order to achieve our growth objectives, attracting and retaining the right team members is critical. A key part of this is a well-thought out compensation plan that attracts high performers and compensates them for continued achievements. Greenway has established the Executive Compensation Committee, comprised of Carl Mastronardi, Martin Komsa, and Dennis Staudt. The Executive Compensation Committee meets regularly to review and recommend to the Board the appointment and compensation of, and the approval of the terms of employment of, the Chief Executive Officer and all other senior executives of the Corporation.

Many of the Corporation's team members participate in the Stock Option Plan, driving retention and ownership. Communicating clear and concrete criteria and process for merit-based increases and bonuses will also motivate the entire team to achieve individual and corporate goals.

Elements of Compensation Program

Our executive compensation consists primarily of three elements: base salary, annual bonuses and long-term equity incentives.

Base Salary

Base salaries for executive officers are established based on the scope of their responsibilities and their prior relevant experience, taking into account compensation paid by other companies in the industry for similar positions and the overall market demand for such executives at the time of hire. The Corporation does not actively benchmark its compensation to other companies, but has reviewed the public disclosure available for other comparable medical marijuana companies to assist in determining the competitiveness of base salary, bonuses, benefits and stock options paid to the executive officers of the Corporation. An executive officer's base salary is determined by reviewing the executive officer's other compensation to ensure that the executive officer's total compensation is in line with the Corporation's overall compensation philosophy.

Base salaries are reviewed annually and increased for merit reasons, based on the executive's success in meeting or exceeding individual objectives and/or for market competitiveness. Additionally, base salaries can be adjusted as warranted throughout the year to reflect promotions or other changes in the scope or breadth of an executive's role or responsibilities, as well as for market competitiveness.

Bonus Plans

Our compensation program includes eligibility for annual incentive cash bonuses. The range of potential bonuses is currently determined at the Board's sole discretion. NEO bonuses in the future may include corporate and financial performance targets, as well as personal performance objectives that are determined by the Board, which may include the implementation of new strategic initiatives, the development of innovations, teambuilding, the ability to manage the costs of the business and other factors. The mix between corporate and financial performance targets and personal performance objectives and the resulting bonus entitlements vary for each NEO.

Stock Option Plan

On June 8th, 2021 the Board adopted the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan to be approved by the shareholders at the next meeting of shareholders scheduled for a time prior to filing of the final prospectus. The Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan replaces the Original Option Plan and Options granted pursuant to the Original Plan will be continued on substantially the same terms under the provisions of the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan.

The Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan is a rolling 10% stock option plan with an aggregate of 10,333,000 Options currently issued and outstanding. The Board of Directors is responsible for administering the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan.

The purpose of the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan is to (i) provide directors, officers, consultants and key employees of the Corporation with additional incentive; (ii) encourage stock ownership by such persons; (iii) encourage such persons to remain with the Corporation; and (iv) attract

new directors, employees and officers, among other purposes. As a rolling stock option plan, the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan will require shareholder approval on an annual basis.

The Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan provides that the aggregate number of Common Shares that may be issued upon the exercise of options cannot exceed 10% of the number of Common Shares issued and outstanding from time to time. As a result, any increase in the issued and outstanding Common Shares will result in an increase in the number of Common Shares available for issuance under the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan.

The number of Common Shares reserved for issue to any one person pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan may not exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares at the date of such grant, unless the Corporation has obtained approval by a majority of the votes cast by the shareholders eligible to vote at a shareholders' meeting, excluding votes attaching to Common Shares beneficially owned by insiders and their associates. The number of Common Shares issuable to (i) any one consultant, or (ii) parties providing investor relations services, in any 12-month period, cannot exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares.

Options granted under the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan will have an exercise price of not less than the closing price of the Corporation's shares on the CSE on the day prior to the date of the grant, subject to any discount that may be applied pursuant to the policies of the CSE or the stock exchange the Common Shares are then listed on.

Compensation of Named Executive Officers and Directors

The following table sets forth compensation for each NEO of the Corporation and each director of the Corporation for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021. The Corporation currently does not have a standard arrangement pursuant to which directors are compensated. All directors are reimbursed for their respective out of pocket expenses in relation to their attendance at board of director meetings and committee meetings. Board members may be compensated for their services at the discretion of the Board.

Types of compensation excluding compensation securities							
Name and	Year	Salary, consulting fee, retainer or commission	Bonus	Committee or meeting fees	Value of perquisites	Value of all other compensation	Total Compensation
principal position		(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
Jamie D'Alimonte CEO and Director	2021	-	ı	-	-	-	-
	2020	-	-	-	-	-	-
Darren Peddle CFO and Director	2021	60,000	-	-	-	-	60,000
	2020	26,500	-	-	-	-	26,500
Carl Mastronardi	2021	-	-	-	-	-	-

Types of compensation excluding compensation securities							
Name and	Year	Salary, consulting fee, retainer or commission	Bonus	Committee or meeting fees	Value of perquisites	Value of all other compensation	Total Compensation
principal position		(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
President and Director	2020	-	-	-	-	-	-
Martin Komsa	2021	9,667	-	-	-	5,959	15,626
Director ⁽³⁾	2020	1,500	-	-	-	1,625	3,125
Dennis Staudt Director ⁽⁴⁾	2021	4,167	-	-	-	-	4,167
	2020	-	-	-	-	-	-
Konrad Pimiskern Director ⁽⁵⁾	2021	112,500	3,585	-	-	-	116,085
	2020	187,500	18,435	-	-	7,400	213,335

Notes:

- Mr. D'Alimonte and Mr. Mastronardi do not receive any compensation for their director positions. Neither are receiving any compensation until fiscal 2022 in respect of their positions as either a director or an officer.
- (2) Mr. Peddle received a partial salary of \$60,000 annually for both fiscal 2021 and 2020 in respect of his position as CFO, which commenced mid October 2019. Mr. Peddle did not receive any compensation in respect of his position as a director.
- (3) Mr. Komsa commenced his position as independent director on January 1, 2020. His initial cash retainer was \$6,000 annually. On March 1st, 2021, his cash retainer was increased to \$50,000 annually.
- (4) Mr. Staudt commenced his position as independent director on March 1, 2021. His annual cash retainer is \$50,000.
- (5) Mr. Pimiskern resigned from the Board and as Senior Vice President, Corporate Development effective December 15, 2020. He did not receive compensation for his role as a director.

Stock Options and Other Compensation Securities

The following table sets forth all compensation securities granted or issued to each director and NEO of the Corporation in the most recently completed financial year for services provided or to be provided, directly or indirectly to the Corporation:

Compensation Securities							
Name and	Type of Compensation Security	Number of compensation securities, number of underlying securities, and % of class	Date of issue or grant	Issue, conversion or exercise price	Closing price of security or underlying security on date of grant	Closing price of security or underlying security at year end	Expiry date
principal position			(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
Jamie D'Alimonte CEO and	Options	-	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Director	Options	-%					
Carl Mastronardi President and	Options	-	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Director		-%					
Darren Peddle CFO and	Options	-	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Director		-%					
	Shares	9,750,(1)					
		0.008 %	Nov. 20, 2020	\$0.50	N/A	N/A	N/A
Martin Komsa Director							
	Shares	5,417 ⁽¹⁾	March 31, 2021				
		0.0044 %	Water 31, 2021	\$0.50	N/A	N/A	N/A
Dennis Staudt Director	Options	500,000	March 1, 2021	0.50	N/A	N/A	Third anniversary of public listing
		4.8%					of Common Shares
Konrad Pimiskern Director ⁽²⁾	Options	-	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
		-%					

Notes:

- (1) As part of Mr. Komsa's compensation he was issued 13,000 Common Shares annually at a deemed price of \$0.50 per share commencing on January 1, 2020. The Common Shares were not issued as part of an equity compensation plan. The issuances represent compensation shares earned from January 2020 to February 2021. On March 1st, 2021, his retainer was revised to \$50,000 annually with no compensation shares payable.
- (2) Mr. Pimiskern resigned from the Board and as Senior Vice President, Corporate Development effective December 15, 2020. He did not receive compensation for his role as a director.

In August 2018, Mr D'Alimonte, Mr. Mastronardi, and Mr. Peddle were each issued options to purchase up to 1,000,000 Common Shares, which vested immediately, with an exercise price of \$0.25 per share and expiring on the third anniversary date of the listing date of the Common Shares on a recognized stock exchange. No additional equity compensation has been granted to the NEOs.

In January 2020 (the prior fiscal year), Mr. Komsa was granted options to purchase up to 1,000,000 Common Shares, which vested in full on December 20, 2020, with an exercise price of \$0.50 per share and expiring on the third anniversary date of the listing date of the Common Shares on a recognized stock exchange. Per a previous directorship agreement, Mr. Komsa earned 15,167 Common Shares for services rendered at a deemed price of \$0.50 per share. The director agreement with Mr. Komsa was amended for to provide for increased cash compensation and no additional equity compensation commencing March 1, 2021.

In March 2021, Mr. Staudt was granted options to purchase up to 500,000 Common Shares, with 25% vested and the remainder to vest in equal quarterly instalments, with an exercise price of \$0.50 per share and expiring on the third anniversary date of the listing date of the Common Shares on a recognized stock exchange.

No directors or NEOs exercised any of their Options in the most recently completed financial year.

Employee Agreements and Termination and Change of Control Benefits

Each of the NEOs has entered into an employment agreement with the Corporation.

Mr. D'Alimonte's employment agreement provides for a base salary of \$75,000 per annum, a discretionary bonus, and a discretionary grant of options. Mr. D'Alimonte's employment agreement is effective June 1, 2021, however payment of his salary will not commence until a mutually agreeable date between the Corporation and Mr. D'Alimonte, such date not to be later than October 1st, 2021.

Mr. Peddle's employment agreement provides for a base salary of \$110,000 per annum, a discretionary annual bonus and discretionary grants of stock options. Mr. Peddle's agreement is effective June 1, 2021.

The employment agreements for each of the NEOs have substantially similar terms with respect to termination and change of control benefits.

Upon termination without cause, the NEOs are entitled to receive twelve (12) months' prior written notice, or payment of a lump sum in lieu of such notice, or any combination thereof.

Each NEO may resign from his employment at any time upon providing four (4) weeks' prior written notice (the "Resignation Notice Period") to the Corporation (the "Resignation Right"). In the event the Corporation does not wish to employ the NEO until the expiry of the Resignation Notice Period, the Corporation may, at its sole discretion, waive in whole or in part its decision to continue to employ by providing payment in lieu until the expiry of the Resignation Notice Period. The Corporation will also provide the NEO with any accrued and outstanding salary and vacation pay.

In the event that there is a Change in Control (as defined below) and within 90 days of such Change of Control, either (i) the NEO is terminated without cause; or (ii) there results in a material and adverse change by the Corporation in the NEO's function, duties or responsibilities, without the NEO's written consent, which change would cause the NEO's position with the Corporation to become one of less responsibility, importance or scope from the position (including changes in title) as described in in the employment agreement, the NEO, within thirty (30) days thereafter, may give notice to terminate his employment, and as a result, the NEO shall be entitled to an amount equal to (A) six (6) months of salary if the Change of Control occurs within six (6) months after the effective date of the employment agreement, or if the Change of Control occurs thereafter, then one (1) year of salary, in each case payable in a lump sum within 15 days of such notice; and (B) to the immediate vesting of all the Options held by the NEO. In the event there is a Change in Control with no such adverse and material change as described in the preceding paragraph, the NEO's right to terminate employment shall be limited to the Resignation Right.

For the purposes of this section, a "Change in Control" shall have occurred if, during the term of the employment agreement, in any of the following cases,

- i. any corporation or persons, alone or acting in concert, acquires fifty percent (50%) or more of the then outstanding voting shares of the Corporation or otherwise acquires the power to control the board of directors of the Corporation of as a result of a take-over bid, tender offer or exchange offer or similar transaction; or
- ii. the shareholders of the Corporation approve a definitive agreement:
 - a. to merge or consolidate the Corporation with or into another corporation or other entity in a transaction in which the holders of voting shares of the Corporation will not be the holders of voting shares in the surviving corporation which represents sufficient voting shares to elect a majority of the directors of the board of directors or otherwise be entitled to elect a majority of the directors; or
 - b. to sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the Corporation's assets to any corporation, person, or other entity,
 - c. and such definitive agreement is consummated.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee Charter, Composition and Relevant Education and Experience

The Audit Committee is governed by its charter that is attached as Schedule "C" to this Prospectus.

National Instrument 52-110 - Audit Committees ("NI 52-110") requires the Corporation, as a venture issuer, to disclose annually certain information concerning the constitution of its audit committee (the "Audit Committee") and its relationship with its independent auditor, as set forth in the following.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The following are the members of the Audit Committee of the Corporation:

Jamie D'Alimonte	Not-Independent	Financially literate ⁽¹⁾
Martin Komsa	Independent ⁽¹⁾	Financially literate ⁽¹⁾
Dennis Staudt	Independent ⁽¹⁾	Financially literate ⁽¹⁾

Note:

(1) As defined by sections 1.4 and 1.6 of NI 52-110.

Relevant Education and Experience

For the purposes of NI 52-110, an individual is financially literate if he or she has the ability to read and understand a set of financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the issuer's financial statements. All members of the Audit Committee have experience reviewing financial statements and dealing with related accounting and auditing issues. The education and experience of each member of the Audit Committee relevant to the performance of his duties as a member of the Audit Committee can be found under the heading "Biographies".

Audit Committee Oversight

At no time since the commencement of the Corporation's most recently completed financial year was a recommendation of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor not adopted by the Board.

Reliance on Certain Exemptions

At no time has the Corporation relied on the exemption in Section 2.4 of NI 52-110 (De Minimis Non-audit Services), or an exemption from NI 52-110, in whole or in part, granted under Part 8 of NI 52-110.

Exemption for Venture Issuers

The Corporation is a "venture issuer" as defined in NI 52-110 and is relying on Part 5 (Reporting Obligations) of NI 52-110.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee has authority to engage and communicate with advisors and professionals for non-audit services.

External Auditors Service Fees

The aggregate fees billed by the Corporation's external auditors for the financial years ended March 31, 2020 and 2021 for audit fees are as follows:

	Year ended March 31, 2021	Year ended March 31, 2020
Audit Fees ⁽¹⁾	\$50,000	\$28,000
Audit-Related Fees ⁽²⁾	-	-
Tax Fees ⁽³⁾	\$5,000	\$4,000
All Other Fees ⁽⁴⁾	-	-

Notes:

- (1) Audit fees consist of fees for the audit of our Annual Financial Statements or services that are normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.
- (2) Audit-related fees are fees for assurance and related services related to the performance of the audit or review of the Annual Financial Statements that are not reported under "Audit Fees". These include due diligence for business acquisitions, audit and accounting consultations regarding business acquisitions, and other attest services not required by statute.
- (3) Tax fees, tax planning, tax advice and various taxation matters.
- (4) All other fees include the aggregate fees billed for products and services provided by the Corporation's external auditor, other than "Audit fees", "Audit-related fees" and "Tax fees" above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

National Policy 58-201 - Corporate Governance Guidelines ("NP 58-201") establishes corporate governance guidelines which apply to all public companies. The Corporation has reviewed its own corporate governance practices in light of these guidelines. National Instrument 58-101 - Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices ("NI 58-101") mandates disclosure of corporate governance practices which disclosure is as set out below.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of five persons, two of whom the Corporation believes to be independent based upon the tests for independence set forth in NI 52-110, being Martin Komsa and Dennis Staudt. The other three directors, Jamie D'Alimonte, Darren Peddle, and Carl Mastronardi, are not independent directors as they also serve as officers of the Corporation.

NP 58-201 suggests that the board of directors of reporting issuers should be constituted with a majority of individuals who qualify as "independent" directors. An "independent" director is a director who has no direct or indirect material relationship with the relevant company. A material relationship is a relationship that could, in the view of the board of directors, reasonably interfere with the exercise of a director's independent judgment. In addition, the independent judgment of the board in carrying out its responsibilities is the responsibility of all directors. The Corporation has established a Governance and Nominating Committee comprised of three directors, two of whom are independent. Following

listing on the CSE, the Governance and Nominating Committee intends to nominate additional independent directors so that the Board will be comprised of a majority of independent directors.

The Board of Directors facilitates independent supervision of Management through meetings of the Board and through frequent informal discussions among independent members of the Board and Management. In addition, the Board has access to the Corporation's external auditors, legal counsel and to any of the Corporation's officers.

The board of directors have a stewardship responsibility to supervise the management of and oversee the conduct of the business of the relevant company, provide leadership and direction to management, evaluate management, set policies appropriate for the business of the company and approve corporate strategies and goals.

The day-to-day management of the business and affairs of the Corporation is delegated by the Board to the senior officers of the Corporation. The Board will give direction and guidance through the President and CEO to Management and will keep Management informed of its evaluation of the senior officers in achieving and complying with goals and policies established by the Board.

The Board recommends nominees to the shareholders for election as directors, and immediately following each annual general meeting appoints an Audit Committee.

The Board exercises its independent supervision over Management by its policies that (a) periodic meetings of the Board be held to obtain an update on significant corporate activities and plans; and (b) all material transactions of the Corporation are subject to prior approval of the Board. To facilitate open and candid discussion among its independent directors, such directors are encouraged to communicate with each other directly to discuss ongoing issues pertaining to the Corporation.

Participation of Directors in Other Reporting Issuers

Other than as set out below, none of the directors of the Corporation are currently serving as directors of other reporting issuers.

• Dennis Staudt currently sits on the Board of Directors of HAVN Life Sciences Inc. (CSE: HAVN) (FSE: 5NP);

Orientation and Continuing Education

While the Corporation does not have formal orientation and training programs, orientation of new members of the Board is conducted by informal meetings with members of the Board, briefings by Management, and the provision of copies of or access to the Corporation's documents.

The Corporation has not adopted formal policies respecting continuing education for Board members. Board members are encouraged to communicate with management, legal counsel, auditors and consultants, to keep themselves current with industry trends and developments and changes in legislation with management's assistance, and to attend related industry seminars and visit the Corporation's operations. Board members have full access to the Corporation's records.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Board has found that the fiduciary duties placed on individual directors by governing corporate legislation and the common law, and the restrictions placed by the OBCA on an individual director's participation in decisions of the board in which the director has an interest, have helped to ensure that the Board of Directors operates independently of Management and in the best interests of the Corporation.

Under corporate legislation, a director is required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of a company and exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. In addition, if a director of a company also serves as a director or officer of another company engaged in similar business activities to the first company, that director must comply with the conflict of interest provisions of the OBCA, as well as the relevant securities regulatory instruments, in order to ensure that directors exercise independent judgment in considering transactions and agreements in respect of which a director or officer has a material interest. Any interested director would be required to declare the nature and extent of his interest and would not be entitled to vote at meetings of directors that evoke such a conflict.

In addition, the Board has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics which will be effective as of listing on the CSE, which outlines a set of ethical standards by which each director, officer, employee, consultant and contractor of the Corporation should conduct his or her business.

Nomination of Directors

The Corporation has established a Governance and Nominating Committee consisting of three directors, the majority of which have been determined by our Board to be independent within the meaning of NI 52 -110, which is responsible for reviewing, overseeing, and evaluating our corporate and nominating policies. Our Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is currently comprised of Mr. Komsa, who acts as chair of this committee, Mr. Staudt and Mr. D'Alimonte.

The Board has adopted a written charter setting forth the purpose, composition, authority and responsibility of our Governance and Nominating Committee. The Governance and Nominating Committee's Purpose is to assist the Board in, among other things:

- Developing corporate governance guidelines and principles and providing governance leadership;
- Identifying and recommending individuals qualified to be nominated as members of the Board:
- Reviewing the size and composition of the Board committees; and
- Evaluating the performance and effectiveness of the Board and Board committees.

Compensation

The Corporation has established an Executive Compensation Committee composed of three members of the Board, two of whom are independent directors. The Executive Compensation Committee meets periodically and recommends to the Board compensation policies and guidelines for senior executives

of the Corporation. The Board conducts reviews with regard to directors' and officers' compensation at least once a year. For information regarding the steps taken to determine compensation for the directors and the executive officers, see "Executive Compensation" herein.

Other Board Committees

In addition to the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has established the Executive Compensation Committee and the Governance and Nominating Committee.

Assessments

The Board monitors the adequacy of information given to directors, communication between the Board and management and the strategic direction and processes of the Board and committees. On an ongoing annual basis, the Board assesses the performance of the Board as a whole, each of the individual directors and each committee of the Board in order to satisfy itself that each is functioning effectively.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

None of the Corporation's directors or officers or any of their respective associates is indebted to the Corporation or has been subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Corporation.

RISK FACTORS

The following information is a summary only of certain risk factors and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, and must be read in conjunction with, the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus. These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones the Corporation is facing. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Corporation, or that it currently deems immaterial, may also impair its operations. If any such risks actually occur, the business, financial condition, liquidity and results of the Corporation's operations could be materially adversely affected.

An investment in securities of the Corporation should only be made by persons who can afford a significant or total loss of their investment.

Ongoing Impact of COVID-19

The novel coronavirus commonly referred to as "COVID-19" was identified in December 2019 in Wuhan, China. On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak a global health emergency, and on March 11, 2020, the spread of COVID-19 was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization. The outbreak has spread throughout Europe, the Middle East and North America, causing companies and various international jurisdictions to impose restrictions such as quarantines, business closures and travel restrictions. While these effects are expected to be temporary, the duration of the business disruptions internationally and related financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. The rapid development of the COVID-19 pandemic and the measures being taken by governments and private parties to respond to it are extremely fluid. While the Corporation has continuously sought to assess the potential impact of the pandemic on its financial and

operating results, any assessment is subject to extreme uncertainty as to probably, severity and duration.

The development and operation of the Corporation's business is dependent on labour inputs which could be adversely disrupted by the ongoing impact of COVID-19. While it is difficult to predict the impact of COVID-19 on the Corporation's business, measures taken by the Canadian and Ontario governments and voluntary measures undertaken by the Corporation with a view to the safety of the Corporation's employees, may adversely impact the Corporation's business, for instance by impeding the labour required to cultivate, process, market and distribute the Corporation's products and disrupting the Corporation's critical supply chains. In addition, while cannabis retail has been declared an essential service in many provinces, sales volumes of cannabis may be adversely impacted by consumer "social distancing" behaviours. The Corporation's Leamington Facility and Kingsville Facility have both implemented precautionary measures to ensure the safety of the staff and product, including limiting visits to the site to essential personnel only, ensuring proper protocols around sanitation, mask usage and physical distancing, and placing potentially exposed employees in selfquarantine for the appropriate period. The Corporation continues to dynamically monitor developments in order to adapt and respond in order to protect the health and safety of the Corporation's employees and the best interests of the Corporation, and is in the process of developing return to work protocols for the anticipated easing of provincial pandemic restrictions over the coming months.

Risks Relating to the Corporation's Business

The Corporation's ability to raise required additional capital through the sale of equity or debt instruments or the factoring of receivables or otherwise.

The Corporation's available funds are expected to fund operations until at least July 2022, and possibly beyond, at which time the Corporation will require additional capital to repay its debt obligations that are due and to fund operations. There can be no assurance that such financing may be available or on terms that are acceptable. To date, the Corporation has relied primarily on a mix of private placements of securities, traditional bank lending, and inter-company transactions with the Del Fresco Group in order to raise required capital. There has been a marked cooling off of activity in the Canadian equity capital markets for Canadian Licensed Producers, and the Corporation's ability to raise equity capital may be adversely impacted. The market for debt capital has likewise tightened. These factors may adversely impact the Corporation's ability to raise debt capital. The Corporation's inability to raise such capital could result in the delay or indefinite postponement of its current business objectives or in its inability to continue to carry on its business.

The Corporation has a limited operating history.

The Corporation has a very limited history of operations and as a start-up company, its efforts to grow its business may be more costly than it expects and it may not be able to increase its revenue enough to offset higher operating expenses. As such, the Corporation is subject to many risks common to such enterprises, including under-capitalization, cash shortages, limitations with respect to personnel, financial and other resources and limited revenues. There is no assurance that the Corporation will be successful in achieving a return on shareholders' investment and the likelihood of the Corporation's success must be considered in light of its early stage of operations.

The Corporation may incur significant losses in the future for a number of reasons, including as a result of unforeseen expenses, difficulties, complications and delays, the other risks described in Prospectus and other unknown events. The amount of future net losses will depend, in part, on the growth of its future expenses and its ability to generate revenue. Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with producing cannabis and cannabis-derived products, the Corporation is unable to accurately predict when, or if, it will be able to achieve profitability. Even if it achieves profitability in the future, it may not be able to sustain profitability in subsequent periods. If the Corporation is unable to achieve and sustain profitability, the market price of its common shares may significantly decrease and its ability to raise capital, expand its business or continue its operations may be impaired.

The Corporation may be unable to achieve revenue growth and development.

The Corporation is an early stage company attempting to grow its business. The Corporation's ability to grow will depend on a number of factors, many of which are beyond its control, including, but not limited to, the availability of sufficient capital on suitable terms, changes in laws and regulations respecting the production of cannabis products, competition from other entities licenced under the Cannabis Act, its ability to recruit and retain sufficient experienced personnel and its ability to manage complex international operations. In addition, the Corporation is subject to a variety of business risks generally associated with developing companies. Future development and expansion could place significant strain on the Corporation's management personnel and likely will require the Corporation to recruit additional management personnel, and there is no assurance that it will be able to do so. As its operations grow in size, scope and complexity and as it identifies and pursues new opportunities, the Corporation may need to increase in scale its infrastructure (financial, management, informational, personnel and otherwise).

In addition, the Corporation will need to effectively execute on business opportunities and continue to build on and deploy its corporate development and marketing assets as well as access sufficient new capital, as may be required. The ability to successfully complete acquisitions and to capitalize on other growth opportunities may redirect its limited resources and require expansion of its infrastructure. This will require the Corporation to commit financial, operational and technical resources in advance of an increase in the volume of business, with no assurance that the volume of business will increase. There can be no assurance the Corporation will be able to respond adequately or quickly enough to the changing demands that material expansion will impose on management, team members and existing infrastructure, and changes to its operating structure may result in increased costs or inefficiencies that it cannot anticipate. Changes as the Corporation grows may have a negative impact on its operations, and cost increases resulting from its inability to effectively manage its growth could adversely impact its profitability. In addition, continued growth could also strain the Corporation's ability to maintain reliable service levels for its clients, develop and approve its operational, financial and management controls, enhance its reporting systems and procedures and recruit, train and retain highly-skilled personnel.

Failure to effectively manage growth could result in difficulty or delays in servicing clients, declines in quality or client satisfaction, increases in costs, difficulties in introducing new products or applications or other operational difficulties, and any of these difficulties could adversely impact the Corporation's business performance and results of operations. There can be no assurance that the Corporation will effectively be able to manage its expanding operations, including any acquisitions, that its growth will result in profit, that it will be able to attract and retain sufficient management

personnel necessary for growth or that it will be able to successfully make strategic investments or acquisitions.

There are factors which may prevent the Corporation from the realization of growth targets.

There is a risk that the Corporation's resources will not be developed on time, on budget, or at all, as development can be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including some that are discussed elsewhere in these "Risk Factors" and the following:

- delays in obtaining, or conditions imposed by, regulatory approvals;
- facility design errors;
- environmental pollution; non-performance by third party contractors; increases in materials
 or labour costs; construction performance falling below expected levels of output or
 efficiency;
- breakdown, aging or failure of equipment or processes;
- contractor or operator errors;
- operational inefficiencies;
- labour disputes, disruptions or declines in productivity; inability to attract sufficient numbers of qualified workers; disruption in the supply of energy and utilities; and
- major incidents and/or catastrophic events such as fires, explosions, storms, or physical attacks.

The Corporation's actual financial position and results of operations may differ materially from the expectations of the Corporation's management.

In the past, the Corporation has experienced changes in its operating plans and delays in its plans. If this were to occur again in the future, the Corporation's revenue, net income and cash flow may differ materially from the Corporation's projected revenue, net income and cash flow. The process for estimating the Corporation's revenue, net income and cash flow requires the use of judgment in determining the appropriate assumptions and estimates. These estimates and assumptions may be revised as additional information becomes available and as additional analyses are performed. In addition, the assumptions used in planning may not prove to be accurate, and other factors may affect the Corporation's financial condition or results of operations.

The Corporation may incur significant ongoing costs and obligations related to its investment in infrastructure, growth, regulatory compliance and operations.

The Corporation may incur significant ongoing costs and obligations related to its investment in infrastructure and growth and for regulatory compliance, which could have a material adverse impact on the Corporation's results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, future changes in regulations, more vigorous enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events could require extensive changes to the Corporation's operations, increased compliance costs or give rise to material liabilities, which could have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and

financial condition of the Corporation. The Corporation's efforts to grow its business may be costlier than expected, and it may not be able to increase its revenue enough to offset its higher operating expenses. The Corporation may incur significant losses in the future for a number of reasons, including the other risks described in this Prospectus, and unforeseen expenses, difficulties, complications and delays, and other unknown events. If the Corporation is unable to achieve and sustain profitability, the market price of the Common Shares may significantly decrease.

The adult-use cannabis market in Canada is a relatively new industry.

As a Licensed Producer under the Cannabis Act, the Corporation is operating in a relatively new industry and market. In addition to being subject to general business risks, the Corporation must continue to build brand awareness in this industry and market share through significant investments in its strategy, production capacity, quality assurance and compliance with regulations. In addition, there is no assurance that the industry and market will continue to exist and grow as currently estimated or anticipated or function and evolve in the manner consistent with management's expectations and assumptions. Any event or circumstance that adversely affects the cannabis industry, such as the imposition of further restrictions on sales and marketing or further restrictions on sales in certain areas and markets could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business financial conditions and results of operations.

Although the Corporation is committed to researching and developing new markets and products and improving existing products, there can be no assurances that such research and market development activities will prove profitable or that the resulting markets and/or products, if any, will be commercially viable or successfully produced and marketed. The Corporation must rely largely on its own market research to forecast sales as detailed forecasts are not generally obtainable from other sources at this early stage of the cannabis industry domestically in Canada and in other international jurisdictions.

The adult-use cannabis market in Canada may experience supply and demand fluctuations that could result in revenue and price decreases.

Since the legalization of cannabis, there have been periods of significant over- and undersupply in the Canadian adult-use market. In addition, demand for cannabis products is dependent on a number of social, political and economic factors that are beyond the Corporation's control. The initial demand that has been experienced following legalization may not continue at comparable levels or may not be sustainable as a portion of such demand may have been a result of the novelty of legalization. As a result, the available supply of cannabis could exceed demand, resulting in a significant decline in the market price for cannabis. Conversely, the Corporation may be unable to meet demand levels. If supply/demand imbalances occur and persist, the Corporation may be unable to generate sufficient revenue from the sale of adult-use cannabis to be profitable.

The size of the Corporation's target market is difficult to quantify, and investors will be reliant on their own estimates on the accuracy of market data.

Because the cannabis industry is in a nascent stage, there is a lack of information about comparable companies available for potential investors to review in deciding about whether to invest in the Corporation and, few, if any, established companies whose business model the Corporation can follow

or upon whose success the Corporation can build. Accordingly, investors will have to rely on their own estimates in deciding about whether to invest in the Corporation. There can be no assurance that the Corporation's estimates are accurate or that the market size is sufficiently large for its business to grow as projected, which may negatively impact its financial results.

The Corporation is subject to changes in laws, regulations and guidelines which could adversely affect the Corporation's future business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Corporation's operations will be subject to various laws, regulations and guidelines relating to the manufacture, management, packaging/labelling, advertising, sale, transportation, storage and disposal of cannabis but also including laws and regulations relating to drugs, controlled substances, health and safety, the conduct of operations and the protection of the environment, among other areas. Changes to any such laws, regulations and guidelines due to matters beyond the control of the Corporation may adversely impact the business, financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation. The Corporation endeavours to comply with all relevant laws, regulations and guidelines. To the best of the Corporation's knowledge, the Corporation is in material compliance with all such laws, regulations and guidelines.

The Corporation's business is dependent on key supply chains which could be adversely disrupted by a number of factors including, among others, major health issues or pandemics.

The Corporation and its suppliers may be affected by, among other things, disruptions related to major health issues or pandemics, increases in labor and fuel costs, labor disputes and disruptions, regulatory changes, political or economic instability or civil unrest, natural disasters, trade restrictions, tariffs, transport capacity and costs and other factors relating to trade. In particular, major health issues and pandemics, such as the global impact of the coronavirus, have and may impact commerce and travel and may adversely affect trade and global and local economies. Given the ongoing and dynamic nature of the circumstances, it is difficult to predict the impact of the coronavirus outbreak on the Corporation's business. These factors that are beyond the Corporation's control, may adversely affect the Corporation and its suppliers or cause disruptions to their and the Corporation's businesses and may impact their ability to supply to the Corporation.

Reliance on a Single Facility

To date, the Corporation's cultivation and production activities have been primarily conducted at the Leamington Facility. The Corporation anticipates that such activities will continue to be conducted within the Leamington Facility for the foreseeable future. The Corporation's operation and the condition of the Leamington Facility is, and will be, subject to hazards inherent in the cannabis industry, including structural or equipment defects, malfunctions, natural disasters, fire, explosions, or other accidents that may cause damage to the Leamington Facility. Adverse changes or developments affecting the Leamington Facility could have a material and adverse effect on the Corporation's ability to continue cultivating and producing cannabis, its business, financial condition and prospects.

The Corporation is reliant on regulatory approvals and cultivation licences for its ability to grow, process, package, store and sell cannabis and other products derived therefrom, and these regulatory approvals are subject to ongoing compliance requirements, reporting obligations and fixed terms requiring renewal.

The Corporation is dependent upon its licences for its ability to grow, store and sell cannabis and other permitted products derived therefrom and the licences are subject to ongoing compliance, reporting requirements and renewal.

The licences are subject to ongoing compliance, reporting requirements and renewal. Although the Corporation believes it will meet the requirements of the Cannabis Act for future renewals of its licences, there can be no guarantee that Health Canada will renew the licences or, if renewed, renewed on the same or similar terms or that Health Canada will not revoke the licences. Should the Corporation fail to comply with the requirements of the licences or should Health Canada not renew the licences when required, or renew the licences on different terms or revoke the licences, there would be a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Other government licences are currently, and in the future may be, required in connection with the Corporation's operations, in addition to other unknown permits and approvals which may be required. To the extent such permits and approvals are required and not obtained, the Corporation may be prevented from operating and/or expanding its business, which could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, there is no assurance of new licences or approvals from Health Canada or any other regulatory authority.

Prior to the expiry of any licence, the Corporation must submit to Health Canada an application for renewal containing information prescribed by the Cannabis Act. Failure to comply with the requirements of the licences or any failure to renew the licences would have a material adverse impact on the business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects of the Corporation. There can be no guarantee that Health Canada will renew the Corporation's licences, or that such renewals will occur in a timely fashion or on terms similar to the Corporation's existing licences or otherwise acceptable to the Corporation and its business. Should Health Canada not renew or amend the Corporation's licences, delay the renewal or amendment of its licences or renew or amend licences on different terms, the expectations of management with respect to the increased future cultivation and growing capacity may not be borne out and the business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects of the Corporation could be materially adversely affected.

The Corporation cannot predict the time required to secure all appropriate regulatory approvals for its products, or the extent of testing and documentation that may be required by governmental authorities. Any delays in obtaining, or failure to obtain the necessary regulatory approvals will significantly delay the development of the Corporation's markets and products and could have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and financial condition of the Corporation.

Any failure on the Corporation's part to comply with applicable regulations could prevent it from being able to carry on its business and there may be additional costs associated with any such failure.

The Corporation's business activities are heavily regulated in all jurisdictions where it carries on business. Its operations are subject to various laws, regulations and guidelines by governmental

authorities (including Health Canada) relating to the cultivation, processing, manufacture, marketing, management, distribution, transportation, storage, sale, packaging, labelling, pricing and disposal of cannabis and hemp products, and also including laws and regulations relating to health and safety, insurance coverage, the conduct of operations and the protection of the environment. Laws and regulations, applied generally, grant government agencies and self-regulatory bodies broad administrative discretion over the Corporation's activities, including the power to limit or restrict business activities as well as impose additional disclosure requirements on its products and services.

Health Canada inspectors routinely assess the Corporation's facilities for compliance with applicable regulatory requirements. Furthermore, the import and export of its products from and into any jurisdiction is subject to the regulatory requirements of each such jurisdiction. Any failure by the Corporation to comply with the applicable regulatory requirements could require extensive changes to its operations; result in regulatory or agency proceedings or investigations, increased compliance costs, damage awards, civil or criminal fines or penalties or restrictions on its operations; harm its reputation or give rise to material liabilities or a revocation of its licences and other permits. There can be no assurance that any pending or future regulatory or agency proceedings, investigations or audits will not result in substantial costs, a diversion of management's attention and resources or other adverse consequences to the Corporation and its business.

Achievement of the Corporation's business objectives is contingent, in part, upon compliance with regulatory requirements enacted by governmental authorities and obtaining all necessary regulatory approvals for the cultivation, processing, production, storage, distribution, transportation, sale, import and export, as applicable, of its products. Any failure to comply with the regulatory requirements applicable to its operations may lead to possible sanctions including the revocation or imposition of additional conditions on licences to operate its business; the suspension or expulsion from a particular market or jurisdiction or of its key personnel; the imposition of additional or more stringent inspection, testing and reporting requirements; and the imposition of fines and censures. In addition, changes in regulations, government or judicial interpretation of regulations, or more vigorous enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events could require extensive changes to the Corporation's operations, increase compliance costs or give rise to material liabilities or a revocation of its licences and other permits, which could have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, governmental authorities may change their administration, application or enforcement procedures at any time, which may adversely impact the Corporation's ongoing costs relating to regulatory compliance.

Under Canadian regulations, a Licensed Producer of cannabis is restricted regarding the type and form of marketing it can undertake which could materially impact sales performance.

The development of the Corporation's business and operating results may be hindered by applicable restrictions on production, sales and marketing activities imposed on the Corporation and other entities licensed under the Cannabis Act by Health Canada and the Cannabis Act. All products distributed by the Corporation into the Canadian adult-use market need to comply with requirements under Canadian legislation, including with respect to product formats, product packaging and labelling, and marketing activities around such products. Among other restrictions, the Cannabis Act prohibits testimonials and endorsements, lifestyle branding, and promotion that is appealing to young persons. As such, the Corporation's portfolio of brands and products must be specifically adapted, and its marketing activities carefully structured, to enable the Corporation to develop its brands in an effective and

compliant manner. If the Corporation is unable to effectively market its cannabis products and compete for market share, or if the costs of compliance with government legislation and regulation cannot be absorbed through increased selling prices for its cannabis products, then the Corporation's sales and operating results could be adversely affected.

The Corporation's industry is experiencing rapid growth and consolidation that may cause the Corporation to lose key relationships and intensify competition.

The cannabis industry is undergoing rapid growth and substantial change, which has resulted in an increase in competitors, consolidation and formation of strategic relationships. Such acquisitions or other consolidating transactions could harm the Corporation in a number of ways, including by losing strategic partners if they are acquired by or enter into relationships with a competitor, losing customers, revenue and market share, or forcing the Corporation to expend greater resources to meet new or additional competitive threats, all of which could harm the Corporation's operating results. As competitors enter the market and become increasingly sophisticated, competition in the Corporation's industry may intensify and place downward pressure on retail prices for products and services, which could negatively impact profitability.

The Corporation may be unsuccessful in competing in the overall legal adult-use cannabis market in Canada and any other countries it intends to operate in.

The Corporation's Canadian adult-use business faces enhanced competition from other individuals and corporations who are licensed under the Cannabis Act to participate in the adult-use cannabis industry. The Cannabis Act has established a licensing regime for the production, testing, packaging, labeling, delivery, transportation, distribution, sale, possession and disposal of cannabis for adult use. While, pursuant to transitional provisions in the Cannabis Regulations, existing holders of licences relating to medical cannabis under the former ACMPR have, subject to satisfying certain requirements, automatically been deemed licenced under the Cannabis Act for corresponding activities, other individuals and corporations are now able to apply for such licences.

Subject to certain restrictions set out in the Cannabis Act, the Cannabis Act allows adults to cultivate, propagate, harvest and distribute up to four cannabis plants per household, provided that each plant meets certain requirements. If the Corporation is unable to effectively compete with other suppliers to the adult-use cannabis market, or a significant number of individuals take advantage of the ability to cultivate and use their own cannabis, the Corporation's success in the adult-use business may be limited and may not fulfill the expectations of management.

The Corporation will also face competition from existing entities licensed under the Cannabis Act. Certain of these competitors have significantly greater financial, production, marketing, research and development and technical and human resources than the Corporation does. As a result, the Corporation's competitors may be more successful in gaining market penetration and market share. The Corporation's commercial opportunity in the adult-use market could be reduced or eliminated if its competitors produce and commercialize products for the adult-use market that, among other things, are safer, more effective, more convenient or less expensive than the products that it may produce, have greater sales, marketing and distribution support than the Corporation's products, enjoy enhanced timing of market introduction and perceived effectiveness advantages over the Corporation's products and receive more favorable publicity than the Corporation's products. If the Corporation's adult-use

products do not achieve an adequate level of acceptance by the adult-use market, it may not generate sufficient revenue from these products, and its adult-use business may not become profitable.

If the number of users of cannabis in Canada increases, the demand for products will increase and the Corporation expects that competition will become more intense, as current and future competitors begin to offer an increasing number of diversified products. To remain competitive, the Corporation will require a continued high level of investment in research and development, marketing, sales and client support. The Corporation may not have sufficient resources to maintain research and development, marketing, sales and client support efforts on a competitive basis which could materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Corporation also faces competition from illegal cannabis dispensaries that are selling cannabis to individuals, despite not having a valid licence under the Cannabis Regulations.

In addition, the legal landscape for medical and recreational cannabis is rapidly changing internationally. An increasing number of jurisdictions globally are passing legislation allowing for the production and distribution of medical and/or recreational cannabis in some form or another. Entry into the cannabis market by international competitors might lower the demand for the Corporation's products on a global scale.

The Corporation, or the cannabis industry more generally, may receive unfavorable publicity or become subject to negative consumer or investor perception.

The Corporation believes that the cannabis industry is highly dependent upon positive consumer and investor perception regarding the benefits, safety, efficacy and quality of the cannabis product distributed to consumers. Such categories of products having previously been commonly associated with various other narcotics, violence and criminal activities, there is a risk that the Corporation's business might attract negative publicity. Perception of the cannabis industry and cannabis products, currently and in the future, may be significantly influenced by scientific research or findings, regulatory investigations or proceedings, regulatory enforcement activities, litigation, political statements, media attention and other publicity (whether or not accurate or with merit) both in Canada and in other countries relating to the consumption of cannabis products, including unexpected safety or efficacy concerns arising with respect to cannabis products or the activities of industry participants.

There can be no assurance that future scientific research, findings, regulatory investigations or proceedings, regulatory enforcement activities, litigation, political statements, media attention or other research findings or publicity will be favorable to the cannabis or CBD markets or any particular cannabis or CBD product or will be consistent with earlier publicity. Adverse future scientific research reports, findings, regulatory investigations or proceedings, and political statements, that are, or litigation, media attention or other publicity that is, perceived as less favorable than, or that questions, earlier research reports, findings or publicity (whether or not accurate or with merit) could result in a significant reduction in the demand for the Corporation's cannabis or CBD products. Further, adverse publicity reports or other media attention regarding the safety, efficacy and quality of cannabis and CBD, the Corporation's current or future products, the use of cannabis or CBD for medical purposes or associating the consumption of cannabis or CBD with illness or other negative effects or events, could adversely affect the Corporation. This adverse publicity could arise even if the adverse effects

associated with cannabis or CBD products resulted from consumers' failure to use such products legally, appropriately or as directed.

There is also a risk that the actions of other entities licensed under the Cannabis Act or of companies and service providers in the cannabis or CBD industries may negatively affect the reputation of the industry as a whole and thereby negatively impact the Corporation's reputation. The increased usage of social media and other web-based tools used to generate, publish and discuss user-generated content and to connect with other users has made it increasingly easier for individuals and groups to communicate and share negative opinions and views in regards to the Corporation's activities and the cannabis and CBD industries in general, whether true or not.

Although the Corporation believes that it operates in a manner that is respectful to all stakeholders and that it takes care in protecting its image and reputation, the Corporation does not ultimately have direct control over how it or the cannabis or CBD industry is perceived by others. Reputational issues may result in decreased investor confidence, increased challenges in developing and maintaining community relations and present an impediment to the Corporation's overall ability to advance its projects, thereby having a material adverse impact on financial performance, financial condition, cash flows and growth prospects.

The Corporation's products may not have, or may not be perceived to have, the effects intended by the end user.

If the products the Corporation sells are not perceived to have the effects intended by the end user, its business may suffer. There is little long-term data with respect to efficacy, unknown side effects and/or interaction with individual human biochemistry of various cannabis products. As a result, the Corporation's products could have certain side effects if not taken as directed or if taken by an end user that has certain known or unknown medical conditions.

The Corporation may not be able to develop its products, which could prevent it from ever becoming profitable.

If the Corporation cannot successfully develop, manufacture and distribute its products, or if the Corporation experiences difficulties in the development process, such as capacity constraints, quality control problems or other disruptions, the Corporation may not be able to develop market-ready commercial products at acceptable costs, which would adversely affect the Corporation's ability to effectively enter the market. A failure by the Corporation to achieve a low-cost structure through economies of scale or improvements in cultivation and manufacturing processes would have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's commercialization plans and the Corporation's business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

If the Corporation is unable to develop and market new products, it may not be able to keep pace with market developments.

The cannabis industry is in its early stages and it is likely that the Corporation and its competitors will seek to introduce new products in the future. In attempting to keep pace with any new market developments, the Corporation will need to expend significant amounts of capital in order to successfully develop and generate revenues from new products. The Corporation may also be required

to obtain additional regulatory approvals from Health Canada and other applicable authorities which may take significant time. The Corporation may not be successful in developing new products, bringing such products to market in time to be effectively commercialized, or obtaining any required regulatory approvals, which together with capital expenditures made in the course of such product development and regulatory approval processes, may have an material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

There has been limited study on the health effects of cannabis products and future clinical research studies may lead to conclusions that dispute or conflict with the Corporation's understanding and belief regarding the medical benefits, viability, safety, efficacy, dosing and social acceptance of such products.

Research in Canada, the United States and internationally regarding the medical benefits, viability, safety, efficacy and dosing of cannabis or isolated cannabinoids, such as CBD and THC, remains in relatively early stages. There have been few clinical trials on the benefits of cannabis or isolated cannabinoids conducted by the Corporation or by others.

Future research and clinical trials may draw opposing conclusions to statements contained in the articles, reports and studies currently favored, or could reach different or negative conclusions regarding the medical benefits, viability, safety, efficacy, dosing or other facts and perceptions related to medical cannabis, which could adversely affect social acceptance of cannabis and the demand for the Corporation's medical cannabis products.

Consumer preferences may change and the Corporation may be unsuccessful in retaining customers.

As a result of changing consumer preferences, many products attain financial success for a limited period of time. Even if the Corporation's products find retail success, there can be no assurance that any of its products will continue to see extended financial success. The Corporation's success will be significantly dependent upon its ability to develop new and improved product lines. Even if it is successful in introducing new products or developing its current products, a failure to gain consumer acceptance or to update products with compelling content could cause a decline in the Corporation's products' popularity that could reduce revenues and harm its business, operating results and financial condition. Failure to introduce new features and product lines and to achieve and sustain market acceptance could result in the Corporation being unable to meet consumer preferences and generate revenue which would have a material adverse effect on its profitability and financial results from operations.

The Corporation's success depends on its ability to attract and retain customers. There are many factors which could impact its ability to attract and retain customers, including but not limited to its ability to continually produce desirable and effective products, the successful implementation of its customer acquisition plan and the continued growth in the aggregate number of potential customers. The Corporation's failure to acquire and retain customers could have a material adverse effect on its business, operating results and financial position.

Trade of cannabis for non-medicinal purposes within Canada may be restricted by the Canadian Free Trade Agreement.

Article 1206 of the Canadian Free Trade Agreement specifically excludes the application of the agreement to cannabis for non-medical purposes. Article 1206 states that the provinces and territories of Canada shall commence negotiations regarding the application of the Canada Free Trade Agreement to cannabis for non-medical purposes following Royal Assent of federal legislation legalizing cannabis for non-medical purposes. There is a risk that the outcome of the negotiations will result in the interprovincial and interterritorial trade of cannabis for non-medical purposes in Canada being entirely restricted or subject to conditions that will negatively impact the Corporation's ability to sell cannabis in other provinces and territories.

If the Corporation is unable to attract and retain key personnel, it may not be able to compete effectively in the cannabis market.

The Corporation's success has depended and continues to depend upon its ability to attract and retain key management, including the Corporation's CEO, President, CFO, technical experts and sales personnel. The Corporation will attempt to enhance its management and technical expertise by continuing to recruit qualified individuals who possess desired skills and experience in certain targeted areas. The Corporation's inability to retain employees and attract and retain sufficient additional employees or engineering and technical support resources could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, results of operations, sales, cash flow or financial condition. Shortages in qualified personnel or the loss of key personnel could adversely affect the financial condition of the Corporation, results of operations of the business and could limit the Corporation's ability to develop and market its cannabis-related products. The loss of any of the Corporation's senior management or key employees could materially adversely affect the Corporation's ability to execute the Corporation's business plan and strategy, and the Corporation may not be able to find adequate replacements on a timely basis, or at all. The Corporation does not maintain key person life insurance policies on any of its employees.

Further, each director and officer of a company that holds a licence for cultivation, processing or sale under the Cannabis Regulations is subject to the requirement to obtain and maintain a security clearance under the Cannabis Regulations. Certain additional key personnel are also required to obtain and maintain a security clearance. Under the Cannabis Regulations, a security clearance cannot be valid for more than five years and must be renewed before the expiry of a current security clearance. There is no assurance that any of the Corporation's existing personnel who presently or may in the future require a security clearance will be able to obtain or renew such clearances or that new personnel who require a security clearance will be able to obtain one. A failure by an individual in a key operational position to maintain or renew his or her security clearance could result in a reduction or complete suspension of the Corporation's operations.

If an individual in a key operational position leaves the Corporation, and it is unable to find a suitable replacement who is able to obtain a security clearance required by the Cannabis Act in a timely manner, or at all, the Corporation may not be able to conduct its operations at planned production volume levels or at all. The Cannabis Regulations require the Corporation to designate a senior person in charge (SPIC) and a qualified person in charge (QPIC). The SPIC has overall responsibility for the management of the cannabis activities authorized under the licence. The QPIC must work at the

licensed site and is responsible for supervising the authorized cannabis activities and ensuring regulation compliance, and must meet certain educational requirements. If the Corporation's current designated SPIC and QPIC fail to maintain their security clearance, or if its current designated SPIC and QPIC leave and it is unable to find a suitable replacement who meets these requirements, the Corporation may no longer be able to conduct activities with respect to cannabis.

The Corporation has entered into and may seek to enter into strategic alliances including contractual relationships, joint ventures, selective acquisitions, licensing arrangements or other relationships, or expand the scope of currently existing relationships, with third parties that the Corporation believes will have a beneficial impact, and there are risks that such strategic alliances or expansions of the Corporation's currently existing relationships may not enhance its business in the desired manner.

The Corporation currently has, and may expand the scope of, and may in the future enter into, strategic alliances including contractual relationships, joint ventures, selective acquisitions, licensing arrangements or other relationships with third parties that it believes will complement or augment its existing business. The Corporation's ability to complete further such strategic alliances is dependent upon, and may be limited by, among other things, the availability of suitable candidates and capital. In addition, strategic alliances could present unforeseen integration obstacles or costs, may not enhance the Corporation's business and may involve risks that could adversely affect the Corporation, including the investment of significant amounts of management time that may be diverted from operations in order to pursue and complete such transactions or maintain such strategic alliances. Future strategic alliances could result in the incurrence of debt, costs and contingent liabilities, and there can be no assurance that future strategic alliances will achieve, or that the Corporation's existing strategic alliances will continue to achieve, the expected benefits to its business or that it will be able to consummate future strategic alliances on satisfactory terms, or at all.

The Corporation may not be able to successfully identify and execute future acquisitions or dispositions or successfully manage the impacts of such transactions on its operations.

The Corporation expects to selectively seek strategic acquisitions in the future. The Corporation's ability to identify, consummate and integrate effectively any future potential acquisitions on terms that are favorable to it may be limited by the number of attractive acquisition targets, internal demands on its resources and, to the extent necessary, its ability to obtain financing on satisfactory terms, if at all. Acquisitions may expose the Corporation to additional risks including difficulties in integrating administrative, financial reporting, operational and information systems and managing newly acquired operations and improving their operating efficiency, difficulties in maintaining uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies through all of the Corporation's operations, entry into markets in which the Corporation has little or no direct experience; difficulties in retaining key employees of the acquired operations; and disruptions to its ongoing business. In addition, future acquisitions could result in the incurrence of additional debt, costs, and contingent liabilities to the Corporation. The Corporation may also incur costs for and divert management attention to potential acquisitions that are never consummated. For acquisitions that are consummated, expected synergies may not materialize. The Corporation's failure to effectively address any of these issues could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows in the future.

The cultivation of cannabis includes risks inherent in an agricultural business including the risk of crop loss, sudden changes in environmental conditions, equipment failure, product recalls and others.

The Corporation grows cannabis which is an agricultural process and although the Corporation is run by experienced agricultural professionals, it has not completed its first harvest of cannabis yet. As such, its business is subject to the risks inherent in the agricultural business, including risks of crop failure presented by weather, insects, fire, plant diseases and similar agricultural risks. Although the Corporation currently grows its products indoors under climate controlled conditions, there can be no assurance that natural elements, such as insects and plant diseases, will not entirely interrupt its production activities or have an adverse effect on its business. In addition, cannabis plants can be vulnerable to various pathogens including bacteria, fungi, viruses and other miscellaneous pathogens. Such instances often lead to reduced crop quality, stunted growth and/or death of the plant. Moreover, cannabis is phytoremediative meaning that it may extract toxins or other undesirable chemicals or compounds from the ground in which it is planted. Various regulatory agencies have established maximum limits for pathogens, toxins, chemicals and other compounds that may be present in agricultural materials. If the Corporation's cannabis is found to have levels of pathogens, toxins, chemicals or other undesirable compounds that exceed established limits, the Corporation's product may not be suitable for commercialization and the Corporation may have to destroy the applicable portions of its crops. Crops loss due to pathogens, toxins, chemicals or other undesirable compounds may have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business and financial condition.

The Corporation is reliant on key inputs, such as water and utilities, and any interruption of these services could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's finances and operation results. The Corporation is also dependent on access to skilled labour, equipment and parts.

The Corporation's business is dependent on a number of key inputs and their related costs including raw materials and supplies related to its growing operations, as well as electricity, water and other local utilities. Any significant interruption or negative change in the availability or economics of the supply chain for key inputs, could materially impact the business, financial condition and operating results of the Corporation. Any inability to secure required supplies and services or to do so on appropriate terms could have a materially adverse impact on the business, financial condition and operating results of the Corporation. In addition, the Corporation's operations could be significantly affected by a prolonged power outage.

The ability of the Corporation to compete and grow will be dependent on having access, at a reasonable cost and in a timely manner, to skilled labour, equipment, parts and components. No assurances can be given that the Corporation will be successful in maintaining the required supply of skilled labour, equipment, parts and components. It is also possible that the expansion plans contemplated by the Corporation may cost more than anticipated, in which circumstance the Corporation may curtail, or extend timeframes for completing the expansion plans. This could have a material adverse effect on the financial results and operations of the Corporation.

The Corporation is vulnerable to rising energy costs.

The Corporation's cannabis cultivation operations consume considerable energy, including electricity and natural gas, making the Corporation vulnerable to rising energy costs, including as a result of

regulatory systems that impose a levy or additional price on the distribution or use of carbon-intensive energy sources. Rising or volatile energy costs may adversely impact the business of the Corporation and its ability to operate profitably.

The Corporation's quality control systems may not operate effectively.

The quality and safety of the Corporation's products are critical to the success of its business and operations. As such, it is imperative that the Corporation's (and its service providers') quality control systems operate effectively and successfully. Quality control systems can be negatively impacted by the design of the quality control systems, the quality training program, and adherence by employees to quality control guidelines. Although the Corporation strives to ensure that all of its service providers have implemented and adhere to high caliber quality control systems, any significant failure or deterioration of such quality control systems could have a material adverse effect on the business and operating results of the Corporation.

The Corporation's cannabis products may be subject to recalls for a variety of reasons, which could require it to expend significant management and capital resources.

Manufacturers and distributors of products are sometimes subject to the recall or return of their products for a variety of reasons, including public health and public safety risks, product defects, such as contamination or mould, adulteration, unintended harmful side effects or interactions with other substances, packaging safety and inadequate or inaccurate labeling disclosure. Such defects may arise due to the fault of the Corporation or as a result of a faulty input to the Corporation's products. If any of the Corporation's products are recalled due to an alleged product defect or for any other reason, the Corporation could be required to incur the unexpected expense of the recall and any legal proceedings that might arise in connection with the recall. The Corporation may lose a significant amount of sales and may not be able to replace those sales at an acceptable margin or at all. In addition, a product recall may require significant management attention.

Although the Corporation has detailed procedures in place for testing finished cannabis products, there can be no assurance that any quality, potency or contamination problems will be detected in time to avoid unforeseen product recalls, regulatory action or lawsuits, whether frivolous or otherwise. Additionally, if one of the Corporation's significant brands were subject to recall, the image of that brand and the Corporation could be harmed. A recall for any of the foregoing reasons could lead to decreased demand for the Corporation's products and could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations and financial condition of the Corporation. Additionally, product recalls may lead to increased scrutiny of the Corporation's operations by Health Canada or other regulatory agencies, requiring further management attention and potential legal fees and other expenses.

While the Corporation has not been subject to a recall to date, if any of the cannabis products produced by the Corporation are recalled in the future due to an alleged product defect or for any other reason, the Corporation could be required to incur the unexpected expense of the recall and any legal proceedings that might arise in connection with the recall. As a result of any such recall, it may lose a significant amount of sales and may not be able to replace those sales at an acceptable margin or at all. In addition, a product recall may require significant management attention or damage the Corporation's reputation and goodwill or that of its products or brands.

Any product recall affecting the cannabis industry more broadly, whether or not involving the Corporation, could also lead consumers to lose confidence in the safety and security of the products sold by entities licensed under the Cannabis Act generally, including products sold by the Corporation.

The Corporation faces an inherent risk of exposure to product liability.

As a cultivator, manufacturer and distributor of products designed to be ingested by humans, the Corporation faces an inherent risk of exposure to product liability claims, regulatory action and litigation if its products are alleged to have caused significant loss, injury or death. The Corporation may be subject to these types of claims due to allegations that its products caused or contributed to injury, illness or death, made false, misleading or impermissible claims, failed to include adequate labelling and instructions for use or failed to include adequate warnings concerning possible side effects or interactions with other substances. In addition, the cultivation, manufacture and sale of the Corporation's products involve the risk of injury to consumers due to tampering by unauthorized third parties, product contamination or mould. Previously unknown adverse reactions resulting from human consumption of the Corporation's products alone or in combination with other medications or substances may result from, among other causes, inadequate instructions for use or include inadequate warnings concerning possible side effects or interactions with other substances. The manufacture and sale of cannabis products, like the manufacture and sale of any ingested or consumable product, involves a risk of injury to consumers due to tampering by unauthorized third parties or product contamination. The Corporation may in the future have to recall certain of its cannabis products as a result of potential contamination and quality assurance concerns. A product liability claim or regulatory action against the Corporation could result in increased costs, could adversely affect the Corporation's reputation with its clients and consumers generally, and could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations and financial condition of the Corporation.

There can be no assurances that the Corporation will be able to obtain or maintain product liability insurance on acceptable terms or with adequate coverage against potential liabilities. Such insurance is expensive and may not be available in the future on acceptable terms, or at all. The inability to obtain sufficient insurance coverage on reasonable terms or to otherwise protect against potential product liability claims could prevent or inhibit the commercialization of the Corporation's potential products. As of the current date, the Corporation has insurance coverage for product liabilities as required by the supply agreement with Ontario Cannabis Retail Corporation.

The Corporation's operations are subject to safety, health and environmental laws and regulations applicable to its operations and industry in the various jurisdictions in which it operates, and it may be held liable for any breaches of those laws and regulations.

Safety, health and environmental laws and regulations affect nearly all aspects of the Corporation's operations, including product development, working conditions, waste disposal, emission controls, the maintenance of air and water quality standards and land reclamation, and, with respect to environmental laws and regulations, impose limitations on the generation, transportation, storage and disposal of solid and hazardous waste and the emission, discharge and release of hazardous substances. Environmental laws and regulations to address climate change may also impose a levy or additional price on the distribution or use of carbon-intensive fuels, such as natural gas, which are required in connection with the Corporation's operations. Environmental laws and regulations also require the

Corporation to obtain and maintain in good standing environmental approvals and permits application to the Corporation's operations.

Compliance with safety, health and environmental laws and regulations can require significant capital and operating expenditures, and failure to comply with such safety, health and environmental laws may result in enforcement actions and other actions, orders and proceeding thereunder, including the imposition of fines and penalties, the temporary or permanent suspension of operations, and the imposition of clean-up costs resulting from contaminated properties. The Corporation may also be required to compensate those suffering loss or damage due to safety, health or environmental incidents relating to the Corporation's operations. Furthermore, to the extent environmental approvals and permits are required and not obtained, the Corporation may also be curtailed or prohibited from its proposed business activities or from proceeding with the development of its operations as currently proposed. Exposure to these liabilities may arise in connection with the Corporation's existing operations, its historical operations and any operations that may in the future cease to operate or be sold to third parties. The Corporation could also be held liable for worker exposure to hazardous substances and for accidents causing injury or death. There can be no assurance that the Corporation will at all times be in compliance with all safety, health and environmental laws and regulations notwithstanding its attempts to comply with such laws and regulations.

Changes in applicable safety, health and environmental laws and regulations may impose stricter standards and enforcement, increased fines and penalties for non-compliance, more stringent environmental assessments of proposed projects and a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and their officers, directors and employees. The Corporation is not able to determine the specific impact that future changes in safety, health and environmental laws and regulations may have on the Corporation's industry, operations and/or activities and its resulting financial position; however, it anticipates that capital expenditures and operating expenses will increase in the future as a result of the implementation of new and increasingly stringent safety, health and environmental laws and regulations, including more stringent requirements to obtain necessary permits in relation thereto.

The Corporation could be liable for fraudulent or illegal activity by its employees, contractors and consultants resulting in significant financial losses for claims against the Corporation.

The Corporation is exposed to the risk that its employees, independent contractors, consultants, service providers and licensors may engage in fraudulent or other illegal activity. Misconduct by these parties could include intentional, reckless and/or negligent conduct or activities that violate: (i) government regulations, specifically Health Canada regulations; (ii) manufacturing standards; (iii) the Cannabis Act and the Cannabis Regulations; (iv) provincial cannabis laws and regulations; (v) federal and provincial healthcare fraud and abuse laws and regulations; (vi) laws that require the true, complete and accurate reporting of financial information or data; or (vii) the terms of the Corporation's agreements with insurers. In particular, the Corporation could be exposed to class action and other litigation, increased Health Canada inspections and related sanctions, lost sales and revenue or reputational damage as a result of prohibited activities that are undertaken in the growing or production process of the Corporation's products without its knowledge or permission and contrary to its internal policies, procedures and operating requirements.

It is not always possible for the Corporation to identify and prevent misconduct by its employees and other third parties, and the precautions taken by the Corporation to detect and prevent this activity may

not be effective in controlling unknown or unmanaged risks or losses or in protecting the Corporation from governmental investigations or other actions or lawsuits stemming from a failure to be in compliance with such laws or regulations. If any such actions are instituted against the Corporation, and it is not successful in defending itself or asserting its rights, those actions could have a significant impact on the Corporation's business, including the imposition of civil, criminal and administrative penalties, damages, monetary fines, contractual damages, reputational harm, diminished profits and future earnings, and curtailment of the Corporation's operations, any of which could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Corporation may become subject to litigation in the ordinary course of business.

The Corporation may become subject to litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business, some of which may adversely affect its business. Should any litigation in which the Corporation becomes involved be determined against the Corporation, such a decision could adversely affect the Corporation's ability to continue operating, the value or market price for the common shares and could require the use of significant resources. Even if the Corporation is involved in litigation and is ultimately successful, litigation can require the redirection of significant resources. Litigation may also create a negative perception of the Corporation's brand.

The Corporation will be reliant on information technology systems and may be subject to damaging cyber-attacks.

The Corporation has entered into agreements with third parties for hardware, software, telecommunications and other information technology ("IT") services. The Corporation's operations depend, in part, on how well it and its suppliers and vendors protect networks, equipment, IT systems and software against damage from a number of threats, including, but not limited to, cable cuts, damage to physical plants, natural disasters, intentional damage and destruction, fire, power loss, hacking, computer viruses, spyware, vandalism and theft. The Corporation's operations also depend on the timely maintenance, upgrade and replacement of networks, equipment, IT systems and software, as well as pre-emptive expenses to mitigate the risks of failures. Any of these and other events could result in information system failures, delays and/or increase in capital expenses. The failure of information systems or a component of information systems could, depending on the nature of any such failure, adversely impact the Corporation's operations, reputation and results of operations.

The Corporation has not experienced any material losses to date relating to cyber-attacks or other information security breaches, but there can be no assurance that the Corporation will not incur such losses in the future. The Corporation's risk and exposure to these matters cannot be fully mitigated because of, among other things, the evolving nature of these threats. As a result, cyber-security and the continued development and enhancement of controls, processes and practices designed to protect systems, computers, software, data and networks from attack, damage or unauthorized access is a priority. As cyber-threats continue to evolve, the Corporation may be required to expend additional resources to continue to modify or enhance protective measures or to investigate and remediate any security vulnerabilities.

The Corporation may be exposed to liability or the threat of liability in relation to the use of customer information and other personal and confidential information.

The Corporation collects, processes, maintains and uses data, including sensitive personal information on individuals, available to it through online activities and other customer interactions with its business. The Corporation's current and future marketing programs may depend on its ability to collect, maintain and use this information, and its ability to do so is subject to evolving laws and enforcement trends in Canada and other jurisdictions. The Corporation strives to comply with all applicable laws and other legal obligations relating to privacy, data protection and customer protection, including those relating to the use of medical information and data for marketing purposes. It is possible, however, that these requirements may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent from one jurisdiction to another, conflict with other rules, conflict with the Corporation's practices or fail to be observed by its employees or business partners. If so, the Corporation may suffer damage to its reputation and be subject to proceedings or actions against it by governmental entities or others. Any such proceeding or action could hurt its reputation, force it to spend significant amounts to defend its practices, distract its management or otherwise have an adverse effect on its business.

Certain marketing practices of the Corporation rely upon e-mail, social media and other means of digital communication to communicate with consumers on its behalf. The Corporation may face risk if its use of e-mail, social media or other means of digital communication is found to violate applicable laws. The Corporation posts its privacy policy and practices concerning the use and disclosure of user data on its website. Any failure by the Corporation to comply with its posted privacy policy, anti-spam legislation or other privacy-related laws and regulations could result in proceedings which could potentially harm its business. In addition, as data privacy and marketing laws change, the Corporation may incur additional costs to ensure it remains in compliance. If applicable data privacy and marketing laws become more restrictive at the international, federal, provincial or state levels, the Corporation's compliance costs may increase, its ability to effectively engage customers via personalized marketing may decrease, its investment in its e-commerce platform may not be fully realized, its opportunities for growth may be curtailed by its compliance burden and its potential reputational harm or liability for security breaches may increase.

The Corporation may be subject to risks related to the protection and enforcement of its intellectual property rights, or intellectual property it licenses from others, and may become subject to allegations that it or its licensors are in violation of intellectual property rights of third parties.

The ownership, licensing and protection of trademarks and other intellectual property rights are significant aspects of the Corporation's future success.

It is possible that the Corporation will not be able to register, maintain registration for or enforce all of its intellectual property, including trademarks, in all key jurisdictions. The intellectual property registration process can be expensive and time-consuming, and the Corporation may not be able to file and prosecute all necessary or desirable intellectual property applications at a reasonable cost or in a timely manner or may obtain intellectual property registrations which are invalid. It is also possible that the Corporation will fail to identify patentable aspects of inventions made in the course of their development and commercialization activities before it is too late to obtain patent protection for them. Further, changes in either intellectual property laws or interpretation of intellectual property laws in Canada, and other countries may diminish the value of the Corporation's intellectual property rights or

narrow the scope of its intellectual property protection. As a result, the Corporation's current or future intellectual property portfolio may not provide it with sufficient rights to protect its business, including its products, processes and brands.

Termination or limitation of the scope of any intellectual property licence may restrict or delay or eliminate the Corporation's ability to develop and commercialize its products, which could adversely affect its business. The Corporation cannot guarantee that any third-party technology it licenses will not be unenforceable or licensed to its competitors or used by others. In the future, the Corporation may need to obtain licences, renew existing licence agreements in place at such time or otherwise replace existing technology. The Corporation is unable to predict whether these licence agreements can be obtained or renewed or the technology can be replaced on acceptable terms, or at all.

Unauthorized parties may attempt to replicate or otherwise obtain and use the Corporation's products, brands and technology. Policing the unauthorized use of the Corporation's current or future trademarks, patents or other intellectual property rights could be difficult, expensive, time consuming and unpredictable, as may be enforcing these rights against unauthorized use by others. Identifying the unauthorized use of intellectual property rights is difficult as the Corporation may be unable to effectively monitor and evaluate the products being distributed by its competitors, including parties such as unlicensed dispensaries and black-market participants, and the processes used to produce such products. In addition, in any infringement proceeding, some or all of the Corporation's trademarks or other intellectual property rights or other proprietary know-how, or those it licenses from others, or arrangements or agreements seeking to protect the same for the Corporation's benefit, may be found invalid, unenforceable, anti-competitive or not infringed; may be interpreted narrowly; or could put existing intellectual property applications at risk of not being issued.

In addition, other parties may claim that the Corporation's products, or those it licenses from others, infringe on their intellectual property, including their proprietary or patent protected rights. Such claims, whether or not meritorious, may result in the expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources and legal fees, result in injunctions or temporary restraining orders or require the payment of damages. As well, the Corporation may need to obtain licences from third parties who allege that it has infringed on their lawful rights. Such licences may not be available on terms acceptable to the Corporation, or at all. In addition, the Corporation may not be able to obtain or utilize on terms that are favorable to it, or at all, licences or other rights with respect to intellectual property that the Corporation does not own.

The Corporation also relies on certain trade secrets, technical know-how and proprietary information that are not protected by patents to maintain its competitive position. The Corporation's trade secrets, technical know-how and proprietary information, which are not protected by patents, may become known to or be independently developed by competitors, which could adversely affect the Corporation.

The Corporation may be subject to breaches of security at its facilities.

Given the nature of the Corporation's product and the limited legal channels for distribution, as well as the concentration of inventory in its facilities, despite meeting or exceeding Health Canada's security requirements, there remains a risk of shrinkage as well as theft and other security breaches. A security breach at one of the Corporation's facilities could result in a significant loss of available product and could expose the Corporation to additional liability under applicable regulations and to potentially

costly litigation, increase expenses relating to the resolution and future prevention of these breaches and may deter potential patients from choosing the Corporation's products, any of which could have an adverse effect on the Corporation's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The Corporation may incur additional indebtedness.

The Corporation may finance future activities wholly or partially with debt, which may increase the Corporation's debt levels above industry standards. Any debt financing secured in the future could involve restrictive covenants relating to capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more difficult for the Corporation to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions.

Management may not be able to successfully implement adequate internal controls over financial reporting.

Proper systems of internal control over financial reporting and disclosure are critical to the operation of a public company. However, the Corporation does not expect that its internal control over financial reporting and disclosure will prevent all errors and remove all risk of fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system's objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefits of such controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Due to the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected in a timely manner or at all. If the Corporation cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, its reputation and operating results could be materially adversely affected, which could cause investors to lose confidence in the Corporation and its reported financial information, which in turn could result in a reduction in the value of its common shares.

If the Corporation has a material weakness in its internal controls over financial reporting, investors could lose confidence in the reliability of the Corporation's financial statements, which could result in a decrease in the value of the Corporation's securities.

One or more material weaknesses in the Corporation's internal controls over financial reporting could occur or be identified in the future. In addition, because of inherent limitations, the Corporation's internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements, and any projections of any evaluation of effectiveness of internal controls to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the Corporation's policies or procedures may deteriorate. If the Corporation fails to maintain the adequacy of its internal controls, including any failure or difficulty in implementing required new or improved controls, its business and results of operations could be harmed, the Corporation may not be able to provide reasonable assurance as to its financial results or meet its reporting obligations and there could be a material adverse effect on the price of its securities.

The Corporation has negative operating cash flow.

There is no guarantee that the Corporation will ever become profitable. The Corporation currently has a negative operating cash flow and that may continue to have that for the foreseeable future. To date, the Corporation has only recently generated revenues and a large portion of the Corporation's expenses are fixed, including expenses related to facilities, equipment, contractual commitments and personnel. As a result, the Corporation expects its net losses from operations will at least continue in the short term. The Corporation's ability to generate additional revenues and potential to become profitable will depend largely on its ability to cultivate, manufacture and market its products. There can be no assurance that any such events will occur or that the Corporation will ever become profitable. Even if the Corporation does achieve profitability, it cannot predict the level of such profitability. If the Corporation sustains losses over an extended period of time, it may be unable to continue its business.

The Corporation may be subject to credit risk.

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, resulting in a financial loss to the Corporation. There are no assurances that the Corporation's counterparties or customers will meet their contractual obligations to the Corporation.

Tax and accounting requirements may change in ways that are unforeseen to the Corporation and it may face difficulty or be unable to implement or comply with any such changes.

The Corporation is subject to numerous tax and accounting requirements, and changes in existing accounting or taxation rules or practices, or varying interpretations of current rules or practices, could have a significant adverse effect on its financial results, the manner in which it conducts its business or the marketability of any of its products.

The Corporation may not be able to renew or secure adequate insurance to protect its assets, operations and employees.

The Corporation may not be able to renew or secure adequate insurance to protect its assets, operations and employees. While the Corporation may, in the future obtain insurance coverage to address all material risks to which it is exposed and is adequate and customary in its proposed state of operations, such insurance will be subject to coverage limits and exclusions and may not be available for the risks and hazards to which the Corporation is expected to be exposed. In addition, no assurance can be given that such insurance will be adequate to cover the Corporation's liabilities or will be generally available in the future, or if available, that premiums will be commercially justifiable. If the Corporation were to incur substantial liability and such damages were not covered by insurance or were in excess of policy limits, or if the Corporation were to incur such liability at a time when it is not able to obtain liability insurance, its business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to the Ownership of the Common Shares

Price Fluctuations

The price of the Common Shares in public markets may experience significant fluctuations.

The market price for the Common Shares may be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond the Corporation's control, including the following: (i) actual or anticipated fluctuations in its quarterly results of operations; (ii) recommendations by securities research analysts; (iii) changes in the economic performance or market valuations of other issuers that investors deem comparable to the Corporation; (iv) the addition or departure of the Corporation's executive officers and other key personnel; (v) the release or expiration of lock-up or other transfer restrictions on the Common Shares; (vi) sales or perceived sales, or expectation of future sales, of the Common Shares; (vii) significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments by or involving the Corporation or its competitors; and (viii) news reports relating to trends, concerns, technological or competitive developments, regulatory changes and other related issues in the Corporation's industry or target markets.

Financial markets have recently experienced significant price and volume fluctuations which have affected the market prices of equity securities of public entities. In many cases, these fluctuations, and the effect that they have on market prices, have been unrelated to the operating performance, underlying asset values or prospects of such entities. Accordingly, the market price of the Common Shares may decline even if the Corporation's operating results or prospects have not changed. Additionally, these factors, as well as other related factors, may cause decreases in asset values that are deemed not to be temporary, which may result in impairment losses to the Corporation. Furthermore, certain investors may base their investment decisions on considerations of the Corporation's environmental, governance and social practices or the Corporation's industry as a whole, and its performance in these areas against such institutions' respective investment guidelines and criteria. The failure to satisfy such criteria may result in limited or no investment in the Common Shares by those institutions, which could materially adversely affect the trading price of the Common Shares.

There can be no assurance that continuing fluctuations in the price and volume of equity securities will not occur. If such increased levels of volatility and market turmoil continue for a protracted period of time, there could be a material adverse effect on the trading price of the Common Shares.

If securities or industry analysts do not continue to publish research, or publish inaccurate or unfavourable research, about the Corporation's business, the Common Share price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for the Common Shares will depend, in part, on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about the Corporation or its business. The Corporation does not have any control over these analysts. Securities and industry analysts do not currently, and may never, publish research on the Corporation. If no securities or industry analysts commence coverage of the Corporation, the trading price for the Common Shares would likely be negatively impacted. In the event securities or industry analysts initiate coverage, if one or more of the analysts who cover the Corporation downgrade the Common Shares or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about its business, the Corporation's share price would likely decline. In addition, if the Corporation's operating results fail to meet the forecast of analysts, its share price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of the Corporation or fail to publish reports on the Corporation regularly, demand for the Common Shares could decrease, which might cause the Common Share price and trading volume to decline.

The Corporation continues to sell shares for cash to fund operations, expansion, and mergers and acquisitions that will dilute the current shareholders.

The continued development of the Corporation will require additional financing. If additional funds are raised through issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, existing shareholders could suffer significant dilution, and any new equity securities issued could have rights, preferences and privileges superior to those of holders of Common Shares. The Corporation's articles permit the issuance of an unlimited number of Common Shares, and shareholders will have no pre-emptive rights in connection with such further issuance. The directors of the Corporation have discretion to determine the price and the terms of issue of further issuances. Moreover, additional Common Shares will be issued by the Corporation on the exercise of Options under the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan and upon the exercise of outstanding warrants. In addition, from time to time, the Corporation may enter into transactions to acquire assets or the shares of other companies.

It is not anticipated that any dividends will be paid to holders of Common Shares for the foreseeable future.

The Corporation intends to retain earnings, if any, to finance the growth and development of its business and does not intend to pay cash dividends on the Common Shares in the foreseeable future. The payment of future cash dividends, if any, will be reviewed periodically by the Board and will depend upon, among other things, conditions then existing including earnings, financial condition and capital requirements, restrictions in financing agreements, business opportunities and conditions and other factors.

The Corporation is subject to ongoing reporting requirements under applicable securities law and CSE Policies.

As a reporting issuer, the Corporation is subject to reporting requirements under applicable securities law and CSE Policies. Compliance with these requirements result in legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities more difficult, time consuming or costly and increase demand on existing systems and resources. Among other things, the Corporation is required to file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to its business and results of operations and maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. In order to maintain and, if required, improve disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting to meet this standard, significant resources and management oversight is required. As a result, management's attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could harm the Corporation's business and results of operations. The Corporation may need to hire additional employees to comply with these requirements in the future, which would increase its costs and expenses. Management of the Corporation believes that being a reporting issuer makes it more expensive to maintain director and officer liability insurance. This factor could also make it more difficult for the Corporation to retain qualified directors and executive officers.

PROMOTERS

Each of Jamie D'Alimonte, Carl Mastronardi, and Darren Peddle may be considered to be promoters of the Corporation within the meaning of applicable securities laws by reason of their initiative in founding, financing and establishing the business of the Corporation and, within the two years

immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus, their active involvement in and contribution to the ongoing management and growth of the Corporation's business.

Mr. Mastronardi and Mr. D'Alimonte together control 100,000,000 Common Shares, being 82.21% of the current issued and outstanding Common Shares, which are held indirectly through Sunrite, a company wholly-owned by Mr. D'Alimonte as to 50% and Mr. Mastronardi as to 50%. Mr. Peddle controls 1,500,000 Common Shares, being 1.23% of the current issued and outstanding Common Shares

Each of Mr. Mastronardi, Mr. D'Alimonte and Mr. Peddle will receive compensation from the Corporation pursuant to their respective employment agreements and will provide services to the Corporation pursuant to such employment agreements (See "Executive Compensation – Employee Agreements, and Termination and Change of Control Benefits). Mr. Mastronardi's employment agreement with the Corporation dated June 1, 2021 provides for an annual salary of \$75,000, a discretionary bonus, and the discretionary grant of options.

No promoter of the Corporation has, within 10 years prior to the date of this Prospectus, been a director, chief executive officer, or chief financial officer of any person or company, that was subject to an order that was issued while the promoter was acting in such capacity, or was subject to an order that was issued after the promoter ceased to act in such capacity and which resulted from an event that occurred while the promoter was acting in such capacity.

No promoter of the Corporation is, as at the date of this Prospectus, or has been within the 10 years prior to the date of this Prospectus, a director or executive officer of any person or company that, while the promoter was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets.

No promoter of the Corporation has, within the 10 years prior to the date of this Prospectus, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the promoter.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS MATTERS

We are from time to time involved in legal proceedings of a nature considered normal to our business. We believe that none of the litigation in which we are currently involved, or have been involved since the beginning of the most recently completed financial year, individually or in the aggregate, is material to our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Legal Proceedings

There are no legal proceedings the Corporation is or was a party to, or that any of its property is or was the subject of, since the beginning of the most recently completed financial year for which financial statements of the Corporation are included in this Prospectus.

Regulatory Actions

There have not been any penalties or sanctions imposed against the Corporation by a court relating to provincial or territorial securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority, nor have there been any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body against the Corporation, and the Corporation has not entered into any settlement agreements before a court relating to provincial or territorial securities legislation or with a securities regulatory authority.

INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Except as described below, no insider, director or executive officer of the Corporation and no associate of any director, executive officer, or insider has any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction within the three years before the date of this Prospectus that has materially affected or is reasonably expected to materially affect the Corporation. See "Executive Compensation".

The Corporation has entered into the following agreements with related parties in the Del Fresco Group that are controlled by Jamie D'Alimonte and Carl Mastronardi (see "Description of the Business – History"):

- 1. The Sunrite Property Acquisition Agreement;
- 2. The Sunrite Lease;
- 3. The Sunrite Loan Agreement;
- 4. The Leamington Facility Lease; and
- 5. The Kingsville Facility Lease.

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Auditors

The auditor for the Corporation is MNP LLP at 2565 Ouellette Ave, Windsor, Ontario, N8X 1L9

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for the Corporation's securities is TSX Trust Company, at its principal office located at 200 University Ave, Suite 300, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 4H1.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Except for contracts made in the ordinary course of business, the following are the only material contracts entered into by the Corporation (i) since the beginning of the last financial year ending before the date hereof, or (ii) before the beginning of the last financial year ending before the date hereof and still currently in effect:

- 1. The Sunrite Lease.
- 2. The Sunrite Loan Agreement.
- 3. The Leamington Facility Lease.
- 4. The Kingsville Facility Lease.
- 5. Service Agreement between Greenway and TSX Trust Company dated September 21, 2018, appointing TSX Trust Company as the Corporation's transfer agent and registrar.
- 6. The Bank Credit Facility Agreement.
- 7. The Nursery Licence.
- 8. The Cultivation Licence.

Copies of the above material contracts can be inspected at our head office during regular business hours for a period of 30 days after a final receipt is issued for this Prospectus and are also available electronically at www.sedar.com.

EXPERTS

No person or company whose profession or business gives authority to a report, valuation, statement or opinion made by such person or company and who is named in this Prospectus as having prepared or certified a part of this Prospectus, or a report, valuation, statement or opinion described in this Prospectus, has received or shall receive a direct or indirect interest in any securities or other property of the Corporation or any associate or affiliate of the Corporation.

MNP LLP has confirmed that it is independent of the Corporation within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario.

SCHEDULE A Annual Financial Statements and MD&A

See attached.



To the Shareholders of Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation (the "Company"), which comprise the statements of financial position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, and the statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
 or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
 misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
 collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audits and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audits.

Mississauga, Ontario

September 3, 2021

Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants

MNPLLP



Audited statements of financial position

As at March 31, 2021 and 2020

		2021	2020
	Notes	\$	\$
Assets			
Current assets			
Cash		3,456,555	1,443,259
Government remittances receivable		50,024	200,666
Biological assets	4	888,772	-
Prepaid expenses and deposits		27,780	88,060
		4,423,131	1,731,985
Property, plant and equipment	5	20,687,193	15,875,741
she switch a second sale has a		25,110,324	17,607,726
P. D. D. D. C.			
Liabilities			
Current liabilities			c=0.00 <i>t</i>
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities		896,024	679,284
Loan payable to related party - Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.		-	119,693
Current portion of lease liability	6	95,488	90,389
Current portion of long-term debt	7	457,500	-
Share capital deposits	8	105,500	59,126
		1,554,512	948,492
Lease liability	6	2,777,990	2,873,478
Long-term debt	7	10,514,063	4,916,083
		14,846,565	8,738,053
Shareholders' Equity			
Share capital	8	13,728,767	11,486,629
Share-based payments reserve	12	5,460,857	5,076,754
Deficit Deficit		(8,925,865)	(7,693,710)
		10,263,759	8,869,673
		25,110,324	17,607,726
Subsequent Events (Note 16)			

Subsequent Events (Note 16)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(signed) "Jamie D' Alimonte"	Director
(signed) "Darren Peddle"	Director

Audited statements of loss and comprehensive loss

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

		2021	2020
	Notes	\$	\$
Operating Expenses			
Amortization	5	515,952	465,315
General and administration	13	604,321	684,373
Share-based compensation	12	384,103	701,439
Professional fees		184,786	183,804
Marketing and promotion		30,858	41,549
Research and development		10,932	-
		1,730,952	2,076,480
Operating loss		(1,730,952)	(2,076,480)
Interest income (expense), net	6, 9	(239,080)	(143,560)
Rental income	6, 9	250,000	229,167
Write-off of uncollectible deposit		-	(190,000)
Unrealized gain on fair value of biological assets	4	487,877	-
Net loss and comprehensive loss		(1,232,155)	(2,180,873)
Weighted average number of common shares - Basic and dile	uted	167,302,996	165,524,992
Loss per share - Basic and diluted	14	(0.01)	(0.01)

Audited statements of changes in equity

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

	Notes	Number of common shares	Share capital amount \$	Share-based payments reserve \$	Deficit \$	Total \$
Balance, March 31, 2019		163,922,501	9,416,420	4,375,315	(5,512,837)	8,278,898
Shares issued	8	3,192,938	2,070,209	-	-	2,070,209
Share-based compensation	12	-	-	701,439	-	701,439
Net loss		-	-	-	(2,180,873)	(2,180,873)
Balance, March 31, 2020		167,115,439	11,486,629	5,076,754	(7,693,710)	8,869,673
Shares issued	8	4,566,127	2,242,138	-	-	2,242,138
Share-based compensation	12	-	-	384,103	-	384,103
Net loss		-	-	-	(1,232,155)	(1,232,155)
Balance, March 31, 2021		171,681,566	13,728,767	5,460,857	(8,925,865)	10,263,759

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Audited statements of cash flows

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

	2021 \$	2020 \$
Cash used in operating activities:		
Net loss for the year	(1,232,155)	(2,180,873)
Items not affecting cash		
Amortization	515,952	465,315
Share-based compensation	384,103	701,439
Amortization of deferred financing fees	6,518	-
Accretion on lease liability	159,611	150,556
Unrealized gain on fair value of biological assets	(487,877)	-
Changes in non-cash working capital		
Decrease (increase) in:		
Government remittances receivable	150,642	(185,030)
Biological assets	(365,895)	-
Prepaid expenses and deposits	60,280	106,940
Increase in:		
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	216,740	500,544
	(592,081)	(441,109)
Cash used in investing activity		
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	(5,362,404)	(5,087,418)
Cash used in financing activities		
Repayment of loan payable to related party	(119,693)	(34,385)
Payment of lease liability	(250,000)	(229,167)
Proceeds from long-term debt	6,048,962	4,916,083
Share capital deposits	105,500	59,126
Issuance of share capital	2,183,012	1,104,921
	7,967,781	5,816,578
Net increase in cash	2,013,296	288,051
Cash, beginning of year	1,443,259	1,155,208
Cash, end of year	3,456,555	1,443,259

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

1. Nature of operations

Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation (the "Company") is licensed to cultivate, process and sell (B2B) under the Cannabis Act, having obtained its Standard Nursery Licence on July 24, 2020 and its Standard Cultivation Licence on February 5, 2021. The Company is a majority-owned subsidiary of Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. (the "Parent Company")

The address of the Company's registered office is 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario N9Y 2M2.

These financial statements were approved and authorized for use by the Board of Directors on August 11, 2021.

2. Basis of presentation

a) Statement of compliance

The policies applied in these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations Committee ("IFIC").

b) Basis of presentation and measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except for biological assets that are measured at fair value less costs to sell, as detailed in the Company's accounting policies. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

c) Functional currency

All figures presented in the financial statements are reflected in Canadian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated to the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates in effect on the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate applicable at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary items carried at historical cost denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the date of the transactions. Non-monetary items carried at fair value denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the date when the fair value was determined. Realized and unrealized exchange gains and losses are recognized through profit and loss.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies used by the Company are as follows:

a) Revenue recognition

To determine the amount and timing of revenue to be recognized, the Company applies the following five steps:

- 1. Identifying the contract with a customer
- 2. Identifying the performance obligations in the contract
- 3. Determining the transaction price
- 4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
- 5. Recognizing revenue when or as performance obligations are satisfied

Revenue from the sale of goods to customers for a fixed price is recognized when the Company transfers control of the goods to the customer.

b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and liquid cash investments of the Company with an original term to maturity of 90 days or less and exclude cash subject to restrictions. The Company's balance of cash and cash equivalents is comprised of cash on hand and deposits held with banks.

c) Biological assets

The Company's biological assets consist of cannabis plants which are not yet harvested. These biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell. While the Company's biological assets are within the scope of IAS 41 Agriculture, the direct and indirect costs of biological assets are determined using an approach similar to the capitalization criteria outlined in IAS 2 Inventories. The Company capitalizes all related costs of growing materials as well as other indirect costs of production such as utilities and supplies used in the growing process. Indirect labour for individuals involved in the growing and quality control process is also included, as well as amortization on production equipment and overhead costs to the extent it is associated with the growing space. All direct and indirect costs of biological assets are capitalized as they are incurred, and subsequently transferred to inventory at the point of harvest.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

d) Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. Amortization of leasehold improvements is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. Amortization of all other property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis. Amortization rates are as follows:

Greenhouse	4%
Building	5%
Production and warehouse equipment	8%
Office equipment	20%
Computer equipment	50%
Leasehold improvements	Lease term

Assets under construction are recorded at cost and, when substantially complete and available for their intended use, amortization is charged against the assets based on their estimated useful lives. Right-of-use assets recognized under lease agreements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

e) Investment property

The Company has developed a policy to determine which properties are investment properties, which includes an assessment of the future use and intent of the property, and the value of any rental income earned on the property relative to the carrying value of the property. As of the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not hold any assets that would fulfil the criteria of investment property.

f) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of all qualifying temporary differences arising between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent future recovery is probable. At each reporting period end, deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable earnings will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

g) Impairment of long-lived assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is an indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

For purposes of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into cash generating units ("CGU"), the smallest group of assets that generate net cash flows from continuing use that are largely dependent on the net cash flows from other assets or group of assets.

Impairments are recorded when the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell or its value in use. Impairment losses are evaluated for potential reversals when events or changes in circumstances warrant such consideration.

h) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. The dilutive effect on earnings per share is calculated presuming the exercise of outstanding options, warrants, convertible debentures, and similar instruments. It assumes that the proceeds of such exercise would be used to repurchase common shares at the average market price during the year. However, the calculation of diluted loss per share excludes the effects of various conversions and exercise of options and warrants that would be anti-dilutive.

i) Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties. The Company's related party transactions are conducted on commercial terms and conditions in the normal course of business.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

j) Share-based compensation

The Company's equity settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and rely on several inputs, such as the expected life of the option, the volatility of the underlying share price, the risk-free rate of return, and the estimated dividend yield, if any.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a per tranche basis of the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

In the case of any modification to equity-settled share-based payment terms, the incremental fair value granted as a result of the modification will be measured and recognized over the period from the modification date until the date when the modified equity instruments yest.

k) Research and development

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures are capitalized only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product of process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development to use or sell the asset. Other development expenditures that do not meet the above criteria are recognized in the statements of loss and comprehensive loss as incurred.

Development expenditures which meet the criteria for capitalization are recorded at cost and amortized over the estimate useful life of the asset developed using a straight-line method.

I) Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognizes the leases as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the lease assets are assumed.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate is defined as the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow, over a similar term and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

- fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;
- the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and
- the exercise of purchase options if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
- the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected
 payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
 remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
 (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
 which case a revised discount rate is used).
- a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognized and measured under IAS 37. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The amortization starts at the commencement date of the lease.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line administrative expenses in the statements of loss and comprehensive loss.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has elected to use this practical expedient.

m) Financial instruments

A financial asset or liability is recognized if the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the asset or liability. A financial asset or liability is recognized initially (at trade date) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss.

After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at their fair values except for those which are measured at amortized cost. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are measured at fair value.

The Company classifies its financial assets and liabilities according to their characteristics, and management's choices and intentions related thereto for the purposes of ongoing measurement.

Classification choices for financial assets include:

- Amortized cost recorded at amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in net earnings in the period that the asset is no longer recognized or impaired.
- Fair value through profit and loss

Classification choices for financial liabilities include:

 Amortized cost – measured at amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss in the period that the liability is no longer recognized.

Classification and

The Company's financial assets and liabilities are classified and measured as follows:

Financial assets and liabilities	measurement
Cash	FVTPL
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	Amortized cost
Loan payable to related party	Amortized cost
Lease liability	Amortized cost
Long-term debt	Amortized cost

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

n) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets that are measured at amortized cost. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial asset.

The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognizes lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to the 12-month FCI

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12-months after the reporting date.

o) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period.

The following are the critical judgments that management has made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

i. Biological assets

Management is required to make a number of estimates in calculating the fair value less costs to sell of biological assets. Their estimates include a number of assumptions such as estimating the stage of growth of the cannabis, harvesting costs, sales price and expected yields.

ii. Impairment of long-lived assets

Impairment of long-lived assets is influenced by judgment in defining a CGU and determining the indicators of impairment, and estimates used to measure impairment losses. The recoverable value of long-lived assets is determined using discounted future cash flow models, which incorporate assumptions regarding future events, specifically future cash flows, growth rates and discount rates.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

iii. Estimated useful lives and amortization of property, plant, and equipment
 Amortization of property, plant and equipment is dependent upon estimates of useful lives based on management's judgment.

iv. Share-based compensation

A fair value assessment of the Company's share price and certain assumptions relating to the expected life of options granted are required for the purpose of valuing share-based compensation. Certain assumptions made in the calculations of inputs into the fair value assessment are based on management's judgment and reference to comparable companies within the industry sector.

v. Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized only when it is determined to be likely that they will be realized, which requires an evaluation based on management's judgment.

p) Reclassification of comparative accounts

The Company has reclassified certain immaterial items on the comparative statements of financial position, statement of loss and comprehensive loss and statement of cash flows to improve clarity. These reclassifications consist of groupings of similar accounts such as property, plant, and equipment and right-of-use assets and general and administrative expenses. In the current year, an immaterial amount of prepaids, regarding fees paid to close the Bank Credit Facility, has been reclassified to long-term debt. On the statement of cash flows, activity regarding right-of-use assets have further disclosure and as well increase (decrease) in share capital deposits have been transferred to financing activities.

4. Biological Assets

Biological assets are comprised of cannabis plants undergoing biological transformation. The changes in the carrying value of biological assets are as follows:

March 31, 2019 and 2020	\$ -
Capitalized costs	400,895
Increase in fair value due to biological transformation	487,877
March 31, 2021	\$ 888,772

The Company measures its biological assets at their fair value less costs to sell. This is determined using a model which estimates the expected harvest yield in grams for plants currently being cultivated, and then adjusts that amount for the expected selling price less costs to sell per gram.

The fair value measurements for biological assets have been categorized as Level 3 fair values based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. The Company's method of accounting for biological assets attributes value accretion on a straight-line basis throughout the life of the biological asset from the flowering stage to the point of harvest and assumes the value of clones is nominal.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

4. Biological Assets (continued)

Biological assets as at March 31, 2021 includes \$35,000 (2020 - \$nil) of amortization expense incurred in the year.

The following table quantifies each significant unobservable input:

	2021	2020
Weighted average expected loss of plants until harvest	1%	-
Expected dry-bud yield (average grams per plant)	200 - 300 grams	-
Expected number of growing weeks	14 - 18 weeks	-
Estimated selling price of dry bud (per gram)	\$1.40	-
Post-harvest cost to complete and sell (per gram)	\$0.25	-

These estimates, by their nature, are subject to changes that could result from volatility of market prices, unanticipated regulatory changes, harvest yields, loss of crops, changes in estimates and other uncontrollable factors that could significantly affect the future fair value of biological assets.

The following table presents the effect of a 10% change in each respective input on the fair valuation of biological assets at March 31, 2021 which would be reported on the statements of loss and comprehensive loss:

	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Weighted average expected loss of plants until harvest	901	-
Expected dry-bud yield (average grams per plant)	88,880	-
Expected number of growing weeks	56,269	-
Estimated selling price of dry bud (per gram)	86,654	-
Post-harvest cost to complete and sell (per gram)	15,477	-

During the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no sales of dry bud nor was there a harvest of plants included in biological assets.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

5. Property, plant, and equipment

	Land	Greenhouse	Building	Warehouse equipment	Leasehold improvements	Production Equipment	Office furniture and computer equipment	Right-of-use assets	Total
Cost	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
At March 31, 2019	562,300	7,484,506	203,600	101,800	_	_	21,746	_	8,373,952
Additions	_	_	_	_	5,086,287	_	1,131	3,042,478	8,129,896
At March 31, 2020	562,300	7,484,506	203,600	101,800	5,086,287	_	22,877	3,042,478	16,503,848
Additions	_	_	_	_	5,249,328	106,477	6,599	_	5,362,404
At March 31, 2021	562,300	7,484,506	203,600	101,800	10,335,615	106,477	29,476	3,042,478	21,866,252
Accumulated amort	ization								
At March 31, 2019	_	149,690	5,090	4,072	_	_	3,940	_	162,792
Amortization	_	299,380	10,180	8,144	_	_	8,164	139,447	465,315
At March 31, 2020	_	449,070	15,270	12,216	_	_	12,104	139,447	628,107
Amortization	_	299,380	10,180	8,144	70,420	4,259	6,445	152,124	550,952
At March 31, 2021	_	748,450	25,450	20,360	70,420	4,259	18,549	291,571	1,179,059
Net book value									
At March 31, 2020	562,300	7,035,436	188,330	89,584	5,086,287		10,773	2,903,031	15,875,741
At March 31, 2021	562,300	6,736,056	178,150	81,440	10,265,195	102,218	10,927	2,750,907	20,687,193

Of the amortization incurred in the year ended March 31, 2021, \$515,952 has been allocated to operating expenses (2020 - \$465,315) and \$35,000 to biological assets (2020 - \$nil).

6. Greenhouse lease liability

The Company leases a greenhouse facility from Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd., a company related by way of common ownership with the majority shareholders of the Company. The lease term for the greenhouse is 20 years, maturing on April 30, 2039.

March 31, 2019	\$ -
Additions	3,042,478
Lease payments	(229,167)
Interest expense	150,556
March 31, 2020	2,963,867
Lease payments	(250,000)
Interest expense	159,611
March 31, 2021	\$ 2,873,478

For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company recognized an interest expense on lease liabilities in the amount of \$159,611 (2020 – \$150,556) in the statements of loss and comprehensive loss.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

6. Greenhouse lease liability (continued)

The Company recognized cash outflow for lease payments of \$250,000 for the year ended March 31, 2021 (2020 – \$229,167) in the statements of cash flows.

The Company used a weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 5.50% at the date of the initial application.

A maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

	\$
Year ending March 31, 2022	250,000
Year ending March 31, 2023	250,000
Year ending March 31, 2024	250,000
Year ending March 31, 2025	250,000
Year ending March 31, 2026	250,000
Thereafter	3,270,833
	4,520,833
Interest due over the term of the lease	1,647,355
	2,873,478
Less Current portion	95,488
	2,777,990

7. Long-term debt

	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Bank Credit Facility - \$6,100,000 - Canadian prime interest rate plus an applicable margin,	6,100,000	1,016,083
3-year term, with a 10-year amortization, repayable in principal plus interest payments		
commencing July 2021, due in December 2022		
Subordinated Credit Facility - \$3,900,000 - Paid in full in current year	-	3,900,000
Subordinated Credit Facility - \$4,900,000 - 5.50%, with a 10-year amortization commencing April 202	4,900,000	_
Other	40,000	_
	11,040,000	4,916,083
Deduct		
Unamortized financing fees on bank credit facility	68,437	-
Principal portion included in current liabilities	457,500	
	10,514,063	4,916,083

Total long-term debt repayments are as follows:

	\$
Next 12 months	457,500
2 years	6,104,063
3 years	490,000
4 years	490,000
5 years	490,000
Thereafter	3,008,437
Balance of obligation	11,040,000

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

7. Long-term debt (continued)

The bank credit facility of \$6,100,000 was entered into on December 18, 2019 and is secured by a first charge on all assets of the Company. Repayments on the committed facility are interest-only (currently prime + 2.0%) until June 30, 2021. Under the terms of the facility, the Company must satisfy certain restrictive covenants. The Company is in compliance with these covenants as at March 31, 2021. Financing fees of \$74,955 were incurred related to this debt. These costs have been deferred and are amortized over the term of the debt.

The subordinated credit facility of \$4,900,000 is owed to the majority shareholder, Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. and is secured by a second charge on all assets of the Company. Payments on the subordinated facility are interest-only until April 1, 2022. The proceeds of this facility were partially utilized to repay the \$3,900,000 financing originally provided by Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, interest expense on long-term debt amounted to \$79,574 (2020 - \$nil) and deferred financing fees of \$6,518 (2020 - \$nil) were recognized on the statement of loss and comprehensive loss.

8. Share capital

Authorized

An unlimited number of common shares

Issued

There are 171,681,566 common shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 – 167,115,431). Shares issued during the year ended March 31, 2021 were as follows:

	Description	Number of shares	Amount \$	Price per share \$
Balance, March 31, 2019		163,922,501	9,416,420	
	Private placement	1,984,892	1,488,665	0.75
	Private placement	1,208,046	604,022	0.50
	Share issuance costs	_	(22,478)	_
Balance, March 31, 2020		167,115,439	11,486,629	
	Private placement	4,566,127	2,283,068	0.50
	Share issuance costs	_	(40,930)	_
Balance, March 31, 2021		171,681,566	13,728,767	

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company closed two financings with the issuance of 1,208,043 common shares at a purchase price of \$0.50 per share for gross proceeds of \$604,022 and the issuance of 1,984,892 common shares at a purchase price of \$0.75 per share for gross proceeds \$1,488,665. Share issuance costs of \$22,478 were incurred in relation to these financings.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company issued 4,566,127 common shares at \$0.50 per share for proceeds of \$2,283,068. Share issuance costs during that period amounted to \$40,930.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

8. Share capital (continued)

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has entered into agreements to issue 211,000 additional common shares with a value of \$0.50 per share for gross proceeds of \$105,500 raised through private placement. These shares have not been issued to investors as of March 31, 2021.

9. Related party transactions

Key management personnel are the officers and directors of the Company. Management and directors' fees and share-based compensation for the year ended March 31, 2021 are summarized as follows:

	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Management and directors' fees	185,396	438,886
Share-based compensation	188,200	309,018
	373,596	747,904

The Company identifies the following as related parties:

Company	Description	Relationship
Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Hydroponic Cultivation	Majority Shareholder of the Company
Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Hydroponic Cultivation	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder
Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	Produce Marketer	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder
Delfresco Express Ltd.	Produce Distribution	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

9. Related party transactions (continued)

The Company shares certain economic resources with related parties resulting in the following expenses billed in the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, from related parties:

			Amount	
Description	Company		2021	2020
•			\$	\$
General labour	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Biological assets	117,888	-
General labour	Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Biological assets	32,086	-
Utilities	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Biological assets	58,287	-
Insurance	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	General and admin	943	-
Property taxes	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	General and admin	1,728	-
Executive wages	Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	General and admin	62,019	26,869
Interest	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Finance expenses	196,625	-

The Company has entered into a lease for approximately 57,000 square feet of greenhouse and warehouse space with Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. The lease agreement commenced May 1, 2019 and the annual rent is \$250,000. The corresponding leased asset has been recorded as a right-of-use asset as described in Note 5.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company entered into a term facility agreement with Via Verda Hydroponics Ltd. The unsecured loan payable had a principal of \$3,900,000 and accrued interest at a rate of 5.5%. The Company was required to make interest only repayments until the Company received its Standard Cultivation Licence.

On March 31, 2021, the Company repaid the \$3,900,000 term facility in full and replaced it with a \$4,900,000 subordinated credit facility from Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., with an interest rate of 5.5% (note 8).

The Company has an operating lease agreement with its majority shareholder, Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., to whom it leases approximately 667,000 square feet of greenhouse and warehouse space. The operating lease agreement is a 12-month term (May 1 to April 30) and is renewed annually. The annual rent is \$250,000 and is paid monthly.

Related party transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange amounts.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

10. Income taxes

The reconciliation of the combined Canadian federal and provincial statutory income tax rate of 26.5% (2020 - 26.5%) to the effective tax rate is as follows:

	2021 \$	2020 \$
Net loss before recovery of income taxes	(1,232,155)	(2,180,873)
Expected income recovery expense Share based compensation & other non-deductible expenses Share issuance costs booked directly to equity	(326,520) 101,790 (10,850)	(577,931) 186,475 —
Write-off of uncollectable deposit Lease liability	235,580	25,175 366,281
Change in tax benefits not recognized	_	

The following table summarizes the components of deferred tax:

	2021	2020
	\$	\$_
Deferred tax assets		
Capital lease obligation	728,990	769,300
Operating losses	138,560	, <u> </u>
Deferred tax liabilities		
Right-of-use assets	(728,990)	(769,300)
Biological assets	(138,560)	_
Net deferred tax liability	_	_

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company has the legal right and intent to offset.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

10. Income taxes (continued)

Deferred taxes are provided as a result of temporary differences that arise due to the differences between the income tax values and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following deductible temporary differences:

	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Property, plant, and equipment	887,490	488,660
Lease obligation	122,570	60,836
Share issuance costs	40,700	_
Operating losses	2,040,110	1,622,516
Capital losses	190,000	190,000

The Canadian operating tax loss carry forwards expire as noted in the table below. The capital loss carry forward may be carried forward indefinitely, but can only be used to reduce capital gains. The remaining deductible temporary differences may be carried forward indefinitely.

The Company's Canadian operating tax losses expire as follows:

	\$_
2039	722,030
2040	900,490
2041	940,470
	2,562,990

11. Capital management

The Company's objective is to maintain sufficient capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the business and safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern. Management defines capital as the Company's shareholders' equity and debt. Since inception, the Company has primarily been financed through long-term debt and the issuance of share capital.

The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on capital criteria for management; but rather promotes year over year sustainable growth. The Company is subject to financial covenants as a result of its loans. Other than these items related to loans payable, as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company currently has not paid any dividends to its shareholders.

12. Stock options

During the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company granted options subject to certain performance and time-based vesting conditions to directors, officers, employees, and consultants as follows:

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

12. Stock options (continued)

Weighted	
average	
exercise price	

	Options	\$_	
March 31, 2019	10,725,000	0.29	
Granted during the year	1,508,500	0.50	
March 31, 2020	12,233,500	0.32	
Granted during the year	1,020,940	0.50	
Forfeited during the year	(3,100,000)	0.26	
Outstanding at March 31, 2021	10,154,440	0.35	

The Company's options as at March 31, 2021 are as follows:

	Options	Options	Exercise price
Expiry date	outstanding	exercisable	\$
Options			
The third annual anniversary of the first day of public trading of common shares	6,000,000	5,800,000	0.25
The third annual anniversary of the first day of public trading of common shares	4,154,440	3,528,440	0.50
Balance, March 31, 2021	10,154,440	9,328,440	0.35

The fair value of options was determined using the following Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model assumptions:

	2021	2020
Share price	\$ 0.50	\$ 0.29 - 0.50
Exercise price	\$ 0.50	\$ 0.29 - 0.50
Expected life	3 - 4 years	6 - 7 years
Volatility	53%	72%
Dividend yield	0%	0%
Risk-free interest rate	0.23% - 0.73%	0.20% - 0.25%

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company recognized \$384,103 (2020 -\$701,439) in share-based compensation in connection with the options granted.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

13. General and administrative expenses

		For the year ended March 31,		
	2021	2020		
	\$	\$		
Management and directors' fees	185,396	438,886		
Office and general	111,368	134,331		
Salaries and wages	149,948	104,431		
Insurance	42,254	-		
Repairs and maintenance	115,355	6,725		
	604,321	684,373		

14. Loss per share

The calculation of loss per share for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 is calculated as follows:

	2021	2020
Basic loss per share:		
Net loss for the year	\$ (1,232,155)	\$ (2,180,873)
Average number of common shares outstanding during the year	167,302,996	165,524,992
Loss per share - basic	\$ (0.01)	\$ (0.01)
	2021	2020
Diluted loss per share:		
Net loss for the year	\$ (1,232,155)	\$ (2,180,873)
Average number of common shares outstanding during the year	167,302,996	165,524,992
"In the money" options outstanding during the year (i)	-	-
	167,302,996	165,524,992
Loss per share - diluted	\$ (0.01)	\$ (0.01)

(i) 6,000,000 in-the-money stock options (2020 - 9,000,000) have not been included in the calculation of diluted loss per share as their impact would be anti-dilutive.

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

15. Risk Management

15.1 Financial Risk Management

The Company may be exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. The main objectives of the Company's risk management processes are to ensure that risks are properly identified and that the capital base is adequate in relation to those risks. The principal risks to which the Company is exposed are described below.

a) Capital risk

The company manages its capital to ensure that there are adequate capital resources for the Company to maintain operations. The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and share capital.

b) Interest rate risk

The Company may invest surplus cash in highly liquid investments with short terms to maturity that would accumulate interest at prevailing rates for such investments. As at March 31, 2021, the Company had invested no such funds in liquid investments.

The Company's Bank Credit Facility (Note 7) currently bears interest at the Canadian prime rate plus 2%. An increase in the prime rate by 0.5% would increase the Company's annual interest expense by approximately \$30,000.

c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company's trade accounts receivable. The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties. In the current period, the Company is not yet selling a product and therefore holds no credit risk from customers.

d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by reviewing on an ongoing basis its cash requirements. As at March 31, 2021, the most significant financial liabilities are accounts payable and accrued liabilities, lease liability and long-term debt.

As at March 31, 2021, the Company's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:

	Due within Less than 1 year	1-2 years	2-3 years	3-4 years	> 4 years	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	896,024	-	-	-	-	896,024
Share capital deposits	105,500	-	-	-	-	105,500
Lease liability	250,000	250,000	250,000	250,000	3,520,833	4,520,833
Long-term debt	457,500	650,000	1,100,000	1,100,000	7,732,500	11,040,000
	1,709,024	900,000	1,350,000	1,350,000	11,253,333	16,562,357

Notes to the financial statements

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 (In Canadian dollars)

15. Risk Management (continued)

e) Market risk

Market risk incorporates a range of risks. Movements in risk factors, such as market price risk and currency risk, affect the fair values of financial assets and liabilities. The Company is not exposed to these risks.

15.2 Fair Values

The carrying values of cash, government remittances receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to their short-term maturity. For long-term liabilities, fair value approximates their carrying value at the fiscal year end as the interest rates used to discount these contracts approximate market rates.

Assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level in input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2 – Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that not observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 – Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (supported by little or no market activity).

16. Subsequent events

On May 5, 2021, the Company issued 2,458,000 common shares for gross proceeds of \$1,229,000.

On May 13, 2021, Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. surrendered 52,507,547 common shares of the Company for cancellation. The Company subsequently cancelled these common shares.

Effective May 1, 2021, the Company entered into a long-term lease agreement with Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. for the facility commonly referred to as the cannabis nursery, located at 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario. The term is from May 1, 2021 to April 30, 2039. The monthly cash rent fee is \$25,000, inclusive of utilities, insurance, and property taxes. The lease will be accounted for as a right-of-use asset.

In May 2021, the Company issued a total of 178,560 stock options to employees and consultants on the Company. The options can be exercised into a common share of the Company at a price of \$0.50 per common share and expiry on the second anniversary of the Company's listing on a public stock exchange.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS For the 12 months ended March 31, 2021

This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of the financial condition and results of operations of Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation (the "Company" or "Greenway"), is for the twelve months ended March 31, 2021. It is supplemental to, and should be read in conjunction with, the Company's audited financial statements and the accompanying notes for the twelve months ended March 31, 2021. Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). This MD&A has been prepared by reference to the MD&A disclosure requirements established under National Instrument 51-102 - Continuous Disclosure Obligations ("NI 51-102") of the Canadian Securities Administrators.

In this MD&A, reference is made to adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes Depreciation and Amortization ("Adjusted EBITDA") which does not have any standardized meaning under IFRS and is not a measure of financial performance under IFRS, and therefore, may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Management believes this measure provides useful information as it is a commonly used measure in the capital markets and as it is a close proxy for repeatable cash generated by operations.

The Company calculates Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) plus (minus) income taxes (recovery), plus (minus) interest (income) expense, net, minus rental income, plus write-off of uncollectible deposit, minus unrealized gain on fair value of biological assets, plus amortization, plus share-based compensation, plus impairment, plus transaction costs and certain one-time non-operating expenses, as determined by management.

All dollar amounts in this MD&A are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

MD&A contains forward-looking information within the meaning of Canadian securities laws. Refer to "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" for cautionary statements regarding forward-looking statements.

This MD&A is prepared as of September 3, 2021.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this MD&A and the Prospectus to which it is appended are forward-looking statements, which reflect management's expectations regarding our future growth, results of operations, performance and business prospects and opportunities including statements related to the development of existing and future property interests, availability of financing and projected costs and expenses. Forward-looking statements consist of statements that are not purely historical, including any statements regarding beliefs, plans, expectations or intentions regarding the future and include statements with words such as "seek", "anticipate", "budget", "plan", "continue", "estimate", "expect", "forecast", "may", "will", "project", "predict", "potential", "targeting", "intend", "could", "might", "should", "believe", or similar words suggesting future outcomes or statements regarding an outlook, or other expectations, beliefs, plans objectives, assumptions, intentions or statements about future events or performance. The forwardlooking statements are included principally in the following sections of this MD&A: "Description of Business", "Liquidity", "Proposed Transactions" and "Subsequent Events". Such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results, performance or developments to differ materially from those contained in the statements. No assurance can be given that any of the events anticipated by the forward-looking statements will occur or, if they do occur, what benefits we will obtain from them. These forward-looking statements reflect management's current views and are based on certain assumptions and speak only as of the date of this MD&A. These assumptions, which include management's current expectations, estimates and assumptions about the global economic environment, the market price and demand for our products and our ability to manage our operating costs, may prove to be incorrect. A number of risks and uncertainties could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied

by the forward-looking statements, including: (1) a downturn in general economic conditions, (2) the uncertainty of government regulation and politics (3) potential negative financial impact from regulatory investigations, claims, lawsuits and other legal proceedings and challenges, and (4) other factors beyond our control.

There is a significant risk that such forward-looking statements will not prove to be accurate. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. No forward-looking statement is a guarantee of future results. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law. Additional information about these and other assumptions, risks and uncertainties are set out in the section entitled "Risk Factors" in the Prospectus.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Greenway is licensed to cultivate, process and sell (B2B) under the *Cannabis Act* (Canada), having obtained its Standard Nursery Licence and Standard Cultivation Licence (collectively, the "Licences"). The Company's business model is to cultivate, bulk package and wholesale high quality dry bud cannabis to other cannabis companies that are licensed pursuant to the *Cannabis Act* (Canada) and the Cannabis Regulations ("Licencees"). The Company was incorporated under the laws of the *Business Corporations Act* (Ontario) on July 9, 2018. The Company's registered office is 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario, N9Y 2M2.

The Company intends to become a reporting issuer in the Province of Ontario by filing a non-offering, long-form prospectus and, in parallel, submitting an application to list its common shares on the Canadian Securities Exchange ("CSE").

HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE PERIOD

The Company commenced cultivation of cannabis in February 2021 and is currently processing finished product and actively seeking potential customers for wholesale purchases of bulk packaged cannabis. Greenway is still in its start- up phase.

The following highlights occurred during the twelve months ended March 31, 2021:

On July 24, 2020, Greenway received its Standard Nursery Licence from Health Canada. This allowed the Company to receive its seed bank and starting materials (also referred to as genetics) for operations. The facility is a warehouse style with fourteen individual, climate controlled and sealed grow pods that are connected to the exterior walls of the warehouse. The Standard Nursery Licence authorizes the facility, located at 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario (the "Nursery"), to house mother plants and cultivate clones or vegetative plants for sale to other Licensees or to supply other facilities owned by the Company. Also, the Nursery is allowed to grow finished product of dry bud, for testing purposes, as long as the total finished product does not exceed five kilograms, at any one time, at this facility. Subsequent to year-end, Greenway entered into a lease agreement with Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. for this facility.

In August 2020, the retrofit construction of the leased 41,750 square feet greenhouse and 15,500 square feet of processing warehouse located at 1102 Mersea Road 5, Leamington, Ontario, N8H 3V6 reached substantial completion (the "Cultivation Facility"). Shortly thereafter, the evidence package for the Cultivation Facility was submitted to Health Canada with the application for a Standard Cultivation Licence. The majority of the Company's cannabis production and revenue generation is expected to occur at this facility. The Cultivation Facility, which is leased from Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd., is within a large-scale hydroponic greenhouse that spans approximately 1,000,000 square feet. The Company has the option to expand its footprint for lease or to purchase the entire facility. The Company is entitled to lease additional greenhouse square footage for retrofit and eventual cannabis production for approximately \$2.40 per square foot per annum. If the Company exercises its right to purchase the entire facility, the price will be determined by a third-party appraiser, using the assumption that the entire facility is constructed and fitted solely for produce production (not cannabis). Management notes that, at the time of this MD&A, Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. is expanding its facility by an additional 870,000 square feet. Therefore, if the Company purchases the entire facility in the future it will acquire an aggregate of 1,870,000 square feet, approximately.

On November 20, 2020, the Company closed a tranche of its private placement and issued 487,750 common shares from treasury for \$0.50 per share, of which 478,000 shares were issued for cash, and 9,750 shares were issued to a director for services rendered. The Company paid finders and administrative fees of \$6,675 related to the closing of the tranche of the private placement. The net cash proceeds of \$232,325 were used for working capital purposes.

On February 5, 2021, the Company received its Standard Cultivation Licence from Health Canada for the abovenoted Cultivation Facility. The Standard Cultivation Licence authorizes the Company to cultivate cannabis, without capacity limits, within its current 41,750 square footage. The Company immediately began transferring vegetative plants from its Nursery and commenced flowering as soon as was feasible.

On March 1, 2021, the Company appointed Dennis Staudt to the Board of Directors. Dennis Staudt has over 35 years' experience providing business advice to a number of private companies, having spent most of his career with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"), including 22 years as a partner in PwC's Audit and Assurance Group. Following his retirement from PwC in 2012, Mr. Staudt joined the board of directors of Aphria Inc. (TSX: APH), where he served from July 2014 to September 2018. Mr. Staudt is currently the Vice-President of Staudt Farms Limited, a family-owned farming operation in Leamington, Ontario and is also a member of the Board of Directors of HAVN Life Sciences Inc. (CSE:HAVN).

On March 11, 2021, the Company fully planted the last area intended for flowering at the Cultivation Facility. This last area accounted for approximately 4% of the total flowering space. The majority of the greenhouse at the Cultivation Facility was planted in February 2021. Management decided to leave one area unplanted for future development and testing of other genetics in the seed bank. This development area accounts for 1,440 of the total 41,750 square feet floor plan.

On March 31, 2021, the Company closed another tranche of its private placement and issued 4,078,385 common shares from treasury for \$0.50 per share, of which 4,072,968 shares were issued for cash, and 5,417 of shares were issued to a director for services rendered. The Company paid finders and administrative fees of \$34,255 related to the closing of the tranche of the private placement. The net cash proceeds of \$2,002,229 were used for working capital purposes.

On May 5, 2021, the Company closed the last tranche of its private placement and issued 2,458,000 common shares from treasury for \$0.50 per share. The Company paid finders and administrative fees of \$23,715 related to the closing of the tranche of the private placement. The net cash proceeds of \$1,201,285 were used for working capital purposes.

On May 11, 2021, the Company finished harvesting the above-noted, final area of the first crop. At that time, all product was within the processing cycle (drying, bucking, curing, trimming, packaging). Expected yields per plant are in the range of 200 to 300 grams, but management noted that plant yields are dependent on many factors, most importantly the specific genetic strain. The Company may cultivate different genetic strains in the future. The entire grow period, from cloning to harvest, was approximately 18 weeks. Management noted that the length of this grow period was greater than expected in the future, as the period in the Nursery was extended while the Company waited to receive the Health Canada licence for the Cultivation Facility. In future periods, management expects the plants to grow for 4 to 5 weeks in the Nursery and 9-10 weeks in the Cultivation Facility. With an expectation of 9 to 10 weeks for flowering, and extra capacity in the Nursery, the Company expects to produce 5 crop cycles per year.

On June 8, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the preliminary non-offering, long-form prospectus and the draft application for listing to the CSE, amongst other items.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The Company has not generated revenues to date from operations as it is in the startup phase; however, the Company commenced growing its first crop of cannabis and harvested it subsequent to year-end.

The Company's first crop is currently being tested by a number of third party, Health Canada approved, licensed labs and is expected to be sold to other Licencees.

The net assets of the Company increased from \$8,869,673 as at March 31, 2020 to \$10,263,759 at March 31, 2021, an increase of \$1,394,086. The assets at March 31, 2021 consist primarily of property, plant and equipment of \$20,687,193 (March 31, 2020 - \$15,875,741), cash of \$3,456,555 (March 31, 2020 - \$1,443,259), biological assets of \$888,772(March 31, 2020 - \$nil), and government remittances receivable and prepaid expenses and deposits of \$288,726 (March 31, 2020 - \$213,771).

Liabilities as of March 31, 2021 consists of accounts payable and accrued liabilities of \$896,024 (March 31, 2020 - \$679,284), lease liability of \$2,873,478 (March 31, 2020 - \$2,963,867), long-term debt of \$10,971,563 (March 31, 2020 - \$4,916,083), share capital deposits of \$105,500 (March 31, 2020 - \$59,126), and loan payable to related party of nil (March 31, 2020 - \$119,693).

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation Statements of loss and comprehensive loss

Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

		I
	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Operating Expenses		
Amortization	515,952	465,315
General and administration	604,321	684,373
Share-based compensation	384,103	701,439
Professional fees	184,786	183,804
Marketing and promotion	30,858	41,549
Research and development	10,932	<u>-</u>
	4 = 20 0 = 2	2.076.400
	1,730,952	2,076,480
Operating loss	(1,730,952)	(2,076,480)
Interest income (expense), net Rental income	(239,080)	(143,560)
	250,000	229,167
Write-off of uncollectible deposit	-	(190,000)
Unrealized gain on fair value of biological assets	487,877	
Net loss and comprehensive loss	(1,232,155)	(2,180,873)
Weighted average number of common shares - basic	167,302,996	165,524,992
Weighted average number of common shares - diluted	167,302,996	165,524,992
Loss per share - basic	(0.01)	(0.01)
Loss per share - diluted	(0.01)	(0.01)

The following highlights the key operating expenditures during the twelve months ended March 31, 2021.

For the twelve months ended March 31, 2021

During the twelve months ended March 31, 2021, the Company incurred a loss and comprehensive loss of \$1,232,155 (2020 - \$2,180,873). The loss and comprehensive loss for the period consists primarily of the following:

- Amortization expense of \$515,952 (2020 \$465,315) consists of the property, plant, and equipment amortization, as well as amortization of the right-of-use asset. This was an increase of \$50,637 from the prior period, as the main cultivation facility commenced operations in February 2021, with a portion (\$35,000) being capitalized to biological assets.
- General and administration expenses consist of management and directors' fees of \$185,396 (2020 \$438,886), office and general of \$111,368 (2020 \$134,331), salaries and wages of \$65,375 (2020 \$104,431), insurance of \$42,254 (2020 \$nil) and repairs and maintenance of \$115,355 (2020 \$6,725). The most significant contributor to the net decrease of \$80,052 was the inclusion of certain salaries and wages into the determination of biological assets due to the commencement of operations in the current year.
- Share-based compensation of \$384,103 (2020 \$701,439) consists of the non-cash fair value as measured by the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The current year expense is based on 1,542,940 (2020 1,156,500) stock options granted and vested.
- Professional fees of \$184,786 (2020 \$183,804) consists primarily of consulting fees incurred in connection with the Health Canada licence applications, annual audit fees, external corporate secretary services, and legal fees regarding private placements.
- Marketing and promotion expense of \$30,858 (2020 \$41,549) consists primarily of website development and promotional materials with respect to cannabis products.
- Research and development expense of \$10,932 (2020 \$nil) consists primarily of materials and testing for product development incurred in the cannabis Nursery before operations commenced in the Cultivation Facility.
- Interest expense of \$239,080 (2020 \$143,560) consists primarily of interest from long-term debt and the right-of-use-asset. The increase in the expense is attributable to the increase of debt regarding construction of the Cultivation Facility.
- Rental income of \$250,000 (2020 \$229,167) primarily consists of renting a separate greenhouse to Sunrite for an annual amount of \$250,000. Management noted that in the prior year the lease commenced in the second month of the fiscal year.
- Write-off of uncollectible deposit expense of \$nil (2020 \$190,000). Management noted that this expense is non-recurring and is attributable to a discontinued project in the prior year.
- Unrealized gain on fair value of biological assets of \$487,877 (2020 \$nil) was recognized for the first time due to operations commencing in the Cultivation Facility in February of 2021. The Company measures its biological assets at their fair value less costs to sell. This is determined using a model which estimates the expected harvest yield in grams for plants currently being cultivated, and then adjusts that amount for the expected selling price less costs to sell per gram. For purposes of this model, management used an expected yield range of 200 to 300 grams per plant and an average price per gram of \$1.40.

LIQUIDITY

The Company had cash of \$3,456,555 as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - \$1,443,259). The Company had

working capital of \$2,868,619 as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 – \$783,493).

Operating Activities

The Company used cash of \$667,036 in operating activities during the twelve months ended March 31, 2021 (2020 - \$366,154), an increase of \$300,882 primarily from the increase in biological assets of \$365,895.

Investing Activities

The Company used cash of \$5,362,404 (2020 - \$5,087,418) in investing activities primarily pursuant to construction retrofit of the greenhouse for cultivation.

Financing activities

During the twelve months ended March 31, 2021 the company raised net proceeds of \$8,042,736 (2020 - \$5,741,623) through issuances of common shares, drawdowns of the long-term debt facility, and receipt of share capital deposits:

- a) In connection with closing tranches of the aforementioned private placement, the Company raised \$2,275,484 of cash gross proceeds, less \$40,930 in finders and administrative fees. No warrants were issued as a result of this private placement.
- b) In the prior fiscal year, the Company had \$3,900,000 debt owing to a related party Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. ("Via Verde"). In March 2021, the Company's majority shareholder, Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. ("Sunrite"), paid out the debt to Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. and advanced an additional \$1,000,000 to the Company for a total loan of \$4,900,000. This subordinated credit facility bears an interest rate of 5.5% per annum, to be paid monthly, with principal payments to begin in April of 2022. Principal payments will be amortized equally over 10 years.
- c) During the twelve months ended March 31, 2021, the Company made several drawdowns on its term facility with Bank of Montreal for the construction retrofit of the greenhouse. The total of the drawdowns was \$5,083,917. At year end, this credit facility, totaling \$6,100,000, required interest only payments, with an interest rate of prime plus 2.0%. On June 30, 2021, the credit facility will meet a conversion point, where it will become a principal plus interest monthly payment. The interest rate terms are expected to remain the same and the principal portion will be amortized equally over 120 monthly payments.

The Company plans to continue raising capital primarily through the private placement of its equity securities as needed. Under such circumstances, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain further funds required for the Company's continued working capital requirements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Key management personnel are the officers and directors of the Company. Management and directors' fees and share-based compensation for the twelve months ended March 31, 2021 is summarized as follows:

	March 31, 2021		March 31, 2020		
Management and directors' fees	\$	185,396	\$	438,886	
Share-based compensation (fair value)	\$	188,200	\$	309,018	

\$	373,596	\$ 747,904

As at March 31, 2021, \$\sin \text{inil} (March 31, 2020 - \$\sin \text{inil}) is owed to certain officers and directors of the Company.

The Company identifies the following as related parties:

Company	Description Relationship		
Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Hydroponic Cultivation	Majority Shareholder of the Company	
Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Hydroponic Cultivation	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder	
Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	Produce Marketer	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder	
Delfresco Express Ltd.	Produce Distribution	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder	

The Company shares certain economic resources with related parties resulting in the following expenses billed in the year ended March 31, 2021, from related parties:

			Amount	
Description	Company		2021	2020
			\$	\$
General labour	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Biological assets	117,888	-
General labour	Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Biological assets	32,086	-
Utilities	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Biological assets	58,287	-
Insurance	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	General and admin	943	-
Property taxes	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	General and admin	1,728	-
Executive wages	Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	General and admin	62,019	26,869
Interest	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Finance expenses	196,625	_

The Company has entered into a lease for approximately 57,000 square feet of greenhouse and warehouse space with Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. The lease agreement commenced May 1, 2019 and the annual rent is \$250,000. The corresponding leased asset has been recorded as a right-of-use asset as described in Note 7 to the financial statements.

On March 31, 2021, the Company paid in full the unsecured \$3,900,000 financing from Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. (2020 - \$3,900,000) and replaced it with a \$4,900,000 subordinated credit facility from Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.

The Company has an operating lease agreement with Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., to whom it leases approximately 667,000 square feet of greenhouse and warehouse space. The operating lease agreement is a 12 month term (May 1 to April 30) and is renewed annually. The annual rent is \$250,000 and is paid monthly.

Related party transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange amounts.

During the twelve months ended March 31, 2021, the Company recorded:

Equity incentives granted and fees paid to the following for services rendered:	Options	Fair Value	Fees paid
		\$	\$
Darren Peddle, CFO pursuant to officer services provided	-	-	62,019
Dennis Staudt, a Director of the Company pursuant to director services provided	500,000	97,600	4,167
Martin Komsa, a Director of the Company pursuant to director services provided	-	-	15,625
Konrad Pimiskern, former SVP Business Development for officer services provided	-	-	192,905
		\$97,600	\$274,716

PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS

There were no proposed transactions other than the planned listing of common shares on the CSE.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 5, 2021, the Company closed the last tranche of its private placement and issued 2,458,000 common shares from treasury for \$0.50 per share. The Company paid finders and administrative fees of \$23,715 related to the closing of the tranche of the private placement. The net cash proceeds of \$1,205,285 were used for working capital purposes.

On May 13, 2021, Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. voluntarily surrendered 52,507,547 common shares to the Company, which were subsequently cancelled.

Effective May 1, 2021, the Company entered into a long-term lease agreement with Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. for the Nursery. The term is from May 1, 2021 to April 30, 2039. The monthly cash rent fee is \$25,000, inclusive of utilities, insurance and property taxes. The lease will be accounted for as a right-of-use asset.

On May 11, 2021, the Company finished harvesting the final area of the first crop and, as of that date, all harvested cannabis was within the processing cycle (drying, bucking, curing, trimming, and packaging). The Company commenced cleaning and preparing for planting the next crop at the Cultivation Facility. The Company expects to harvest five crops per fiscal year. Additional information with respect to yields and costs of production will be provided in subsequent quarterly MD&A filings.

On June 8, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the preliminary non-offering, long-form prospectus and the draft application to the CSE, amongst other items.

Subsequent to June 30, 2021, the Company shipped inventory and recorded approximately \$200,000 in revenue.

Subsequent to March 31, 2021, the Company issued the following stock options:

	Description	Number of options issued	Options exercised	Exercise price	Proceeds
May 1, 2021	Stock options	113,260	-	\$0.50	\$ Nil
May 5, 2021	Stock options	65,300	-	\$0.50	\$ Nil

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

The following is the Company's accounting policy for financial instruments under IFRS 9: (i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), at fair value through other comprehensive income (loss) ("FVTOCI") or at amortized cost. The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of debt instruments is driven by the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Equity instruments that are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. For other equity instruments, on the day of acquisition the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate them as at FVTOCI. Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or if the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

The Company classifies its financial instruments as follows:

Financial assets and liabilities	
Cash	FVTPL
Government remittances receivable	Amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	Amortized cost
Loan payable to related party	Amortized cost
Lease liability	Amortized cost
Long-term debt	Amortized cost

(ii) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value plus or minus transaction costs, respectively, and subsequently carried at amortized cost less any impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the statements of loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the statement of loss in the period in which they arise.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company measures the loss allowance for the financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. If at the reporting date, the financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for the financial asset at an amount equal to the twelve month expected credit losses. The Company shall recognize in the statements of loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized.

(iv) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets expire, or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all of the associated risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. Gains and losses on derecognition are generally recognized in the statements of loss

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE FOR VENTURE ISSUERS WITHOUT SIGNIFICANT REVENUE

During the twelve months ended March 31, 2021, the Company incurred the following significant expenses:

	2021
Amortization	\$ 515,952
Share-based compensation	\$ 384,103
Professional fees	\$ 184,786
Management and directors' fees	\$ 185,396

An analysis of material components of the Company's general and administration expenses, which includes the management and directors' fees, is disclosed in the audited financial statements for the twelve months ended March 31, 2021 to which this MD&A relates as well as the Discussion of Operations section of this MD&A.

Amortization is calculated based on the estimated useful lives of the property, plant, equipment assets, as well as the right-of-use assets. The professional fees consist of the audit and legal fees for services performed to date which include consulting services related to the applications for Health Canada licences. Management and directors' fees consist of the fees paid to the officers and directors for services rendered. Share-based compensation consists of non-cash fair value of stock options.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure that does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Management believes this measure provides useful information as it is a commonly used measure in the capital markets and as it is a close proxy for repeatable cash generated by operations.

The Company calculates adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization ("Adjusted EBITDA") as net income (loss) plus (minus) income taxes (recovery), plus (minus) interest (income) expense, net, minus rental income, plus write-off of uncollectible deposit, minus unrealized gain on fair value of biological assets, plus amortization, plus share-based compensation, plus transaction costs and certain one-time non-operating expenses, as determined by management.

For the twelve months ended	March 31, 2021 March		March 31, 2020	
NET LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS	\$	(1,232,155)	\$	(2,180,873)
Interest (income) expense, net		239,080		143,560
Rental income		(250,000)		(229,167)
Write-off of uncollectible deposit		-		190,000
Unrealized gain on fair value of biological assets		(487,877)		-
Amortization		515,952		465,315
Share-based compensation		384,103		701,439
ADJUSTED EBITDA	\$	(830,897)	\$	(909,726)

DISCLOSURE OF OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

Common Shares

The Company's authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number common shares without par value. As at the date hereof, the Company had 121,632,019 (March 31, 2021 – 171,681,566) common shares issued and outstanding. Subsequent to March 31, 2021, Sunrite voluntarily surrendered 52,507,547 common shares to the Company, which were subsequently cancelled by the Company.

Stock options

As at June 10, 2021, 10,333,000 (March 31, 2021 – 10,154,440) stock options were outstanding as follows:

Expiry Date	Options Outstanding	Options Exercisable	Exercise Price
3rd anniversary from first day of public trading on CSE	6,000,000	5,800,000	\$0.25
3rd anniversary from first day of public trading on CSE	4,333,000	3,593,740	\$0.50
Total	10,333,000	9,393,740	\$0.35

RISK FACTORS

Much of the information included in this report includes or is based upon estimates, projections or other forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements include any projections or estimates made by the Company and its management in connection with the Company's business operations. While these forward-looking statements, and any assumptions upon which they are based, are made in good faith and reflect the Company's current judgment regarding the direction of its business, actual results will almost always vary, sometimes materially, from any estimates, predictions, projections, assumptions, or other future performance suggested herein. Except as required by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of such statements.

Such estimates, projections or other forward-looking statements involve various risks and uncertainties as outlined in the Prospectus. The Company cautions readers of this report that important factors in some cases have affected

and, in the future, could materially affect actual results and cause actual results to differ materially from the results expressed in any such estimates, projections or other forward-looking statements.

BOARD APPROVAL

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved this MD&A.

SCHEDULE B Interim Financial Statements & MD&A

See attached.

Condensed Interim Statements of Financial Position

(Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

Assets Current assets Cash Government remittances receivable Inventory Biological assets Prepaid expenses and deposits	Notes 4 5	June 30, 2021 \$ 2,600,865 163,703 1,678,942 833,933 34,630 5,312,073	March 31, 2021 \$ 3,456,555 50,024 - 888,772 27,780 4,423,131
Property, plant and equipment	6	23,967,965 29,280,038	20,687,193 25,110,324
Liabilities Current liabilities Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Current portion of lease liability Current portion of long-term debt Share capital deposits	7 8	375,353 212,445 732,500 - 1,320,298	896,024 95,488 457,500 105,500 1,554,512
Lease liability Long-term debt	7 8	6,067,161 10,248,839 17,636,298	2,777,990 10,514,063 14,846,565
Shareholders' Equity Share capital Share-based payments reserve Deficit	9 13	14,941,553 5,497,742 (8,795,555) 11,643,740 29,280,038	13,728,767 5,460,857 (8,925,865) 10,263,759 25,110,324

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(signed) "Jamie D' Alimonte"	Director		
(signed) "Darren Peddle"	Director		

Condensed Interim Statements of Income (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

For the three months ended

		June 3	0,
		2021	2020
	Notes	\$	\$
Operating Expenses			
Amortization	6	80,255	119,568
General and administration	14	236,143	105,094
Share-based compensation	13	36,885	77,429
Professional fees		63,936	25,883
Marketing and promotion		25,833	10,360
Research and development		20,707	-
Transaction costs		19,515	-
		483,274	338,334
Operating loss		(483,274)	(338,334)
Interest income (expense), net	7,10	(205,195)	(40,363)
Rental income	7,10	62,500	62,500
Fair value adjustment on growth of biological assets	5	756,279	-
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss)		130,310	(316,197)
Weighted average number of common shares - basic		144,947,898	167,115,439
Weighted average number of common shares - diluted		147,847,898	167,115,439
			, ,
Income (loss) per share - basic		0.00	(0.00)
Income (loss) per share - diluted		0.00	(0.00)

Condensed Interim Statements of Changes in Equity

(Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

For the three months ended June 30, 2020	Notes	Number of common shares	Share capital amount \$	Share-based payments reserve \$	Deficit \$	Total \$
Balance, March 31, 2020		167,115,439	11,486,629	5,076,754	(7,693,710)	8,869,673
Shares issued	9	-	-	-	-	-
Shares cancelled		-	-	-	-	-
Share-based payments	13	-	-	77,429	-	77,429
Net loss		-	-	-	(316,197)	(316,197)
Balance, June 30, 2020		167,115,439	11,486,629	5,154,183	(8,009,907)	8,630,905

For the three months ended June 30, 2021	Notes	Number of common shares	Share capital amount \$	Share-based payments reserve \$	Deficit \$	Total \$
Balance, March 31, 2021		171,681,566	13,728,767	5,460,857	(8,925,865)	10,263,759
Shares issued	9	2,458,000	1,212,786	-	-	1,212,786
Shares cancelled	9	(52,507,547)	-	-	-	-
Share-based payments	13	-	-	36,885	-	36,885
Net income		-	-	-	130,310	130,310
Balance, June 30, 2021		121,632,019	14,941,553	5,497,742	(8,795,555)	11,643,740

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Condensed Interim Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

	For the three mo	
	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Cash used in operating activities:		
Net income (loss) for the period	130,310	(316,197)
Items not affecting cash		
Amortization	80,255	119,568
Share-based compensation	36,885	77,429
Amortization of deferred financing fees	9,776	-
Accretion on lease liability	70,453	40,366
Fair value adjustment on growth of biological assets	(756,279)	-
Changes in non-cash working capital		
Decrease (increase) in:		
Government remittances receivable	(113,679)	57,168
Inventory	(678,728)	-
Biological assets	22,892	-
Prepaid expenses and deposits	(6,850)	3,105
Increase (decrease) in:		
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	(64,519)	83,344
	(1,269,484)	64,783
Cash used in investing activity		
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	(580,992)	(1,672,974)
Cash used in financing activities		(7.706)
Repayment of loan payable to related party	-	(7,796)
Payment of lease liability	(112,500)	(62,500)
Proceeds from long-term debt	-	1,600,948
Share capital deposits	-	74,624
Issuance of share capital, net of issurance costs	1,107,286	4 605 276
	994,786	1,605,276
Not be a second to the second	(077.000)	/2.045
Net increase (decrease) in cash	(855,690)	(2,915)
Cash, beginning of period	3,456,555	1,443,259
Cash, end of period	2,600,865	1,440,344

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

1. Nature of operations

Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation (the "Company") is licensed to cultivate, process and sell (B2B) under the Cannabis Act, having obtained its Standard Nursery Licence on July 24, 2020 and its Standard Cultivation Licence on February 5, 2021. The Company's majority shareholder is Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.

The address of the Company's registered office is 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario N9Y 2M2.

These financial statements were approved and authorized for use by the Board of Directors on Sept 3, 2021.

2. Basis of presentation

a) Statement of compliance

The Company's condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34, "Interim Financial Reporting". These condensed interim financial statements do not include all notes of the type normally included within the annual financial report and should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and Interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

b) Basis of presentation and measurement

These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except for biological assets that are measured at fair value less costs to sell, as detailed in the Company's accounting policies. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

c) Functional currency

All figures presented in the financial statements are reflected in Canadian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated to the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates in effect on the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate applicable at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary items carried at historical cost denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the date of the transactions. Non-monetary items carried at fair value denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the date when the fair value was determined. Realized and unrealized exchange gains and losses are recognized through profit and loss.

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies

These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared following the same accounting policies used in the preparation of the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021. For comparative purposes, the Company has reclassified certain immaterial items on the condensed interim statements of financial position and the condensed interim statements of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) to conform with the current period's presentation.

4. Inventory

The following is a summary of inventory activity for the three months ended June 30, 2021:

Balance at June 30, 2021	\$ 1,678,942
Processing costs capitalized	347,515
Transferred from biological assets on harvest	1,331,427
Balance at March 31, 2021	-

Inventory is comprised of:

	Capitalized	Capitalized	Fair value	June 30,	March 31,
	cash cost	depreciation	adjustment	2021	2021
					_
Cannabis dry bud	678,728	176,104	824,110	1,678,942	_

During the period ended June 30, 2021, the Company first recorded inventory. During the period ended June 30, 2021, there were no sales of dry bud.

5. Biological assets

Biological assets are comprised of cannabis plants undergoing biological transformation. The changes in the carrying value of biological assets are as follows:

Balance at March 31, 2020	-
Changes in fair value less costs to sell due to biological transformation	487,877
Production costs capitalized	400,895
Balance at March 31, 2021	888,772
Changes in fair value less costs to sell due to biological transformation	756,279
Production costs capitalized	520,309
Transferred to inventory upon harvest	(1,331,427)
Balance at June 30, 2021	\$ 833,933

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

5. Biological assets (continued)

The Company measures its biological assets at their fair value less costs to sell. This is determined using a model which estimates the expected harvest yield in grams for plants currently being cultivated, and then adjusts that amount for the expected selling price less costs to sell per gram.

The fair value measurements for biological assets have been categorized as Level 3 fair values based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. The Company's method of accounting for biological assets attributes value accretion on a straight-line basis throughout the life of the biological asset from the flowering stage to the point of harvest and assumes the value of clones is nominal.

Biological assets as at June 30, 2021 includes \$70,883 (March 31, 2021 - \$35,000) of amortization expense incurred in the period.

The following table quantifies each significant unobservable input:

	June 30,	March 31,
	2021	2021
Weighted average expected loss of plants until harvest	1%	1%
Expected dry-bud yield (average grams per plant)	200 - 300 grams	200 - 300 grams
Expected number of growing weeks	14 - 18 weeks	14 - 18 weeks
Estimated selling price of dry bud (per gram)	\$1.40	\$1.40
Post-harvest cost to complete and sell (per gram)	\$0.25	\$0.25

These estimates, by their nature, are subject to changes that could result from volatility of market prices, unanticipated regulatory changes, harvest yields, loss of crops, changes in estimates and other uncontrollable factors that could significantly affect the future fair value of biological assets.

The following table presents the effect of a 10% change in each respective input on the fair valuation of biological assets at June 30, 2021 which would be reported on the statements of loss and comprehensive loss:

	June 30,	March 31,
	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Weighted average expected loss of plants until harvest	842	901
Expected dry-bud yield (average grams per plant)	83,394	88,880
Expected number of growing weeks	56,862	56,269
Estimated selling price of dry bud (per gram)	85,293	86,654
Post-harvest cost to complete and sell (per gram)	15,231	15,477

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

6. Property, plant, and equipment

Of the amortization incurred in the period ended June 30, 2021, \$80,255 has been allocated to operating expenses (June 30, 2020 - \$119,568), \$70,833 to biological assets (June 30, 2020 - \$35,000), and \$176,104 to inventory (June 30, 2020 - \$nil).

							Office		
							furniture		
							and		
	Land	Cusanhayaa	D:lalia a	Warehouse	Leasehold	Production	computer	Right-of-use	Tatal
	Land	Greenhouse	Building	equipment	improvements	<u>equipment</u>	equipment	assets	Total
Cost	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
At March 31, 2020	562,300	7,484,506	203,600	101,800	5,086,287	_	22,877	3,042,478	16,503,848
Additions	_	_	_	_	5,249,328	106,477	6,599	_	5,362,404
At March 31, 2021	562,300	7,484,506	203,600	101,800	10,335,615	106,477	29,476	3,042,478	21,866,252
Additions	_	_	_	_	50,687	77,448	53,075	3,448,174	3,629,384
Adjustment	_	_	_	_	(56,370)	_	_	_	(56,370)
At June 30, 2021	562,300	7,484,506	203,600	101,800	10,329,932	183,925	82,551	6,490,652	25,439,266
Accumulated amortization									
At March 31, 2020	_	449,070	15,270	12,216			12,104	139,447	628,107
Amortization		299,380	10,180	8,144	70,420	4,259	6,445	152,124	550,952
At March 31, 2021	_	748,450	25,450	20,360	70,420	4,259	18,549	291,571	1,179,059
Amortization	_	74,845	2,545	2,036	142,317	2,904	829	66,766	292,242
At June 30, 2021	_	823,295	27,995	22,396	212,737	7,163	19,378	358,337	1,471,301
Net book value									
At March 31, 2020	562,300	7,035,436	188,330	89,584	5,086,287	_	10,773	2,903,031	15,875,741
At March 31, 2021	562,300	6,736,056	178,150	81,440	10,265,195	102,218	10,927	2,750,907	20,687,193
At June 30, 2021	562,300	6,661,211	175,605	79,404	10,117,195	176,762	63,173	6,132,315	23,967,965

7. Lease liability

The Company leases two facilities; a greenhouse facility from Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd., a company related by way of common ownership with the majority shareholder of the Company, and an indoor nursery facility from Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., the majority shareholder. Both leases mature on April 30, 2039.

March 31, 2020	\$ 2,963,867
Lease payments	(250,000)
Interest expense	159,611
March 31, 2021	2,873,478
Additions	3,448,174
Lease payments	(112,500)
Interest expense	70,454
June 30, 2021	\$ 6,279,606

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

7. Greenhouse lease liability (continued)

For the period ended June 30, 2021, the Company recognized interest expense on lease liabilities in the amount of \$70,454 (June 30, 2020 – \$40,366) in the statements of loss and comprehensive loss.

The Company recognized cash outflow for lease payments of \$112,500 for the period ended June 30, 2021 (June 30, 2020 – \$62,500) in the statements of cash flows.

The Company used a weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 5.50% at the date of the initial application.

A maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at June 30, 2021 is as follows:

	6,067,161
Less Current portion	212,445
	6,279,606
Interest due over the term of the lease	3,553,727
	9,833,333
Thereafter	7,220,833
Year ending March 31, 2026	550,000
Year ending March 31, 2025	550,000
Year ending March 31, 2024	550,000
Year ending March 31, 2023	550,000
Year ending March 31, 2022	412,500
	\$

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

8. Long-term debt

	June 30,	March 31,
	2021	2021
	\$	\$
Bank Credit Facility - \$6,100,000 - Canadian prime interest rate plus an applicable margin, 3-year term, with a 10-year amortization, repayable in principal plus interest payments commencing July 2021, due in December 2022	6,100,000	6,100,000
Subordinated Credit Facility - \$4,900,000 - 5.50%, with a 10-year amortization commencing April 2022 Other	4,900,000 40,000	4,900,000 40,000
	11,040,000	11,040,000
Deduct		
Unamortized financing fees on bank credit facility	58,661	68,437
Principal portion included in current liabilities	732,500	457,500
	10,248,839	10,514,063

Total long-term debt repayments are as follows:

	\$
Next 12 months	732,500
2 years	5,961,339
3 years	490,000
4 years	490,000
5 years	490,000
Thereafter	2,876,161
Balance of obligation	11,040,000

The bank credit facility of \$6,100,000 was entered into on December 18, 2019 and is secured by a first charge on all assets of the Company. Repayments on the committed facility are interest-only (currently prime + 2.0%) until June 30, 2021. Under the terms of the facility, the Company must satisfy certain restrictive covenants. The Company is in compliance with these covenants as at June 30, 2021. Financing fees of \$74,955 were incurred related to this debt. These costs have been deferred and are amortized over the term of the debt.

The subordinated credit facility of \$4,900,000 is owed to the majority shareholder, Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. and is secured by a second charge on all assets of the Company. Payments on the subordinated facility are interest-only until April 1, 2022.

During the period ended June 30, 2021, interest expense on long-term debt amounted to \$134,795 (June 30, 2020 – \$nil) and deferred financing fees of \$9,776 (2020 - \$nil) was recognized on the statement of loss and comprehensive loss.

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

9. Share capital

Authorized

An unlimited number of common shares

Issued

There are 121,632,019 common shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2021 (March 31, 2021 – 171,681,566). Shares issued during the period ended June 30, 2021 were as follows:

	Description	Number of shares	Amount \$	Price per share \$
Balance, March 31, 2020		167,115,439	11,486,629	
	Private placement	4,566,127	2,283,068	0.50
	Share issuance costs	_	(40,930)	_
Balance, March 31, 2021		171,681,566	13,728,767	
	Private placement	2,458,000	1,229,000	0.50
	Share issuance costs	_	(16,214)	_
	Shares cancelled	(52,507,547)		
Balance, June 30, 2021		121,632,019	14,941,553	

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company issued 4,566,135 common shares at \$0.50 per share for proceeds of \$2,283,068. Share issuance costs during that period amounted to \$40,930.

During the period ended June 30, 2021, the Company issued 2,458,000 common shares at \$0.50 per share for proceeds of \$1,229,000. Share issuance costs during that period amounted to \$16,214. In the same period, the majority shareholder surrendered 52,507,547 shares of the Company which were subsequently cancelled.

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

10. Related party transactions

Key management personnel are the officers and directors of the Company. Management and directors' fees and share-based compensation for the period ended June 30, 2021 are summarized as follows:

	June 30,	June 30,
	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Management and directors' fees	45,217	18,295
Share-based compensation	24,400	49,075
	69,617	67,370

The Company identifies the following as related parties:

Company	Description	Relationship		
Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Hydroponic Cultivation	Majority Shareholder of the Company		
Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Hydroponic Cultivation	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder		
Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	Produce Marketer	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder		
Delfresco Express Ltd.	Produce Distribution	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder		

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

10. Related party transactions (continued)

The Company shares certain economic resources with related parties resulting in the following expenses billed in the periods ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, from related parties:

			June 30,	June 30,
Description	Company		2021	2020
			\$	\$
General labour	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Biological assets/inventory	352,089	-
General labour	Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Biological assets/inventory	80,704	-
Utilities	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Biological assets/inventory	91,937	-
Administrative wages	Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	General and admin	5,620	-
Insurance	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	General and admin	5,700	-
Property taxes	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	General and admin	-	-
Executive wages	Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	General and admin	20,217	14,670
Interest	Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Interest expense	67,375	

The Company has entered into a lease for approximately 57,000 square feet of greenhouse and warehouse space with Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. The lease agreement commenced May 1, 2019 and the annual rent is \$250,000. The corresponding leased asset has been recorded as a right-of-use asset as described in Note 6.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company entered into a term facility agreement with Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. The unsecured loan payable had a principal of \$3,900,000 and accrued interest at a rate of 5.5%. The Company was required to make interest only repayments until the Company received its Standard Cultivation Licence.

On March 31, 2021, the Company repaid the \$3,900,000 term facility in full and replaced it with a \$4,900,000 subordinated credit facility from Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., with an interest rate of 5.5% (note 8).

The Company has an operating lease agreement with its majority shareholder, Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., to whom it leases approximately 667,000 square feet of greenhouse and warehouse space. The operating lease agreement is a 12-month term (May 1 to April 30) and is renewed annually. The annual rent is \$250,000 and is paid monthly.

Related party transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange amounts.

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

11. Income taxes

No deferred tax provision is required for the period ended June 30, 2021.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized.

12. Capital management

The Company's objective is to maintain sufficient capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the business and safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern. Management defines capital as the Company's shareholders' equity and debt. Since inception, the Company has primarily been financed through long-term debt and the issuance of share capital.

The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on capital criteria for management; but rather promotes year over year sustainable growth. The Company is subject to financial covenants as a result of its loans. Other than these items related to loans payable, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company currently has not paid any dividends to its shareholders.

13. Stock options

During the three-month period ended June 30, 2021 and year ended March 31, 2021, the Company granted options subject to certain performance and time-based vesting conditions to directors, officers, employees, and consultants as follows:

Weighted

		average	
		exercise price	
	Options	\$_	
March 31, 2020	12,233,500	0.32	
Granted during the year	1,020,940	0.50	
Forfeited during the year	(3,100,000)	0.26	
March 31, 2021	10,154,440	0.35	
Granted during the year	178,560	0.50	
Forfeited during the year	_	_	
Exercised during the year	_	_	
Expired during the year	_	_	
Outstanding at June 30,			
2021	10,333,000	0.35	
Exercisable at June 30, 2021	9,518,740	0.35	

The Company's options as at June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

Expiry date	Options outstanding	Options exercisable	Exercise price \$
Options			
The third annual anniversary of the first day of public trading of common shares	6,000,000	5,800,000	0.25
The third annual anniversary of the first day of public trading of common shares	4,333,000	3,718,740	0.50
Balance, June 30, 2021	10,333,000	9,518,740	0.35

The fair value of options was determined using the following Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model assumptions:

13. Stock options (continued)

For the three months ended

June 30,

	2021	2020
Share price	\$ 0.50	\$ 0.50
Exercise price	\$ 0.50	\$ 0.50
Expected life	3 years	3 - 4 years
Volatility	70%	53%
Dividend yield	0%	0%
Risk – free interest rate	0.23%	0.23% - 0.73%

During the period ended June 30, 2021, the Company recognized \$36,885 (June 30, 2020 - \$77,429) in share-based compensation in connection with the options granted.

14. General and administrative expenses

For the three months ended

	June 30,	
	2021 202	
	\$	\$
Management and directors' fees	45,217	18,295
Office and general	50,069	4,574

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

Salaries and wages Insurance	62,326 13,200	45,270 -
Repairs and maintenance	65,331	36,955
	236,143	105,094

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

15. Income (loss) per share

The calculation of loss per share for the periods ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 is calculated as follows:

	2021	2020
Basic loss per share:		
Net loss for the period	\$ 130,310	\$ (316,197)
Average number of common shares outstanding during the period	121,632,019	167,115,431
Loss per share - basic	\$ 0.00	\$ (0.00)
	2021	2020
Diluted loss per share:		
Net loss for the period	\$ 130,310	\$ (316,197)
Average number of common shares outstanding during the period	121,632,019	167,115,431
"In the money" options outstanding during the period (i)	-	-
	121,632,019	167,115,431
Loss per share - diluted	\$ 0.00	\$ (0.00)

(i) 6,000,000 in-the-money stock options (2020 - 9,000,000) have not been included in the calculation of diluted loss per share as their impact would be anti-dilutive.

16. Risk Management

16.1 Financial Risk Management

The Company may be exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. The main objectives of the Company's risk management processes are to ensure that risks are properly identified and that the capital base is adequate in relation to those risks. The principal risks to which the Company is exposed are described below.

a) Capital risk

The company manages its capital to ensure that there are adequate capital resources for the Company to maintain operations. The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and share capital.

b) Interest rate risk

The Company may invest surplus cash in highly liquid investments with short terms to maturity that would accumulate interest at prevailing rates for such investments. As at March 31, 2021, the Company had invested no such funds in liquid investments.

The Company's Bank Credit Facility (note 8) currently bears interest at the Canadian prime rate plus 2%. An increase in the prime rate by 0.5% would increase the Company's annual interest expense by approximately \$30,000.

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

16. Risk Management (continued)

c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company's trade accounts receivable. The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties. In the current period, the Company is not yet selling a product and therefore holds no credit risk from customers.

d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by reviewing on an ongoing basis its cash requirements. As at June 30, 2021, the most significant financial liabilities are accounts payable and accrued liabilities, lease liability and long-term debt.

As at June 30, 2021, the Company's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:

	Due within less than 1					
	year	1-2 years	2-3 years	3-4 years	> 4 years	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	375,354	-	-	-	-	375,354
Lease liability	412,500	550,000	550,000	550,000	4,217,106	6,279,606
Long-term debt	732,500	1,140,000	1,100,000	1,100,000	6,967,500	11,040,000
	1,520,354	1,690,000	1,650,000	1,650,000	11,184,606	17,694,960

e) Market risk

Market risk incorporates a range of risks. Movements in risk factors, such as market price risk and currency risk, affect the fair values of financial assets and liabilities. The Company is not exposed to these risks.

16.2 Fair Values

The carrying values of cash, government remittances receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to their short-term maturity. For long-term liabilities, fair value approximates their carrying value at the fiscal year end as the interest rates used to discount these contracts approximate market rates.

Assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level in input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation

Notes to the condensed interim financial statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited - in Canadian dollars)

16. Risk Management (continued)

Level 2 – Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that not observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 – Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (supported by little or no market activity).

Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS For the 3 months ended June 30, 2021

This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of the financial condition and results of operations of Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation (the "Company" or "Greenway"), is for the three months' ended June 30, 2021. It is supplemental to, and should be read in conjunction with, the Company's condensed interim financial statements and the accompanying notes for the three months ended June 30, 2021. Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). This MD&A has been prepared by reference to the MD&A disclosure requirements established under National Instrument 51-102 - Continuous Disclosure Obligations ("NI 51-102") of the Canadian Securities Administrators.

In this MD&A, reference is made to adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes Depreciation and Amortization ("Adjusted EBITDA") which does not have any standardized meaning under IFRS and is not a measure of financial performance under IFRS, and therefore, may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Management believes this measure provides useful information as it is a commonly used measure in the capital markets and as it is a close proxy for repeatable cash generated by operations.

The Company calculates Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) plus (minus) income taxes (recovery), plus (minus) interest (income) expense, net, minus rental income, plus write-off of uncollectible deposit, minus unrealized gain on fair value of inventory, plus (minus) fair value adjustment on growth of biological assets, plus amortization, plus share-based compensation, plus impairment, plus transaction costs and certain one-time non-operating expenses, as determined by management.

All dollar amounts in this MD&A are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

MD&A contains forward-looking information within the meaning of Canadian securities laws. Refer to "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" for cautionary statements regarding forward-looking statements.

This MD&A is prepared as of September 3, 2021.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this MD&A and the Prospectus to which it is appended are forward-looking statements, which reflect management's expectations regarding our future growth, results of operations, performance and business prospects and opportunities including statements related to the development of existing and future property interests, availability of financing and projected costs and expenses. Forward-looking statements consist of statements that are not purely historical, including any statements regarding beliefs, plans, expectations or intentions regarding the future and include statements with words such as "seek", "anticipate", "budget", "plan", "continue", "estimate", "expect", "forecast", "may", "will", "project", "predict", "potential", "targeting", "intend", "could", "might", "should", "believe", or similar words suggesting future outcomes or statements regarding an outlook, or other expectations, beliefs, plans objectives, assumptions, intentions or statements about future events or performance. The forwardlooking statements are included principally in the following sections of this MD&A: "Description of Business", "Liquidity", "Proposed Transactions" and "Subsequent Events". Such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results, performance or developments to differ materially from those contained in the statements. No assurance can be given that any of the events anticipated by the forward-looking statements will occur or, if they do occur, what benefits we will obtain from them. These forward-looking statements reflect management's current views and are based on certain assumptions and speak only as of the date of this MD&A. These assumptions, which include management's current expectations, estimates and assumptions about the global economic environment, the market price and demand for our products and our ability to manage our operating costs, may prove to be incorrect. A number of risks and uncertainties could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied

by the forward-looking statements, including: (1) a downturn in general economic conditions, (2) the uncertainty of government regulation and politics (3) potential negative financial impact from regulatory investigations, claims, lawsuits and other legal proceedings and challenges, and (4) other factors beyond our control.

There is a significant risk that such forward-looking statements will not prove to be accurate. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. No forward-looking statement is a guarantee of future results. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law. Additional information about these and other assumptions, risks and uncertainties are set out in the section entitled "Risk Factors" in the Company's long-form non-offering prospectus dated as of the date hereof and filed under the Company's SEDAR profile at www.sedar.com (the "**Prospectus**").

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Greenway is licensed to cultivate, process and sell (B2B) under the *Cannabis Act* (Canada), having obtained its nursery licence and a standard cultivation licence (collectively, the "**Licences**") pursuant to that act. The Company's business model is to cultivate, bulk package and wholesale high quality dry bud cannabis to other cannabis companies that are licensed pursuant to the *Cannabis Act* (Canada) and the Cannabis Regulations ("Licensees"). The Company was incorporated under the laws of the *Business Corporations Act* (Ontario) on July 9, 2018. The Company's registered office is 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario, N9Y 2M2.

The Company intends to become a reporting issuer in the Province of Ontario by filing the Prospectus and submitting an application to list its common shares on the Canadian Securities Exchange ("CSE").

HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE PERIOD

The following highlights occurred during the three months ended June 30, 2021:

On May 5, 2021, the Company closed the final tranche of its private placement and issued 2,458,000 common shares from treasury for \$0.50 per share. The Company paid finders and administrative fees of \$16,214 related to the tranche. The net cash proceeds of \$1,212,786 were used for working capital purposes.

On May 11, 2021, the Company finished harvesting the final area of its first crop of cannabis. At June 30, 2021, all product was within the processing cycle (drying, bucking, curing, trimming, packaging). Expected yields per plant are in the range of 200 to 300 grams, but management notes that plant yields are dependent on many factors, most importantly the specific genetic strain. The Company may cultivate different genetic strains in the future. The entire grow period, from cloning to harvest, was approximately 18 weeks. The length of this grow period was greater than expected, as the period in the Company's nursery located at 1478 Seacliff Drive, Kingsville, Ontario (the "Nursery") was extended while the Company waited to receive the standard cultivation license from Health Canada for the greenhouse and processing facility located 1102 Mersea Road 5 in Leamington, Ontario (the "Cultivation Facility"). In future periods, management expects the plants to grow for 4 to 5 weeks in the Nursery and 9-10 weeks in the Cultivation Facility. With an expectation of 9 to 10 weeks for flowering, and extra capacity in the Nursery, the Company expects to produce 5 crop cycles per year.

On June 8, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the Company's non-offering preliminary long-form prospectus and the draft application for listing to the CSE, amongst other items. The preliminary prospectus was filed under the Company's profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com on June 11th, 2021.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The Company has not generated revenues as of June 30, 2021, as the first crop was not prepared for sale and shipment until subsequent to period end.

The net assets of the Company increased from \$10,263,759 as at March 31, 2021 to \$11,643,739 at June 30, 2021, an increase of \$1,379,980. The assets at June 30, 2021 consist primarily of property, plant and equipment of \$23,967,965 (March 31, 2021 - \$20,687,193), cash of \$2,600,865 (March 31, 2021 - \$3,456,555), inventory of \$1,678,942 (March 31, 2021 - \$nil), biological assets of \$833,933 (March 31, 2021 - \$888,772), and government remittances receivable and prepaid expenses and deposits of \$198,282 (March 31, 2021 - \$77,804).

Liabilities as of June 30, 2021 consists of accounts payable and accrued liabilities of \$375,354 (March 31, 2021 - \$896,024), lease liability of \$6,279,603 (March 31, 2021 - \$2,873,478), long-term debt of \$10,981,339 (March 31, 2021 - \$10,971,563), and share capital deposits of \$nil (March 31, 2021 - \$105,500).

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation

Condensed Interim Statements of Income (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

For the three months ended Julie 50, 2021 and 2020		
	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Operating Expenses		
Amortization	80,255	119,568
General and administration	236,143	105,094
Share-based compensation	36,885	77,429
Professional fees	63,936	25,883
Marketing and promotion	25,833	10,360
Research and development	20,707	-
Transaction costs	19,515	-
	483,274	338,334
Operating loss	(483,274)	(338,334)
Interest income (expense), net Rental income	(205,195) 62,500	(40,363) 62,500
Fair value adjustment on growth of biological assets	756,279	02,300
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss)	130,310	(316,197)
14ct meonic (1685) and comprehensive meonic (1685)	130,310	(310,177)
Weighted average number of common shares – basic	144,947,898	167,115,431
Weighted average number of common shares – diluted	147,847,898	167,115,431
Income (loss) per share – basic	0.00	(0.00)
Income (loss) per share - diluted	0.00	(0.00)

The following highlights the key operating expenditures during the three months ended June 30, 2021.

For the three months ended June 30, 2021

During the three months ended June 30, 2021, the Company incurred an income and comprehensive income of \$130,310 (2020 - \$316,197). The income and comprehensive income for the period consists primarily of the following:

- Amortization expense of \$80,255 (2020 \$119,568) consists of the property, plant, and equipment amortization, as well as amortization of the right-of-use asset. This was a decrease of \$39,313 from the prior period, as there was \$246,937 of amortization in the current period capitalized to inventory and biological assets, whereas in the prior period the main facility was not yet fully in use.
- General and administration expenses consist of management and directors' fees of \$45,217 (2020 \$18,295), office and general of \$50,069 (2020 \$4,574), salaries and wages of \$62,326 (2020 \$45,270), insurance of \$13,200 (2020 \$nil) and repairs and maintenance of \$65,331 (2020 \$36,955). The net increase of \$140,564 was driven by an increase in the number of employees and directors, increased cash compensation for independent directors, and general overhead as the company commenced operations.
- Share-based compensation of \$36,885 (2020 \$77,429) consists of the non-cash fair value as measured by the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The current year expense is based on 187,300 (2020 250,000) stock options granted and vested.
- Professional fees of \$63,936 (2020 \$25,883) consists primarily of quarterly review fees from external auditors, corporate secretary services and other miscellaneous legal fees.
- Marketing and promotion expense of \$25,833 (2020 \$10,360) consists primarily of public relations services and promotional materials with respect to cannabis products.
- Research and development expense of \$20,707 (2020 \$nil) consists primarily of labour, materials, utilities and lab testing services for production development of cannabis strains.
- Interest expense of \$205,195 (2020 \$40,363) consists primarily of interest from long-term debt and lease liabilities. The increase in the expense is attributable to the increase of debt regarding construction of the Cultivation Facility and the additional right-of-use asset/liability recognized in the current period.
- Rental income of \$62,500 (2020 \$62,500) primarily consists of renting a separate greenhouse to Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd. for an annual amount of \$250,000.
- Unrealized gain on fair value of inventory of \$824,110 (2020 \$nil) was recognized for the first time
 due to the first crop was harvested in April of 2021. The Company measures its inventory at their fair
 value less costs to sell.
- Fair value adjustment on growth of biological assets of (\$67,831) (2020 \$nil) was attributable to the fact that there was a modest decrease in plant count and overall the weighted percentage of growth cycle complete was 56% (March 31, 2021 59%). Management chose to stagger the batch plantings in this period to optimize scheduling of the processing area. The Company measures its biological assets at their fair value less costs to sell.

LIQUIDITY

The Company had cash of \$2,600,865 as at June 30, 2021 (March 31, 2021 - \$3,456,555). The Company had working capital of \$3,991,775 as at June 30, 2021 (March 31, 2021 - 2,868,619).

Operating Activities

The Company recognized a decrease (increase) in cash of \$1,269,484 from operating activities during the three months ended June 30, 2021 (2020 –(\$64,783)), a decrease of \$1,334,267 primarily from an increase of unpaid construction invoices in the prior period, of which final payments were made in the current period, as well as operational expenses for processing the first crop and growing the second crop (not applicable in the prior period). Management noted that cash payment to vendors regarding capitalized expenditures have been recognized in operating activities, but in substance, are not regular operating activities. In future periods, management may choose to recognize these respective cash flows as either investing or financing activities, for purposes of increased transparency.

Investing Activities

The Company used cash of \$580,992 (2020 - \$1,672,974) in investing activities primarily for processing equipment and new software.

Financing activities

During the three months ended June 30, 2021 the Company raised net proceeds of \$994,786 (2020 - \$1,605,276) through the issuance of common shares, offset by a decrease in share capital deposits and lease liability payments:

- a) In connection with closing tranches of the aforementioned private placement, the Company raised \$1,229,000 of cash gross proceeds, less \$16,214 in finders and administrative fees. The decrease in share capital deposits of \$105,500 resulted from funds that were closed in the private placement but were held on March 31, 2021. No warrants were issued as a result of this private placement.
- b) The Company paid \$112,500 in lease payments for the Nursery and greenhouse assets.

The Company intends to list its shares on the CSE to gain access to the capital markets for further equity financing. Under such circumstances, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain further funds required for the Company's continued working capital requirements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Key management personnel are the officers and directors of the Company. Management and directors' fees and share-based compensation for the three months ended June 30, 2021 is summarized as follows:

	June	30, 2021	June	30, 2020
Management and directors' fees	\$	45,217	\$	18,295
Share-based compensation (fair value)	\$	24,400	\$	49,075
	\$	69,617	\$	67,370

As at June 30, 2021, \$nil (June 30, 2020 - \$nil) is owed to certain officers and directors of the Company.

The Company identifies the following as related parties:

Company	Description	Relationship
Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Hydroponic Cultivation	Majority Shareholder of the Company
Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Hydroponic Cultivation	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder
Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	Produce Marketer	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder
Delfresco Express Ltd.	Produce Distribution	Common Ownership with Majority Shareholder

The Company shares certain economic resources with related parties resulting in the following expenses billed in the period ended June 30, 2021, from related parties:

			Amo	ınt
Description	Company		2021	2020
			\$	\$
General labour	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Biological assets	352,089	-
General labour	Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.	Biological assets	80,704	-
Utilities	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Biological assets	91,937	-
Adminstrative Wages	Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	General and admin	5,620	-
Insurance	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	General and admin	5,700	-
Property taxes	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	General and admin	-	-
Executive wages	Del Fresco Produce Ltd.	General and admin	20,217	14,670
Interest	Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd.	Finance expenses	67,375	-

The Company has entered into a lease for approximately 57,000 square feet of greenhouse and warehouse space with Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. The lease agreement commenced May 1, 2019 and the annual rent is \$250,000. The corresponding leased asset has been recorded as a right-of-use asset as described in Note 7 to the financial statements.

On March 31, 2021, the Company paid in full the unsecured \$3,900,000 financing from Via Verde Hydroponics Ltd. (2020 - \$3,900,000) and replaced it with a \$4,900,000 subordinated credit facility from Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd.

The Company has an operating lease agreement with Sunrite Greenhouses Ltd., to whom it leases approximately 667,000 square feet of greenhouse and warehouse space. The operating lease agreement is a 12 month term (May 1 to April 30) and is renewed annually. The annual rent is \$250,000 and is paid monthly.

Related party transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange amounts.

During the three months ended June 30, 2021, the Company recorded:

Equity incentives granted and fees paid to the following for services rendered:	Options	Fair Value	Fees paid
		\$	\$
Darren Peddle, CFO pursuant to officer services provided	-	-	20,217
Dennis Staudt, a Director of the Company pursuant to director services provided	-	-	12,500
Martin Komsa, a Director of the Company pursuant to director services provided	-	-	12,500
		-	\$45,217

PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS

There were no proposed transactions other than the planned listing of common shares on the CSE.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

The following is the Company's accounting policy for financial instruments under IFRS 9: (i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), at fair value through other comprehensive income (loss) ("FVTOCI") or at amortized cost. The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of debt instruments is driven by the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Equity instruments that are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. For other equity instruments, on the day of acquisition the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate them as at FVTOCI. Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or if the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

The Company classifies its financial instruments as follows:

Financial assets and liabilities	
Cash	FVTPL
Government remittances receivable	Amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	Amortized cost
Loan payable to related party	Amortized cost
Lease liability	Amortized cost
Long-term debt	Amortized cost

(ii) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value plus or minus transaction costs, respectively, and subsequently carried at amortized cost less any impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the statements of loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the statement of loss in the period in which they arise.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company measures the loss allowance for the financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. If at the reporting date, the financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for the financial asset at an amount equal to the twelve month expected credit losses. The Company shall recognize in the statements of loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized.

(iv) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets expire, or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all of the associated risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. Gains and losses on derecognition are generally recognized in the statements of loss

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE FOR VENTURE ISSUERS WITHOUT SIGNIFICANT REVENUE

During the three months ended June 30, 2021, the Company incurred the following significant expenses:

	2021
Amortization	\$ 80,255
Share-based compensation	\$ 36,885
Professional fees	\$ 63,936
Management and directors' fees	\$ 45,217

An analysis of material components of the Company's general and administration expenses, which includes the management and directors' fees, is disclosed in the audited financial statements for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to which this MD&A relates as well as the Discussion of Operations section of this MD&A.

Amortization is calculated based on the estimated useful lives of the property, plant, equipment assets, as well as the right-of-use assets. The professional fees consist of the audit and legal fees for services performed to date which include consulting services related to the applications for Health Canada licences. Management and directors' fees consist of the fees paid to the officers and directors for services rendered. Share-based compensation consists of non-cash fair value of stock options.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure that does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Management believes this measure provides useful information as it is a commonly used measure in the capital markets and as it is a close proxy for repeatable cash generated by operations.

The Company calculates adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization ("Adjusted EBITDA") as net income (loss) plus (minus) income taxes (recovery), plus (minus) interest (income) expense, net, minus rental income, plus write-off of uncollectible deposit, minus unrealized gain on fair value of inventory, plus (minus) fair value adjustment on growth of biological assets, plus amortization, plus share-based compensation, plus transaction costs and certain one-time non-operating expenses, as determined by management.

For the three months ended		June 30, 2021	June 30, 2020
NET INCOME (LOSS) AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)	\$	130,310	\$ (316,197)
Interest (income) expense, net		205,195	40,363
Rental income		(62,500)	(62,500)
Fair value adjustment on growth of biological assets		(756,279)	-
Amortization		80,255	119,568
Share-based compensation		36,885	77,429
ADJUSTED EBITDA	\$	(366,134)	\$ (141,337)

DISCLOSURE OF OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

Common Shares

The Company's authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares without par value. As at the date hereof, the Company had 121,632,019 (March 31, 2021 – 171,681,566) common shares issued and outstanding. The Company closed its private placement and issued 2,458,000 shares on May 5, 2021. On May 13, 2021, Sunrite voluntarily surrendered 52,507,547 common shares to the Company, which were subsequently cancelled by the Company.

Stock options

As at the date hereof, 10,333,000 (June 30, 2021 – 10,333,000) stock options were outstanding as follows:

Expiry Date	Options Outstanding	Options Exercisable	Exercise Price
3rd anniversary from first day of public trading on CSE	6,000,000	5,800,000	\$0.25
3rd anniversary from first day of public trading on CSE	4,333,000	3,593,740	\$0.50
Total	10,333,000	9,518,740	\$0.35

RISK FACTORS

Much of the information included in this report includes or is based upon estimates, projections or other forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements include any projections or estimates made by the Company and its management in connection with the Company's business operations. While these forward-looking statements, and any assumptions upon which they are based, are made in good faith and reflect the Company's current judgment regarding the direction of its business, actual results will almost always vary, sometimes materially, from any estimates, predictions, projections, assumptions, or other future performance suggested herein.

Except as required by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of such statements.

Such estimates, projections or other forward-looking statements involve various risks and uncertainties as outlined in the Prospectus. The Company cautions readers of this report that important factors in some cases have affected and, in the future, could materially affect actual results and cause actual results to differ materially from the results expressed in any such estimates, projections or other forward-looking statements.

BOARD APPROVAL

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved this MD&A.

SCHEDULE C Audit Committee Charter

(Implemented pursuant to National Instrument 52-110 – *Audit Committees*)

National Instrument 52-110 – *Audit Committees* (the "**Instrument**") relating to the composition and function of audit committees was implemented for reporting issuers and, accordingly, applies to every Canadian Securities Exchange (the "**Exchange**") listed company, including the Corporation. The Instrument requires all affected issuers to have a written audit committee charter which must be disclosed, as stipulated by Form 52-110F2, in the management information circular of the Corporation wherein management solicits proxies from the security holders of the Corporation for the purpose of electing directors to the board of directors. The Corporation, as an Exchange listed company is, however, exempt from certain requirements of the Instrument.

This Charter has been adopted by the board of directors of the Corporation (the "Board") in order to comply with the Instrument and to more properly define the role of the Committee in the oversight of the financial reporting process of the Corporation. Nothing in this Charter is intended to restrict the ability of the Board or the Committee to alter or vary procedures in order to comply more fully with the Instrument or any other such requirement of the Exchange, as applicable from time to time.

PART I

Purpose:

The purpose of the Committee is to:

- (a) improve the quality of the Corporation's financial reporting;
- (b) assist the Board to properly and fully discharge its responsibilities;
- (c) provide an avenue of enhanced communication between the directors and external auditors;
- (d) enhance the external auditor's independence;
- (e) ensure the credibility and objectivity of financial reports; and
- (f) strengthen the role of the directors by facilitating in depth discussions between directors, management and external auditors.

1.1 Definitions

"accounting principles" has the meaning ascribed to it in National Instrument 52-107 – Acceptable Accounting Principles, Auditing Standards and Reporting Currency;

"Affiliate" means a Corporation that is a subsidiary of another Corporation or companies that are controlled by the same entity;

"audit services" means the professional services rendered by the Corporation's external auditor for the audit and review of the Corporation's financial statements or services that are normally provided by the external auditor in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements;

"Charter" means this audit committee charter;

"Committee" means the Audit Committee established by and among certain members of the Board for the purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Corporation and audits of the financial statements of the Corporation;

"Control Person" means any individual or company that holds or is one of a combination of individuals or companies that holds a sufficient number of any of the securities of the Corporation so as to affect materially the control of the Corporation, or that holds more than 20% of the outstanding voting shares of the Corporation except where there is evidence showing that the holder of those securities does not materially affect the control of the Corporation;

"financially literate" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.2;

"immediate family member" means a person's spouse, parent, child, sibling, mother or father-in-law, son or daughter-in-law, brother or sister-in-law, and anyone (other than an employee of either the person or the person's immediate family member) who shares the individual's home;

"Instrument" means National Instrument 52-110 – Audit Committees;

"MD&A" has the meaning ascribed to it in National Instrument 51-102;

"Member" means a member of the Committee:

"National Instrument 51-102" means National Instrument 51-102 – Continuous Disclosure Obligations; and

"non-audit services" means services other than audit services.

1.2 Meaning of Financially Literate

For the purposes of this Charter, an individual is financially literate if he or she has the ability to read and understand a set of financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the Corporation's financial statements.

PART 2

2.1 Audit Committee

The Board has hereby established the Committee for, among other purposes, compliance with the Instrument.

2.2 Relationship with External Auditors and other Parties

The Corporation will require its external auditor to report directly to the Committee and its Members shall ensure that such is the case.

Each Member shall be entitled, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to rely on the integrity of those persons and organizations within and outside the Corporation from whom he or she receives information, and the accuracy of the information provided to the Corporation by such other persons or organizations.

2.3 Committee Responsibilities

- The Committee shall be responsible for making the following recommendations to the Board of directors:
 - (a) the external auditor to be nominated for the purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor's report or performing other audit, review or attest services for the Corporation; and
 - (b) the compensation of the external auditor.
- 2. The Committee shall be directly responsible for overseeing the work of the external auditor engaged for the purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor's report or performing other audit, review or attest services for the Corporation, including the resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditor regarding financial reporting. This responsibility shall include:
 - (a) reviewing the audit plan with management and the external auditor;
 - (b) reviewing with management and the external auditor any proposed changes in major accounting policies, the presentation and impact of significant risks and uncertainties, and key estimates and judgements of management that may be material to financial reporting;
 - (c) questioning management and the external auditor regarding significant financial reporting issues discussed during the fiscal period and the method of resolution;
 - (d) reviewing any problems experienced by the external auditor in performing the audit, including any restrictions imposed by management or significant accounting issues on which there was a disagreement with management;
 - (e) reviewing audited annual financial statements, in conjunction with the report of the external auditor, and obtaining an explanation from management of all significant variances between comparative reporting periods;
 - (f) reviewing the post-audit or management letter, containing the recommendations of the external auditor, and management's response and subsequent follow up to any identified weakness:
 - (g) reviewing interim unaudited financial statements before release to the public;

- (h) reviewing all public disclosure documents containing audited or unaudited financial information before release, including any prospectus, the annual report and management's discussion and analysis;
- (i) reviewing the evaluation of internal controls by the external auditor, together with management's response;
- (i) reviewing the terms of reference of the internal auditor, if any;
- (k) reviewing the reports issued by the internal auditor, if any, and management's response and subsequent follow up to any identified weaknesses; and
- (l) reviewing the appointments of the chief financial officer and any key financial executives involved in the financial reporting process, as applicable.
- 3. The Committee shall pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Corporation or its subsidiary entities by the issuer's external auditor.
- 4. The Committee shall review the Corporation's financial statements, MD&A, and annual and interim earnings press releases before the Corporation publicly discloses this information.
- 5. The Committee shall ensure that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Corporation's public disclosure of financial information extracted or derived from the Corporation's financial statements, and shall periodically assess the adequacy of those procedures.
- 6. When there is to be a change of auditor, the Committee shall review all issues related to the change, including the information to be included in the notice of change of auditor called for under National Instrument 51-102, and the planned steps for an orderly transition.
- 7. The Committee shall review all reportable events, including disagreements, unresolved issues and consultations, as defined in National Instrument 51-102, on a routine basis, whether or not there is to be a change of auditor.
- 8. The Committee shall, as applicable, establish procedures for:
 - (a) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the issuer regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters; and
 - (b) the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the issuer of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.
- 9. As applicable, the Committee shall establish, periodically review and approve the Corporation's hiring policies regarding partners, employees and former partners and employees of the present and former external auditor of the issuer, as applicable.
- 10. The responsibilities outlined in this Charter are not intended to be exhaustive. Members should consider any additional areas which may require oversight when discharging their responsibilities.

11. While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not the duty of the Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Corporation's financial statements and disclosures are complete and accurate and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and applicable rules and regulations, each of which is the responsibility of management and the Corporation's external auditors.

2.4 De Minimis Non-Audit Services

The Committee shall satisfy the pre-approval requirement in subsection 2.3(3) if:

- (a) the aggregate amount of all the non-audit services that were not pre-approved is reasonably expected to constitute no more than five per cent (5%) of the total amount of fees paid by the issuer and its subsidiary entities to the issuer's external auditor during the financial year in which the services are provided;
- (b) the Corporation or the subsidiary of the Corporation, as the case may be, did not recognize the services as non-audit services at the time of the engagement; and
- (c) the services are promptly brought to the attention of the Committee and approved by the Committee or by one or more of its members to whom authority to grant such approvals has been delegated by the Committee, prior to the completion of the audit.

2.5 Delegation of Pre-Approval Function

- 1. The Committee may delegate to one or more independent Members the authority to pre-approve non-audit services in satisfaction of the requirement in subsection 2.3(3).
- 2. The pre-approval of non-audit services by any Member to whom authority has been delegated pursuant to subsection 2.5(1) must be presented to the Committee at its first scheduled meeting following such pre-approval.

PART 3

3.1 Composition

- 1. The Committee shall be composed of a minimum of three Members.
- 2. Every Member shall be a director of the issuer.
- 3. A majority of the Members shall not be employees, Control Persons or executive officers of the Corporation or any affiliate of the Corporation.
- 4. If practicable, given the composition of the Board, every Member shall be financially literate.
- 5. If practicable, given the composition of the Board, every Member shall be independent.

The Board shall appoint or re-appoint the Members after each annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation.

PART 4

4.1 Authority

Until the replacement of this Charter, the Committee shall have the authority to:

- (a) engage independent legal counsel and other advisors as it determines necessary to carry out its duties:
- (b) set and pay the compensation for any advisors employed by the Committee;
- (c) communicate directly with the internal and external auditors; and
- (d) recommend the amendment or approval of audited and interim financial statements to the Board.

PART 5

5.1 Disclosure in Information Circular

If management of the Corporation solicits proxies from the security holders of the Corporation for the purpose of electing directors to the Board, the Corporation shall include in its management information circular the disclosure required by Form 52-110F2 (Disclosure by Venture Issuers).

PART 6

6.1 Meetings

- 1. Meetings of the Committee shall be scheduled to take place at regular intervals and, in any event, not less frequently than quarterly.
- 2. Opportunities shall be afforded periodically to the external auditor, the internal auditor and to members of senior management to meet separately with the Members.
- 3. Minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the Committee.
- 4. The quorum for meetings shall be a majority of the Members, present in person or by telephone or other telecommunication device that permits all persons participating in the meeting to speak to and to hear each other. No business may be transacted by the Committee except at a meeting of its members at which a quorum of the Committee is present.

6.2 Currency of this Charter

This Charter was last approved by the Board on June 8, 2021.

CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATION

Dated:	September	3,	2021
--------	-----------	----	------

This Prospectus constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities previously issued by the issuer as required by the securities legislation of the Province of Ontario.

(signed) "Jamie D'Alimonte	(signed) "Darren Peddle"	
Chief Executive Officer	Chief Financial Officer	
On Behalf of the Board of Directors		
(signed) "Carl Mastronardi"	(signed) "Martin Komsa"	
Director	Director	

CERTIFICATE OF THE PROMOTERS

Dated: September 3, 2021	
<u>.</u>	n disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities the securities legislation of the Province of Ontario.
(signed) "Jamie D'Alimonte" Chief Executive Officer	(signed) "Darren Peddle" Chief Financial Officer
(signed) "Carl Mastronardi" President	

SCHEDULE B

14. Capitalization

14.1 <u>Issued Capital</u>

	Number of Securities (non-diluted)	Number of Securities (fully diluted)	% of Issued (non- diluted)	% of Issued (fully diluted)
Public Float				
Total outstanding (A)	121,632,019	131,965,019	100%	100%
Held by Related Persons or employees of the Issuer or Related Person of the Issuer, or by persons or companies who beneficially own or control, directly or indirectly, more than a 5% voting position in the Issuer (or who would beneficially own or control, directly or indirectly, more than a 5% voting position in the Issuer upon exercise or conversion of other securities held) (B)	102,918,417	113,251,417	84.61%	85.82%
Total Public Float (A-B)	18,713,602	18,713,602	15.39%	14.18%
Freely-Tradeable Float				
Number of outstanding securities subject to resale restrictions, including restrictions imposed by pooling or other arrangements or in a shareholder agreement and securities held by control block holders (C)	104,565,167	109,065,167	85.97%	82.65%
Total Tradeable Float (A-C)	17,066,852	22,899,852	14.03%	17.35%

Public Securityholders (Registered)

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "public securityholders" are persons other than persons enumerated in section (B) of the previous chart. List registered holders only.

Size of Holding	Number of Holders*	Total Number of Securities*
1 – 99 securities	0	0
100 – 499 securities	0	0
500 – 999 securities	0	0
1,000 – 1,999 securities	0	0
2,000 - 2,999 securities	1	2,000
3,000 - 3,999 securities	17	51,500
4,000 - 4,999 securities	22	89,058
5,000 or more securities	427	19,924,294
TOTAL	467	20,066,852

Public Securityholders (Beneficial)

Instruction: Include (i) beneficial holders holding securities in their own name as registered shareholders; and (ii) beneficial holders holding securities through an intermediary where the Issuer has been given written confirmation of shareholdings. For the purposes of this section, it is sufficient if the intermediary provides a breakdown by number of beneficial holders for each line item below; names and holdings of specific beneficial holders do not have to be disclosed. If an intermediary or intermediaries will not provide details of beneficial holders, give the aggregate position of all such intermediaries in the last line.

Size of Holding	Number of Holders*	Total Number of Securities*
1 – 99 securities	0	0
100 – 499 securities	0	0
500 – 999 securities	0	0
1,000 - 1,999 securities	0	0
2,000 - 2,999 securities	1	2,000
3,000 - 3,999 securities	17	51,500
4,000 - 4,999 securities	22	89,058
5,000 or more securities	427	19,924,294
TOTAL	467	20,066,852

Non-Public Securityholders (Registered)

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "non-public securityholders" are persons enumerated in section (B) of the issued capital chart.

Size of Holding	<u>Number of</u> Holders*	Total Number of Securities*
1 – 99 securities	0	0
100 – 499 securities	0	0
500 – 999 securities	0	0
1,000 - 1,999 securities	0	0
2,000 - 2,999 securities	0	0
3,000 - 3,999 securities	0	0
4,000 - 4,999 securities	3	12,000
5,000 or more securities	26	102,906,417
TOTAL	29	102,918,417

Provide the following details for any securities convertible or exchangeable into any class of listed securities

Description of Security (include conversion /	Number of convertible / exchangeable securities	Number of listed securities issuable upon conversion /
exercise terms, including conversion / exercise price)	outstanding	exercise
Options ⁽¹⁾	10,333,000	10,333,000

Note:

(1) For more information on Options, please see pages 31, 32 and 39-40 of the Prospectus.

Provide details of any listed securities reserved for issuance that are not included in section 14.2.

Not applicable.

SCHEDULE C

Certificate of the Issuer

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation, hereby applies for the listing of the above mentioned securities on the Canadian Securities Exchange. The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information relating to Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation. It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made.

Dated at Kingsville, Ontario this 17th day of September, 2021.

(signed) "Jamie D' Alimonte"	(signed) "Darren Peddle"
Jamie D'Alimonte Chief Executive Officer	Darren Peddle Chief Financial Officer
On Behalf of the Board of Directors	
(signed) "Carl Mastronardi"	(signed) "Martin Komsa"
Carl Mastronardi Director	Martin Komsa Director

Certificate of the Promoter

The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information relating to Greenway Greenhouse Cannabis Corporation. It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made.

Dated at Kingsville Ontario this 17th day of September, 2021.

(signed) "Jamie D' Alimonte"	(signed) "Darren Peddle"
Jamie D'Alimonte	Darren Peddle
Chief Executive Officer	Chief Financial Officer
(signed) "Carl Mastronardi"	
Carl Mastronardi	